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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Form 17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the fiscal year ended : December 31, 2023
2. SEC ldentification Number : 133653
3. BIR Tax Identification Code : 000-132-413
4. Name of Issuer as Specified in its Charter : ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.
5. Province, Country or other jurisdiction of
Incorporation or organization : Manila, Philippines
6. Industry Classification Code (SEC use only)
7. Address of Principal Office : A. Bonifacio Drive
Port Area, Manila 1018
8. Registrant’s telephone number : (632) 8528-6000
9. Former name, address and fiscal year, if
changed since last report : N/A
10. Securities registered pursuant to Section 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and
8 of the RSA:
Number of Shares of
Title of Each Class Common Stock Outstanding or
Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common 2,000,000,000 shares
11. Are any or all of registrant’s securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [ X] No [ ]
If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities
listed therein: Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.; common shares
12. Check whether the issuer

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC
Rule 17 thereunder of Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1
thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports):

Yes [ X] No [ ]




(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [ X] No [ ]

13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the
registrant. The aggregate market value shall be computed by reference to the
price at which the stock was sold, or the average bid and asked prices of such
stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to the date of filing. If a
determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot be
made without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market
value of the common stock held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis
of assumptions reasonable under the circumstances, provided the assumptions
are set forth in this Form.

Number of non-affiliate shares as of December 31, 2022 326,985,481
Closing price per share as of March 27, 2024 P17.98

(last trading day)

Market value of stocks held by non-affiliates

as of March 31, 2024 P5.88B
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PART |- BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Business

Asian Terminals, Inc. (ATI), formerly known as Marina Port Services, Inc. (MPSI), was
incorporated on July 9, 1986 to provide general services with respect to the operation and
management of port terminals in the Philippines. In August 1990, a consortium of local and
foreign companies acquired all the issued and outstanding capital stock of ATI.

South Harbor

ATl manages and operates the South Harbor pursuant to the Third Supplement to the Contract
for Cargo Handling Services and Related Services granted by the Philippine Ports Authority
(PPA) extending ATI's South Harbor concession for twenty-five (25) years or until May 2038.

The Container Terminal Division handles stevedoring, arrastre, warehousing, storage, cranage,
container freight station (CFS) and other port-related services for international cargoes. ATI’s
5-year lease contract commencing in 2011 over two parcels of land located in Sta. Mesa, City
of Manila continued and is extended until January 2027. This land is being used exclusively as
an off-dock container depot.

General Stevedoring operations provides arrastre, stevedoring and storage services to
international shipping lines.

The ATI South Harbor Eva Macapagal Terminal handles international cruise ships for
homeporting and transit calls.

The ATI South Harbor facility is certified compliant with the International Ship and Port Facility
Security (ISPS) Code issued by the Office for Transportation Security, DOTC valid until
January 2025.

The ATI South Harbor facility is certified with 1ISO 14001:2015 (Environment), ISO 45001:2018
(Occupational Health and Safety), ISO 9001: 2015 (Quality) and 1SO 28000: 2007 (Supply
Chain Security). The certificates are valid until March and April 2025.

Inland Clearance Depot and Empty Container Depot (Laguna)

The Inland Clearance Depot (ICD) was established pursuant to Customs Memorandum Order
No. 11-97 which designated ICD as an extension of the Port of Manila and as a customs bonded
facility. This permits the immediate transfer of cargoes to the facility while still being cleared by
customs in Manila. This provides savings on storage charges and efficient just-in- time delivery
for clients in the CALABARZON area. The facility provides storage, trucking, just-in-time
delivery, brokerage and maintenance and repair services for its clients. Customs Memorandum
Order No. 23-2003 expanded the operations of the ATI-Calamba ICD to include servicing the
Port of Batangas, in addition to the Port of Manila.

The facility is equipped with CCTV cameras for security monitoring.
The Inland Clearance Depot is certified with ISO 14001:2015 (Environment), ISO 45001:2015

(Health and Safety), ISO 9001: 2015 (Quality) and 1ISO 28000: 2007 (Supply Chain Security).
The certificates are valid until March and April 2025.
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Port of Batangas

ATI Batangas, Inc. (ATIB), a 99.17%-owned subsidiary of ATI, is the sole cargo handling
contractor operating at the Port of Batangas. ATI provides management services to ATIB
relating to operations, marketing, training and administration.

ATIB had a 10-year Cargo Handling Contract in Phase 1 of the Port of Batangas effective until
October 2015, under which it provides arrastre, stevedoring, storage and related cargo handling
services. By virtue of the same contract, ATIB was also given the right to manage and operate
the Fastcraft Passenger Terminal and to provide specific services and amenities to all
passengers, both for fastcraft and RORO vessels.

A Lease Agreement for the management and operation of additional assets and facilities in
Phase 1 was signed by ATIB effective August 1, 2009 and co-terminous with the above-
mentioned 10-year agreement. Pursuant to this Lease Agreement, the Passenger Terminal
Building 2 was turned over to ATIB in May 2010. On January 18, 2010, the PPA issued to ATI
the Notice to Proceed to Award the Contract for the Management, Operation, Maintenance,
Development and Promotion of the Container Terminal “A-1", Phase Il of the Port of Batangas
for a period of 25 years. The contract was signed on March 25, 2010 and is effective for a term
of 25 years. The Notice to Proceed dated June 16, 2010 allowed ATI to start and commence
operations at the Terminal on July 1, 2010.

On October 2, 2015, ATIB and ATI signed a Contract for the Management, Operation,
Maintenance and Development of Phase |, Port of Batangas for a term commencing
October 1, 2015 until September 30, 2025. This contract effectively consolidates the
above-mentioned contracts of ATIB in Phase 1, Port of Batangas, and included the contract to
lease the Main Passenger Terminal Building mentioned in the narrative below. On
December 20, 2019, Asian Terminals, Inc., its subsidiary ATl Batangas, Inc., and the Philippine
Ports Authority have signed the First Amendment to said contract extending the term for an
additional 10 years from September 30, 2025 up to June 30, 2035.

The container terminal handles stevedoring, arrastre, storage, container freight station (CFS)
and other port related activities for domestic and international shipping lines. Other special
services include ship’s husbanding, maintenance and repair services, and trucking.

ATI's 5-year lease agreement with PPA effective April 3, 2012 covering a land adjacent to the
CFS area of the Container Terminal “A-1" has been extended until April 2, 2022. ATI’s
occupancy continues under the same terms until the end of this reporting period and to date.
This area is being utilized as storage for completely built units (CBU) of vehicles.

On February 1, 2021, PPA issued to ATl a Permit to Occupy over an 80,000 square meter area
in Phase Il of the Port of Batangas, effective for the period February 1, 2021 to
January 31, 2022 and the same was renewed for another period from February 2022 to
January 2023. ATI continues under the same terms to date. PPA likewise issued to ATl a Permit
to Occupy for a 20,000 square meter area in Phase Il of the Port of Batangas effective for the
period June 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022. ATI’s occupancy continues under the same terms
to date. The above-mentioned areas are used as storage area of cargoes being handled by
ATI as port operator of Phases | and Il of Port of Batangas.

ATIB and Batangas Container Terminal is certified with ISO 14001:2015 (Environment), ISO
45001:2018 (Occupational Health and Safety), ISO 9001: 2015 (Quality) and 1ISO 28000: 2007
(Supply Chain Security). The certificates are valid until March and April 2025.

ATIB and Batangas Container Terminal are certified compliant with the International Ship and
Port Facility Security (ISPS) Code issued by the Office for Transportation Security, DOTC. The
certificates are valid until April 2028 for ATI Batangas and October 2027 for Batangas Container
Terminal.

Page 2 of 50 Annual Report
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Batangas Supply Base

On May 1, 2000, ATIB entered into a contract to lease the Main Passenger Terminal Building
for the purpose of operating a supply base for companies engaged in oil and gas exploration.
The contract was initially effective for five (5) years and had been extended several times until
2012. The contract was renewed in 2012 until 2015 and was extended for two consecutive
years. The contract was again renewed on December 1, 2017 effective until February 29, 2024.

ATI operates and manages the Batangas Supply Base within the Port of Batangas under a
contract with Shell Philippines Exploration B.V. (SPEX) (succeeded by Prime Energy
Resources Development BV in 2023). The contract has been extended until February 2025.
The Supply Base provides logistics support to the Malampaya Gas-to-Power-Project which
includes cargo-handling, crane and equipment hire, transport, labor and waste management.
The life of the Malampaya Gas field is approximately 20 years.

Batangas Supply Base is certified with 1ISO 14001:2015 (Environment), 1ISO 45001:2018
(Occupational Health and Safety), ISO 9001: 2015 (Quality) and ISO 28000: 2007 (Supply
Chain Security). The certificates are valid until March and April 2025.

Tanza Barge Terminal

In line with its continuous business expansion and to support the growth of its customers, ATI
built up a barge terminal in Tanza, Cavite which is envisioned to deliver smarter trade
connectivity to customers in the industrial and economic zones of Cavite and surrounding
environs.

The Tanza Container Terminal Inc. (TCTI) features a concrete container yard, docking facilities
with harbor cranes and supported by reach-stackers, loaders, internal transfer vehicles among
other operations-critical equipment.

Once fully operational, TCTI will be directly linked to Manila South Harbor and Batangas via
barges, thus enabling the efficient transfer of containers while contributing to traffic reduction
along metro roads.

Tanza Container Terminal, Inc. was incorporated on January 18, 2018 and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ATI.

South Cotabato Integrated Port Services, Inc.

ATl owns 35.71% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of South Cotabato Integrated Port
Services, Inc. (SCIPSI).

SCIPSI is the existing cargo handling operator at the Makar Wharf in the Port of General
Santos, General Santos City. It is located near the business center of the city and caters to the
needs of local businesses (which are engaged mainly in agriculture, fisheries, livestock and
poultry) as well as importers and exporters.

The services provided by SCIPSI include container terminal handling, arrastre, stevedoring,
bagging, domestic cargo handling and equipment services.

SCIPSI is certified with ISO 14001:2015(Environment): ISO 45001:2018 (Occupational Health
and Safety) and 1SO 9001:2015 (Quality). It is Investors in People (liP) certified beginning
June 16, 2009. In November 2021. SCIPSI won the IliP Gold Employer of the Year
(International) Award in June 2016, the liP Excellence in Social Responsibility Award in
November 2018, the liP Reward and Recognition Award in November 2019, and the
Community Employee of the Year in 2021 and 2023 in London, UK. Also in 2023, SCIPSI was
a finalist for HR Person of the Year Award.
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SCIPSI also won the People Investor of the Year Award during the first liP Philippines Awards
in July 2023. In addition, SCIPSI was a National Finalist for Outstanding LMC and received a
Special Award during the National Conciliation and Mediation Board (NCMB) and the Philippine
League of Labor-Management Cooperation Practitioners' (PHILAMCOP) 2023 Twin Search for
Outstanding Labor-Management Cooperation (LMC).

The International Ship and Port Facility Security Code compliance certificate for the Port of
General Santos issued by the Office of Transport Security (OTS) is valid until
September 11,2027.

Breakdown of Consolidated Revenues

Based on accounting records, the following is the breakdown of consolidated revenues
(in ‘000 PHP) by service type for the year ended December 31, 2023:

2023 2022 2021
Service Amount % to Amount % to Amount % to
Total Total Total
Stevedoring 6,587,928 | 43% | 5,862,108 | 43% 4,775,548 43%
Arrastre 5,960,647 | 39% | 5,532,700 | 41% 4,587,974 41%
Logistics 160,055 1% 188,913 1% 106,907 1%
Special/Other
Services 2,743,170 18% | 2,038,983 15% 1,692,315 15%
TOTAL 15,451,800 | 100% | 13,622,704 | 100% 11,162,744 100%
2023 2022 2021
Source Amount | % to Amount | % to Amount % to
Total Total Total
Domestic 815,833 5% 637,552 5% 408,632 4%
Foreign 14,635,967 | 95% | 12,985,153 | 95% 10,754,112 96%
TOTAL 15,451,800 | 100% | 13,622,704 | 100% 11,162,744 100%
Competition

ATl manages the South Harbor at the Port of Manila. Its major competitor on the container
business is International Container Terminal Services, Inc., which operates the Manila
International Container Terminal; and on the non-containerized business, Harbour Centre Port
Terminal Inc., which operates a private commercial port at the northern end of the Manila North
Harbor.

At the Port of Batangas, ATIB competes with two (2) major private commercial ports on
breakbulk cargoes - Philippine National Oil Corporation Energy Base and Bauan International
Port Inc. The Batangas Container Terminal has no direct competitor.

Both the Inland Clearance Depot (ICD) and Empty Container Depot (ECD) compete with

ICTSI's Laguna Gateway Inland Container Terminal (LGICT) located in Calamba, Laguna. The
LGICT is an extension of the seaport operations of the MICT.
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Effect of existing or probable governmental regulations on the business

Various laws, orders, rules and regulations govern ATI's business and operations. ATI's
commitments and authority to manage, operate, maintain, develop and promote its business
are based on the terms provided in its various contracts with and the administrative rules issued
by the Philippine Ports Authority (PPA). The regulatory powers of government agencies namely
the Department of Labor and Employment (DOLE), Department of Environment and Natural
Resources (DENR), Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), Bureau of Customs (BOC),
Philippine Competition Commission, as well as the concerned Local Government Units (LGU)
over various aspects of its business and intended projects, facilitate and ensure observance of
existing laws.

Employees
ATI has a total manpower complement of 1,816 as of December 31, 2023. Of the total, 1,476
are in Operations, 212 are in Maintenance and 128 are in Management and Administration.

The projected headcount for the next 12 months is 1,934.

About 76% of the existing manpower is covered by collective bargaining agreement with the
following unions:

TYPE OF WORKER UNION

Equipment operators and Associated Workers Union (AWU)

dockworkers

Stevedores Samahan ng Trabahador at Empleyado sa
Pantalan (STEP)

Field Supervisors Associated Skilled and Technical Employees
Union (ASTEU)

Checkers South Harbor Independent Port Checkers Union
(SHIPCU)

Stevedores and dockworkers |Batangas Pier Stevedores and Labor Union
(BPSLU)

There were no labor strikes for the past twenty-eight (28) years.

Costs and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws

In 2023 ATI incurred approximately P17.6 million for various environmental activities and other
environment related projects. The Company also participated in Corporate Social
Responsibility activities benefiting nearby communities.

ATI business units maintain its current certifications to 1SO 14001:2015 Environmental
Management System.

Business Risks

The Company regularly undertakes a Business Risk Profile review where risks are identified by
priority based on a systematic assessment of probability and impact. Control strategies are
identified and action points established with the designated accountable persons. Results and
developments are monitored during quarterly reviews through an innovative risk system,
Workiva, which highlights the key priority risks and presents the Company’s current risk
landscape.

Page 5 of 50 Annual Report



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.
Securities and Exchange Commission Form 17-A

Adequate bonds and insurance coverage with business interruption clauses and global
umbrella scope, structural testing and improvement of facilities and equipment, compliance with
government regulations, asset management systems, business continuity plans, disaster
recovery procedures, safety and health management systems, emergency response
procedures and security management systems are in place, reviewed and updated to meet
operational contingencies and business developments brought by rapidly changing market
conditions.

Process controls, intensified collection efforts, rationalization of capital and operational
spending, close monitoring of economic indicators and financial planning and budget controls
are practiced to address financial and strategic contingencies. Regular monitoring and updating
of system, assets and policies are ensured to maintain order and implement improvements in
response to the growing market.

Aggressive marketing approach and customer relations, regular dialogue with and active
participation in the initiatives of concerned government entities and port users, productivity and
efficiency improvements are initiated as far as commercial and legal contingencies are
concerned.

Item 2. Properties
PROPERTIES

The Company has outstanding leases and subleases covering land, buildings, and offshore
areas in Manila (Sta. Mesa), Laguna (Calamba), Batangas (Sta. Clara) and Cavite (Tanza).
Rental expenses on these properties in 2022 totaled P225.8 million. The current lease
agreements have various expiration dates with the longest term expiring in August 2043. The
leases are renewable upon mutual agreement with the lessor. There is no intention to purchase
any of the real property currently being leased.

Main Facilities
South Harbor

The Container Terminal operates a facility with 4 container berths. It has 975 meters of quay
line equipped with twin-lift capable ship-to-shore gantry cranes. Capacity was 1.03m prior to
2013 and has now been brought up to 1.4m through developments since 2013. With the
development of 2 RTG blocks in the Engineering Island Basin, the facility can accommodate
additional 408 twenty-footer ground slots (on top of existing 10,320 TGS). South Harbor
provides optimal service through modern equipment comprising of 9 ship-to-shore cranes, 28
rubber-tired gantry cranes, 5 container stackers, 16 empty handlers, and 63 internal transfer
vehicles and 8 forklifts. The Truck Holding Area can accommodate up to 100 trucks. South
Harbor has a Container Freight Station (CFS) and a Designated Examination Area (DEA) with
two pass-through container x-ray portals and backup mobile x-ray machines operated by the
Bureau of Customs. The South Harbor facility offers efficient gate access through five corridors
connecting to main roadways. The Terminal Operating System (TOS) is powered by Zodiac,
an innovative system developed inhouse by DP World in partnership with ATI which has more
advanced features to boost terminal efficiency and productivity.

The General Stevedoring Division (GSD) occupies a single pier at the Manila South Harbor with
a total of 5 berths and a beaching area for landing craft. It is equipped with annually certified
lifting gears and 19 heavy forklifts rated up to 30 tons. GSD resumed services to international
cruise vessels last February 2023.
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Inland Clearance Depot (Laguna)

Inland Clearance Depot (ICD) is a 4.2-hectare container yard facility. It has a maximum capacity
of 2,500 TEUs. It is equipped with two (2) reachstackers and one (1) unit of 3-tonner forklift to
service the logistics requirement of clients. The core activities of ICD, among others, include
the “Just-in-Time-Deliveries” for CALABARZON based consignees using the Ports of Batangas
and Manila.

Port of Batangas (Phase 1) (ATIB)

The domestic terminal has 230-meter and 185-meter berths and three general cargo berths
with lengths ranging from 130 meters to 180 meters. It has a storage area totaling 62,500
square meters (sgm) and a transit shed measuring 3,000 square meters. Additional services,
through partnerships, include operating an offshore supply base.

ATIB operates an integrated passenger terminal for high-speed inter-island ferries and RORO
vessels. It has seven fast craft berths with a total length of 540 meters and a draft of five meters.
It has a 124 meters-long ferry berth with five meters draft and six RORO berths with a total
length of 680 meters. The passenger terminal facility includes a 25,000 sgm. marshalling area
for RORO vehicles.

In 2018, ATI unveiled a modern Multilevel Car Storage Facility in ATIB, which has since
increased the port’s capacity to handle around 13,000 completely built imported car units at any
one time.

In line with government’s port modernization program, ATIB unveiled a bigger, better, and
smarter Batangas Passenger Terminal (BPT) in June 2022 with a floor area of 15,000 sgm.
BPT is equipped with world-class facilities such as an expansive and fully-airconditioned
passenger lounge, orderly ticketing offices, clean and gender-neutral restrooms, provisions for
free wi-fi and clean drinking water, and mobility features for the elderly and differently abled,
among others. It also has huge overhead digital boards advising passengers on the schedule
of departing vessels, their designated boarding gates, and other relevant announcements. The
terminal connects Luzon via Batangas to nearby islands like Mindoro, Masbate, lloilo, Boracay,
and other Visayas locations through fast-crafts and domestic roll-on/roll-off vessels calling the
port.

Batangas Container Terminal (Container Terminal “A-1”, Phase Il of the Port of
Batangas) (BCT)

The Batangas Container Terminal (“A-1", Phase 2) is the preferred international gateway
terminal for South Luzon and Calabarzon (Cavite, Laguna, Batangas, Rizal and Quezon).

ATl in 2019 has expanded BCT in response to growing market demand. BCT has a quay length
spanning 670 meters with a draft of 13 meters. BCT’s approximate area of 180,000 sgm include
the container yard, working apron, maintenance and control buildings, gates and roadways.
The terminal has a total ground slots for 2,870 twenty-foot equivalent container units. Efficient
operations are complemented by four ship-to-shore cranes, 8 rubber-tired gantry cranes and
other container handling equipment. The terminal is also equipped with 10 reefer platforms with
352 plugs, with back-up generator sets and covered by a network of CCTV cameras. The
Terminal Operating System is powered by Zodiac OPS7. In 2022, BCT implemented
CARGOES AVA+ Auto Gate System. This is the first Al-powered automated gate system.
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Tanza Container Terminal

The Tanza Container Terminal Inc. (TCTI) facility features a 4.1-hectare landside facility
supported by reach-stackers, internal transfer vehicles, fire truck among other operations-
critical equipment, and a 3.3-hectare seaside area with 150-meter jetty head/ docking facilities
with harbor cranes and a 350-meter trestle that connects the jetty head to the land area.
Batangas Supply Base

ATI operates and manages the Batangas Supply Base within the Port of Batangas under a
contract with Shell Philippines Exploration B.V. (SPEX) (succeeded by Prime Energy
Resources Development BV in 2023). The contract has been extended until February 2025.
South Cotabato Integrated Port Services Inc.

South Cotabato Integrated Port Services, Inc. (SCIPSI) operates the Makar Wharf in General
Santos City. Cargoes are loaded or unloaded using ships gears. It has a total berth length of
850 meters. SCIPSI receives and handles cargoes through the use of their various lifting
equipment with capacities ranging from 3 tons to 40 tons.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is a party to legal proceedings which arose from normal business activities.
However, Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting therefrom, has no
material effect on the Company’s financial position.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART II- OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 5. Market for Issuer’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

1. The Company’s common equity is traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange. Following are
the high and low sales prices for each quarter within the last two fiscal years:

2022 High Low
First Quarter (Jan. - Mar.) 14.40 13.36
Second Quarter (Apr. - June) 14.08 13.02
Third Quarter (July - Sept.) 13.98 13.58
Fourth Quarter (Oct. - Dec.) 13.92 12.92

2023 High Low
First Quarter (Jan. - Mar.) 13.98 13.54
Second Quarter (Apr. - June) 15.10 13.70
Third Quarter (July - Sept.) 15.58 14.00
Fourth Quarter (Oct. - Dec.) 16.00 15.00

The number of stockholders as of December 31, 2023 was 821. Of the 2,000,000,000
common shares outstanding as of December 31, 2023, a total of 739,339,502 or 36.97%

are foreign-owned.
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Top 20 stockholders as of December 31, 2023:

Name Shares %age
1 | DP World Australia (POAL) Pty. Ltd 346,466,600 17.32%
2 | ATl Holdings, Inc. 291,371,229 14.57%
3 | Pecard Group Holdings, Inc. 198,203,968 9.91%
4 | Philippine Seaport Inc. 196,911,524 9.85%
5 | PCD Filipino 158,466,973 7.92%
6 | Daven Holdings, Inc. 155,906,071 7.80%
7 | SG Holdings, Inc. 130,000,000 6.50%
8 | Kayak Holdings, Inc. 109,500,000 5.48%
9 | PCD Foreign 100,521,529 5.03%
10 | Morray Holdings, Inc. 100,000,000 5.00%
11 | Harbourside Holdings Corp. 80,000,000 4.00%
12 | Aberlour Holding Company, Inc. 71,517,463 3.58%
13 | Rescom Developers, Inc. 26,627,884 1.33%
14 | Tanco, Eusebio H. 15,257,663 0.76%
15 | Seawood Resources, Inc. 7,179,000 0.36%
16 | Granite Realty Corporation 1,000,000 0.05%
17 | Luym, Douglas 800,000 0.04%
18 | Tanco, Joseph Luym 795,000 0.04%
19 | Oben, Reginaldo &/Or Teresa Oben 784,266 0.04%
20 | Vica Services And Management Co., Inc. 600,000 0.03%

2. The cash dividends declared and paid out by the Company during the two (2) most recent

fiscal years were as follows:

Date Dividend Per Share Record Date
(PHP)
April 28, 2022 0.808 | May 25, 2022
April 27, 2023 1.00 | May 26, 2023

Under the Company’s By-Laws, dividends shall be declared only from unrestricted
earnings, and shall be payable at such time and in such manner and in such amounts as
the Board of Directors shall determine. No dividends shall be declared which would impair

the capital of the Company.

3. Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities or Exempt Securities, including recent Issuances
of Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction (within 3 years).

No unregistered or exempt securities including recent issuance of securities constituting an
exempt transaction were sold in 2023, 2022 and 2021.
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Item 6. Management Discussion and Analysis

ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Years Ended December 31

%

2023 2022 Change Change
REVENUES FROM OPERATIONS P15,451,800 P13,622,704 P1,829,096 13.4%
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUES (2,669,519) (2,468,762) 200,757 8.1%

12,782,281 11,153,942 1,628,339 14.6%

COSTS AND EXPENSES EXCLUDING

GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUES (6,628,665) (6,176,412) 452,253 7.3%
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Finance income 189,142 45,496 143,646  315.7%
Finance cost (503,531) (505,572) (2,041) -0.4%
Others - net 40,328 (529,694) (570,022) -107.6%
(274,061) (989,770) (715,709) -72.3%
CONSTRUCTION REVENUES 1,920,973 1,928,019 (7,046) -0.4%
CONSTRUCTION COSTS (1,920,973) (1,928,019) (7,046) -0.4%
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 5,879,555 3,987,760 1,891,795 47.4%
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1,441,737 959,604 482,133 50.2%
NET INCOME P4,437,818 P3,028,156 P1,409,662 46.6%
Income Attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent Company P4,435,986 P3,024,811 P1,411,175 46.7%
Non-controlling interest 1,832 3,345 (1,513) -45.2%

P4,437,818 P3,028,156 P1,409,662 46.6%

Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Parent Company p2.22 P1.51 P0.71 47.0%

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2023, of P15,451.8 million went up by 13.4% from
P13,622.7 million in 2022. Revenues from South Harbor (SH) international containerized cargo
and Batangas Container Terminal (BCT) increased from last year by 12.0% and 38.1%,
respectively, on account of higher container volume while revenues from ATI Batangas were
lower than last year by 3.8% on account of lower RORO volumes patrtly offset by higher number
of passengers.

Port authorities’ share in revenues in 2023 of P2,669.5 million increased by 8.1% from
P2,468.8 million in 2022 as a result of higher revenues subject to port authorities’ share.

Cost and expenses in 2023 amounted to P6,628.7 million, 7.3% higher than P6,176.4 million
in 2022. Depreciation and amortization in 2023 increased by 4.2% to P1,989.1 million from
P1,908.8 million in 2022. Labor costs in 2023 of P1,759.7 million were higher by 7.8% compared
to P1,633.1 million in 2022 due to salary rate increases and higher volumes. Equipment running
in 2023 went up by 3.1% to P850.1 million from P824.5 million in 2022 due to the following:
i) higher usage of equipment spare parts and consumables; and ii) higher electricity related to
higher reefer volume and higher container volume. Facilities-related expenses in 2023 went up
by 14.4% to P309.3 million from P270.3 million in 2022 due to higher repairs and maintenance
costs for buildings and surface pavements as well as higher IT costs. Insurance of
P276.0 million in 2023 increased by 29.4% compared to P213.4 million last year due to higher
insurance premiums. General transport of P212.9 million in 2023 were higher by 18.8% than of
P179.3 million in 2022 on account of higher trucking costs. Security, health, environment and
safety in 2023 of P183.3 million were higher by 9.5% compared to P167.5 million due to higher
security costs related to higher passenger volume. Marketing, commercial, and promotion in
2023 increased by 118.5% to P22.7 million from P10.4 million in 2022 due to higher advertising
cost to various clients. Other expenses in 2023 totaled P221.2 million, went up by 25.4% from
P176.4 million in 2022 due to higher general operations with corresponding revenues.

Page 10 of 50 Annual Report



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.
Securities and Exchange Commission Form 17-A

Management fees in 2023 increased by 49.5% to P259.2 million from P173.4 million in 2022
following higher earnings before tax.

Meanwhile, taxes and licenses in 2023 decreased by 8.3% to P503.5 million from P549.2 million
in 2022 due to lower permits and licenses. Rentals of P10.9 million in 2023 went down by 67.8%
compared to P33.7 million in 2022 as last year included rental of generator set for the new
Passenger Terminal Building. Professional fees in 2023 of P21.8 million went down by 14.1%
from P25.4 million last year due to lower consultancy fees. Entertainment, amusement and
recreation in 2023 of P8.8 million went down by 12.1% from P10.1 million last year.

Finance income in 2023 of P189.1 million was higher by 315.7% than P45.5 million last year
due to higher interest rates on money market placements and higher cash balance. Finance
costs in 2023 of P503.5 million were lower by 0.4% against P505.6 million last year. Others-net
was at positive P40.3 million in 2023 from negative P529.7 million in 2022 mainly due to higher
unrealized foreign exchange gain on the fair value of concession liability and accrued interest
following the appreciation of the Philippine Peso against the US Dollar.

Income before income tax in 2023 of P5,879.6 million was higher by 47.4% compared to
P3,987.8 in 2022. Provision for income tax increased by 50.2% to P1,441.7 million in 2023 from
P959.6 million in the same period last year due to higher results.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2023 increased by 46.6% to P4,437.8 million
from P3,028.2 million last year. Earnings per share increased to P2.22 in 2023 from P1.51 in
2022.

Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors
(i) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Liquidity)

e There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s, other
than those discussed in this report.

(i) Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation

e There had been no event known to management that could trigger direct or contingent
financial obligation that is material to the Company, including any default or
acceleration of an obligation.

(iii) All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period

o There had been no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the period that would address
the past and would have a material impact on future operations.

(iv) Description of any material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of such
commitments, expected sources of funds for such expenditures

e This includes the completion of the Batangas Passenger Terminal Phase 2, expansion
of existing port facilities, acquisition of additional modern equipment, implementation
of smart IT systems as well as the construction of Cavite Barge Terminal which will be
completed in 2024 using the Company’s internal funds.

Page 11 of 50 Annual Report



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.
Securities and Exchange Commission Form 17-A

v) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Sales)

e There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s
revenues from continuing operations, other than those discussed in this report.

vi) Any Significant Elements of Income or Loss (from continuing operations)

e There had been no significant elements of income that did not arise from the
Company’s continuing operations.

(vii) Causes for Any Material Changes from Period to Period of FS which shall include vertical
and horizontal analyses of any material item (5%) — refer to discussion on Results of
Operations, Financial Condition and Cash Flows.

(viii) Seasonal Aspects that has Material Effect on the FS

e There had been no seasonal factor that had a material effect on the financial condition
and results of operations.

Plans for 2024

Asian Terminals Inc. (ATI) delivers comprehensive, innovative, and sustainable ports and
logistics products and services for a robust and resilient Philippine supply-chain, building on its
experience and expertise as a leading smart trade enabler for nearly 40 years.

Anchored on its port-centric and customer-focused business philosophy, ATI continuously
enhances its trade and transportation infrastructure in Manila and Batangas which primarily
serve as premier gateways for mega-Manila and Calabarzon, respectively. ATI's strategic
capacity, capability, and technology upgrades in its containerized cargo, non-containerized
cargo, and passenger handling operations support customer growth, prepare for future market
demand, and contribute to the country’s inclusive economic growth.

In 2024, ATl is investing an estimated P2.7 billion in step with its growth strategy and in line
with its investment commitment with government through the port authorities. The capital
investment will support the expansion of seaside and landside facilities, acquisition of more
modern and greener equipment to boost its carbon reduction program, progression of its
auto-gate infrastructure and other smart IT systems, and execution of integrated logistics
solutions leveraged on ATI's port infrastructure.

In line with its long-term sustainability, ATl explores new business growth drivers, including
developing smart cargo storage spaces within and outside port zones, offering ancillary
services anchored on its core competencies and exploring new port operations locally or
overseas, given the right opportunity.

Combining the best Filipino talent and the global leadership of its strategic foreign equity
shareholder, DP World, ATl is committed to optimizing its resources, management capabilities,
and industry experience to deliver greater value to its shareholders, customers, and
communities.

In 2023, ATI invested a total of P2.2 billion capital expenditures in line with its investment
commitment with the Philippine Ports Authority. This includes the substantial completion of the
Batangas Passenger Terminal Phase 2, expansion of existing port facilities, acquisition of
additional modern equipment, implementation of smart IT systems as well as the construction
of Cavite Barge Terminal which were completed in 2023. The decrease in actual investment in
2023 of P2.2 billion versus Plans for 2023 of P5.2 billion is mainly due to delay in expansion
projects such as Pier 3 Berth Extension (due to change in design) and delay in acquisition of
cargo handling equipment (due to delay in Pier 3 Berth Extension).
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Consolidated Financial Condition

ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Amounts In Thousands)

December 31

2023 2022 Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P5,424,938 P4,600,267 P824,671 17.9%
Trade and other receivables - net 830,653 905,985 (75,332) -8.3%
Spare parts and supplies 1,066,535 1,081,456 (14,921) -1.4%
Prepaid expenses 2,776,433 2,503,263 273,170 10.9%
Total Current Assets 10,098,559 9,090,971 1,007,588 11.1%
Noncurrent Assets
Investment in an associate 65,436 55,282 10,154 18.4%
Property and equipment - net 2,511,749 2,566,211 (54,462) -2.1%
Intangible assets - net and goodwill 21,595,130 21,080,924 514,206 2.4%
Right of use asset - net 726,211 775,248 (49,037) -6.3%
Deferred tax assets - net 1,002,295 975,876 26,419 2.7%
Other noncurrent assets 73,551 86,759 (13,208) -15.2%
Total Noncurrent Assets 25,974,372 25,540,300 434,072 1.7%
TOTAL ASSETS 36,072,931 P34,631,271 P1,441,660 4.2%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables P2,934,416 P3,292,607 (358,191) -10.9%
Provisions for claims 58,873 61,044 (2,171) -3.6%
Port concession rights payable - current portion 455,254 423,028 32,226 7.6%
Income and other taxes payable 100,052 210,629 (110,577) -52.5%
Lease Liabilities - Current 46,615 118,066 (71,451) -60.5%
Total Current Liabilities 3,595,210 4,105,374 (510,164) -12.4%
Noncurrent Liabilities
Port concession rights payable - net of current portion 7,011,351 7,510,283 (498,932) -6.6%
Pension liability 236,779 207,409 29,370 14.2%
Lease liabilities - Non current 678,189 647,026 31,163 4.8%
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,926,319 8,364,718 (438,399) -5.2%
11,521,529 12,470,092 (948,563) -7.6%
Equity
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 0.0%
Additional paid in capital 264,300 264,300 - 0.0%
Retained earnings 22,276,607 19,887,619 2,388,988 12.0%
Fair value reserve (5,820) (5,820) - 0.0%
24,535,087 22,146,099 2,388,988 10.8%
Non-controlling Interest 16,315 15,080 1,235 8.2%
Total Equity 24,551,402 22,161,179 2,390,223 10.8%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P36,072,931 P34,631,271 P1,441,660 4.2%

Total assets as of December 31, 2023 increased by 4.2% to P36,073.0 million from
P34,631.3 million as of December 31, 2022. Total current assets as of December 31, 2023 up
by 11.1% to P10,098.6 million from P9,091.0 million as of December 31, 2022. Cash and cash
equivalents as of December 31, 2023 were higher by 17.9% to P5,424.9 million from
P4,600.3 million as of December 31, 2022. Trade and other receivables - net as of
December 31, 2023 down by 8.3% to P830.7 million from P906.0 million as of
December 31, 2022. Spare parts and supplies - net as of December 31, 2023 of
P1,066.5 million were lower by 1.4% compared to P1,081.5 million as of December 31, 2022
due to management cost savings initiatives. Prepaid expenses of P2,776.4 million as of
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December 31, 2023 went up by 10.9% from P2,503.3 million as of December 31, 2022 on
account of higher input taxes on PPA fees and various purchases of capital expenditures.

Total non-current assets of P25,974.4 million as of December 31, 2023, were higher by 1.7%
compared to P25,540.3 million as of December 31, 2022. Property and equipment-net
decreased by 2.1% to P2,511.7 million as of December 31, 2023 from P2,566.2 million as of
December 31, 2022. Additions to property and equipment which were not subject to the service
concession arrangement totaled P262.7 million in 2023. Intangible assets - net as of
December 31, 2023 of P21,595.1 million were higher by 2.4% compared to P21,080.9 million
as of December 31, 2022. Acquisitions of intangible assets which consisted of civil works and
cargo handling equipment that were subject of the service concession arrangement amounted
to P1,939.9 million in 2023. Right-of-use assets — net was at P726.2 million as of
December 31, 2023, was lower by 6.3% compared to P775.2 million as of December 31, 2022.
Deferred tax assets - net as of December 31, 2023 of P1,002.3 million went up by 2.7% to
P975.9 million as of December 31, 2022, pertaining to adjustment on deferred tax on unrealized
foreign exchange gain on fair value of concession liability and accrued interest. Other
noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2023 decreased by 15.2% to P73.6 million from
P86.8 million as of December 31, 2022.

Total liabilities went down by 7.6% to P11,521.5 million as of December 31, 2023 from
P12,470.1 million as of December 31, 2022. Trade and other payables as of
December 31, 2023 of P2,934.4 million were lower by 10.9% than P3,292.6 million as of
December 31, 2022. Trade and other payables are covered by agreed payment schedules.
Provision for claims went down to P58.9 million as of December 31, 2023 from P61.0 million as
of December 31, 2022. Income and other taxes payable decreased by 52.5% to P100.1 million
as of December 31, 2023 from P210.6 million as of December 31, 2022 due to higher income
before tax. Port concession rights payable (current and noncurrent) as of December 31, 2023
totaled P7,466.6 million, 5.9% lower than P7,933.3 million as of December 31, 2022. Lease
liabilities (current and noncurrent) were at P724.8 million as of December 31, 2023, decreased
by 5.3% from P765.1 million as of December 31, 2022 due to amortization of lease contracts.
Pension liability as of December 31, 2023, of P236.8 million was higher by 14.2% compared to
P207.4 million as of December 31, 2022.

Consolidated Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities increased by 3.1% to P6,067.2 million in 2023 from
P5,886.8 million in 2022 due to higher operating income and increase in trade and other
receivables.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2023 of P2,062.8 million were 25.2% lower than
P2,757.8 million in 2022 due to lower acquisitions of intangible assets and property and
equipment.

Cash used in financing activities in 2023 of P3,165.8 million was higher by 20.0% than the

P2,639.0 million in 2022 due to higher payments of cash dividends and higher payments of
concession liabilities.

Adoption of Amendments to Standards

The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards starting January 1, 2023 and
accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption did
not have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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=  Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors). To clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates, the amendments introduce a
new definition for accounting estimates, clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying
that an accounting estimate is developed to achieve the objective set out by an accounting
policy. Developing an accounting estimate includes both selecting a measurement
technique and choosing the inputs to be used when applying the chosen measurement
technique. The effects of changes in such inputs or measurement techniques are changes
in accounting estimates. The definition of accounting policies remains unchanged. The
amendments also provide examples on the application of the new definition.

The amendments will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes
in accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
in which the amendments are applied.

= Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Making Materiality Judgements). The
amendments are intended to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures.
The key amendments to PAS 1 include:

e requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies;

e clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

e clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other
events or conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The amendments to PFRS Practice Statement 2 includes guidance and additional
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures, assisting
companies to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need
to understand other information in the financial statements.

The Group reviewed the accounting policies and although the amendments did not result
in any changes to the accounting policies themselves, updates were made to the
accounting policy information disclosed in Note 4 Material Accounting Policies in certain
instances in line with the amendments.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes). The amendments clarify that the initial recognition
exemption does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences such as leases and decommissioning obligations.

For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax assets and liabilities
will be recognized from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment to retained earnings or other appropriate
component of equity at that date. For all other transactions, the amendments apply to
transactions that occur after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Amendments to Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

A number of amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after
January 1, 2023. However, the Group has not early adopted the following amended standards
in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, none of these
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are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2024

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent - 2020 amendments and Noncurrent
Liabilities with Covenants - 2022 amendments (Amendments to PAS 1). To promote
consistency in application and clarify the requirements on determining whether a liability is
current or noncurrent, the amendments:

removed the requirement for a right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period to be unconditional and instead requires that the right
must have substance and exist at the end of the reporting period;

clarified that only covenants with which a company must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current and
covenants with which the entity must comply after the reporting date do not affect a
liability’s classification at that date;

provided additional disclosure requirements for non-current liabilities subject to
conditions within twelve months after the reporting period to enable the assessment of
the risk that the liability could become repayable within twelve months; and

clarified that settlement of a liability includes transferring an entity's own equity
instruments to the counterparty, but conversion options that are classified as equity do
not affect classification of the liability as current or noncurrent.

The amendments will apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2024, with earlier application permitted. Entities that have early applied the
2020 amendments may retain application until the 2022 amendments are applied. Entities
that will early apply the 2020 amendments after issue of the 2022 amendments must apply
both amendments at the same time.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

KPIs discussed below were based on consolidated amounts as portions pertaining to the
Company’s subsidiary, ATl Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) were not material. As of end 2023:

e ATIB's total assets were only 9.7% of the consolidated total assets.

e Income before other income and expense from ATIB was only 5.2% of consolidated income
before other income and expense.?!

Manner of
Consolidated KPI | Calculation 2023 2022 Discussion
Percentage of Increased due to
Return on Capital income before higher income
P interest and tax 18.9% 16.3% before interest
Employed . :
over capital and taxes during
employed the period.
Ret_urn on Equity Percentage of net Improved due to
attributable to : : .
) income over equity 19.0% 14.1% higher net
equity holders of . )
attributable to income.
the parent

1 Income before interest and tax excludes also net unrealized foreign exchange losses and others.
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equity holders of
the parent

Ratio of current

Increased due to

(RIFR)2

relative to the total
number of hours
worked in the same
accounting period.

Current ratio assets over current 2.81:1.00 2.21:1.00 | higher current
liabilities assets.
Ratio of total assets
over equity Decreased due
Asset to equity attributable to 147:1.00 | 1.56:1.00 | ©Mgher
ratio ; increase in
equity holders of equit
the parent quity.
Ratio of total
liabilities over Decreased due
De_bt to equity eqwty'attrlbutable 0.47 - 1.00 0.56 ° 1.00 tp Iqwer
ratio to equity holders of liabilities and
the parent higher equity.
Day Sales in Gros_s trade Decreased due
X receivables over .
Receivables s 10 days 11 days to improved
revenues multiplied :
(DSR) collections.
by number of days
Net income over
Net Income revenues less Increased due to
: 34.7% 27.1% higher net
Margin government share )
. income growth.
in revenues
Number of
reportable injuries
. within a given Increased due to
Reportable Injury accounting period a higher number
Frequency Rate gp 0.87 0.52 9

of injuries.

Summary of Selected Financial Data (in millions)

Description Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 | December 31, 2022
Revenues P15,451.8 P13,622.7
Net income 4,437.8 3,028.2
Total assets 36,072.9 34,631.3
Total liabilities 11,521.5 12,470.1

2

Lost Time Injuries (LTIs) but also Medically Treated Injuries (MTIs) and Fatalities incidents.
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Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUESIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Year Ended December 31
2022 2021 Change % Change
REVENUES FROM OPERATIONS P13,622,704 P11,162,744 P2,459,960 22.0%
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUE S (2,468,762) (1,947,677) 521,085 26.8%
11,153,942 9,215,067 1,938,875 21.0%
COSTS AND EXPENSES EXCLUDING
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUES (6,176,412) (5.426,240) 750,172 13.8%
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Finance income 45,496 5,758 39,738 690.1%
Finance cost (505,572) (504,068) 1,504 0.3%
Others - net (529,694) (254,907) 274,787 107.8%
(989,770) (753,217) 236,553 31.4%
CONSTRUCTION REVENUES 1,928,019 546,474 1,381,545 252.8%
CONSTRUCTION COSTS (1,928,019) (546,474) 1,381,545 252.8%
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,987,760 3,035,610 952,150 31.4%
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current 1,137,822 716,918 420,904 58.7%
Deferred (178,218) 80,963 (259,181) -3201%
959,604 797,881 161,723 20.3%
NETINCOME P3,028,156 P2,237,729 P790,427 35.3%
Income Attributable to
Equity Holders of the Parent Company P3,024,811 P2,236,720 P788,091 35.2%
Non-controlling interest 3,345 1,009 2,336 231.5%
P3,028,156 P2,237,729 P790,427 35.3%
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Parent Company P1.51 P112 P0.39 34 8%

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2022, of P13,622.7 million went up by 22.0% from
P11,162.7 million in 2021. Revenues from South Harbor (SH) international containerized cargo
and Batangas Container Terminal (BCT) increased from last year by 19.2% and 12.7%,
respectively, on account of higher container volume while revenues from ATl Batangas were
higher than last year by 65.9% on account of higher RORO volumes and higher number of

passengers.

Port authorities’ share in revenues in 2022 of P2,468.8 million increased by 26.8% from
P1,947.7 million in 2021 as a result of higher revenues subject to port authorities’ share.
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Cost and expenses in 2022 amounted to P6,176.4 million, 13.8% higher than P5,426.2 million
in 2021. Depreciation and amortization in 2022 increased by 3.2% to P1,908.8 million from
P1,849.7 million in 2021. Labor costs in 2022 of P1,633.1 million were higher by 9.2% compared
to P1,495.2 million in 2021 due to salary rate increases and higher volumes. Equipment running
in 2022 went up by 23.9% to P824.5 million from P665.4 million in 2021 due to the following:
i) higher usage of equipment spare parts and consumables; and ii) higher fuel costs related to
higher volume and higher fuel price. Taxes and licenses in 2022 increased by 30.9% to
P549.2 million from P419.7 million in 2021 due to higher real property taxes related to additional
equipment and improvements in South Harbor and Batangas and higher business taxes.
Facilities-related expenses in 2022 went up by 26.1% to P270.3 million from P214.4 million in
2021 due to higher repairs and maintenance costs for lightings and wharves related to safety
as well as higher IT costs. Insurance of P213.4 million in 2022 increased by 7.6% compared to
P198.4 million last year due to higher insurance premiums. General transport of P179.3 million
in 2022 were higher by 53.8% than P116.5 million in 2021 on account of higher trucking costs.
Management fees in 2022 increased by 29.8% to P173.4 million from P133.6 million in 2021
following higher earnings before tax. Security, health, environment and safety in 2022 of
P167.5 million were higher by 9.8% compared to P152.5 million in due to higher security costs
related to higher passenger volume. Rentals of P33.7 million in 2022 went up by 141.7%
compared to P14.0 million in the same period last year due to rental of a generator set used in
the new Passenger Terminal Building in Batangas. Professional fees in 2022 of P25.4 million
went up by 97.0% from P12.9 million last year due to higher consultancy fees related to
Business Development Projects. Marketing, commercial, and promotion in 2022 increased by
48.1% to P10.4 million from P7.0 million due to higher advertising costs. Entertainment,
amusement and recreation in 2022 of P10.1 million went up by 191.5% from P3.5 million last
year. Other expenses in 2022 totaled P176.4 million, went up by 29.5% from P136.2 million in
2021 due to higher general operations and higher brokerage and handling fees with
corresponding revenues.

Finance income in 2022 of P45.5 million was higher by 690.1% than P5.8 million last year due
to higher interest rates on money market placements and higher cash balance. Finance costs
in 2022 of P505.6 million were higher by 0.3% against P504.1 million last year. Others-net was
at negative P529.7 million in 2022 from negative P254.9 million in 2021 mainly due to higher
unrealized foreign exchange losses on the fair value of concession liability and accrued interest
following the depreciation of the Philippine Peso against the US Dollar.

Income before income tax in 2022 of P3,987.8 million was higher by 31.4% compared to
P3,035.6 in 2021. Provision for income tax increased by 20.3% to P959.6 million in 2021 from
P797.9 million in the same period last year due to higher results.
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2022 increased by 35.3% to P3,028.2 million
from P2,237.7 million last year. Earnings per share increased to P1.51 in 2022 from P1.12 in
2021.
Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors
(i) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Liquidity)

e There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably

expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s, other

than those discussed in this report.

(i) Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation
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e There had been no event known to management that could trigger direct or contingent
financial obligation that is material to the Company, including any default or
acceleration of an obligation.

(iii) All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period

e There had been no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the period that would address
the past and would have a material impact on future operations.

(iv) Description of any material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of such
commitments, expected sources of funds for such expenditures

e This includes the completion of the Batangas Passenger Terminal Phase 1, expansion
of existing port facilities, acquisition of additional modern equipment, implementation
of smart IT systems as well as the construction of Cavite Barge Terminal which will be
completed in 2023 using the Company’s internal funds.

v) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Sales)

e There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s
revenues from continuing operations, other than those discussed in this report.

vi) Any Significant Elements of Income or Loss (from continuing operations)

e There had been no significant elements of income that did not arise from the
Company’s continuing operations.

(vii) Causes for Any Material Changes from Period to Period of FS which shall include vertical
and horizontal analyses of any material item (5%) — refer to discussion on Results of
Operations, Financial Condition and Cash Flows.

(viii) Seasonal Aspects that has Material Effect on the FS

e There had been no seasonal factor that had a material effect on the financial condition
and results of operations.

COVID-19 has impacted the business operations of the company and its offsite facilities. South
Harbor volume was impacted by the surge in Covid-19 cases in China for the first half of 2022.
In general, China port operations slowed down, and in some ports had to suspend operations
for days. Business operations continue following existing government regulations and
guidelines. The measures undertaken by the company and its offsites include the
implementation of its Business Continuity Plan for COVID-19. The company also has a
Prevention and Control Plan for COVID-19 and other communicable diseases in place as well
as emergency response procedures for situations concerning public health and safety. This
includes mandatory thermal scanning prior to entry into our gates and offices, regular
sanitization of offices and facilities, social distancing, remote modes of communication such as
teleconference and videocalls and sustained information campaign on COVID 19 and proper
personal hygiene. Aligned with the government’s COVID-19 vaccination efforts, ATl has
attained 99.9% vaccination rate for its employees through its own corporate initiatives and in
partnership with industry groups and local government units. A continuous campaign for
booster administration is likewise being undertaken. The company also continuously maintains
close coordination with relevant government entities.
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Consolidated Financial Condition

ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Amounts In Thousands)

December 31

2022 2021 Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P4,600,267 P3,954,166 P646,101 16.3%
Trade and other receivables - net 905,985 809,229 96,756 12.0%
Spare parts and supplies 1,081,456 935,478 145,978 15.6%
Prepaid expenses 2,503,263 2,149,009 354,254 16.5%
Total Current Assets 9,090,971 7,847,882 1,243,089 15.8%
Noncurrent Assets
Investment in an associate 55,282 58,373 (3,091) -5.3%
Property and equipment - net 2,566,211 1,890,714 675,497 35.7%
Intangible assets - net and goodwill 21,080,924 20,551,531 529,393 2.6%
Right of use asset - net 775,248 458,999 316,249 68.9%
Deferred tax assets - net 975,876 801,324 174,552 21.8%
Other noncurrent assets 86,759 102,037 (15,278) -15.0%
Total Noncurrent Assets 25,540,300 23,862,978 1,677,322 7.0%
TOTAL ASSETS P34,631,271 P31,710,860 P2,920,411 9.2%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables P3,292,607 P2,379,928 912,679 38.3%
Provisions for claims 61,044 63,216 (2,172) -3.4%
Port concession rights payable - current portion 423,028 368,778 54,250 14.7%
Income and other taxes payable 210,629 132,693 77,936 58.7%
Lease Liabilities - Current 118,066 85,028 33,038 38.9%
Total Current Liabilities 4,105,374 3,029,643 1,075,731 35.5%
Noncurrent Liabilities
Port concession rights payable - net of current portion 7,510,283 7,333,393 176,890 2.4%
Pension liability 207,409 241,609 (34,200) -14.2%
Lease liabilities - Non current 647,026 367,609 279,417 76.0%
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 8,364,718 7,942,611 422,107 5.3%
12,470,092 10,972,254 1,497,838 13.7%
Equity
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 0.0%
Additional paid in capital 264,300 264,300 - 0.0%
Retained earnings 19,887,619 18,467,868 1,419,751 7.7%
Fair value reserve (5,820) (5,820) - 0.0%
22,146,099 20,726,348 1,419,751 6.8%
Non-controlling Interest 15,080 12,258 2,822 23.0%
Total Equity 22,161,179 20,738,606 1,422,573 6.9%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P34,631,271 P31,710,860 P2,920,411 9.2%
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Total assets as of December 31, 2022 increased by 9.2% to P34,631.3 million from
P31,710.9 million as of December 31, 2021. Total current assets as of December 31, 2022 up
by 15.8% to P9,091.0 million from P7,847.9 million as of December 31, 2021. Cash and cash
equivalents as of December 31, 2022 were higher by 16.3% to P4,600.3 million from
P3,954.2 million as of December 31, 2021. Trade and other receivables - net as of
December 31, 2022 up by 12.0% to P906.0 million from P809.2 million as of
December 31, 2021. Spare parts and supplies - net as of December 31, 2022 of
P1,081.4 million were higher by 15.6% compared to P935.5 million as of December 31, 2021
in support of operational requirements and equipment maintenance program. Prepaid
expenses of P2,503.3 million as of December 31, 2022 went up by 16.5% from P2,149.0 million
as of December 31, 2021 on account of higher input taxes on PPA fees and various purchases
of capital expenditures.

Total non-current assets of P25,540.3 million as of December 31, 2022, were higher by 7.0%
compared to P23,863.0 million as of December 31, 2021. Property and equipment-net
increased by 35.7% to P2,566.2 million as of December 31, 2022 from P1,890.7 million as of
December 31, 2021. Additions to property and equipment which were not subject to the service
concession arrangement totaled P829.7 million in 2022. Intangible assets - net as of
December 31, 2022 of P21,080.9 million were higher by 2.6% compared to P20,551.5 million
as of December 31, 2021. Acquisitions of intangible assets which consisted of civil works and
cargo handling equipment that were subject of the service concession arrangement amounted
to P1,986.9 million in 2022. Right-of-use assets — net was at P775.2 million as of
December 31, 2022, was higher by 68.9% compared to P459.0 millon as of
December 31, 2021. Deferred tax assets - net as of December 31, 2022 of P975.9 million went
up by 21.8% to P801.3 million as of December 31, 2021, pertaining to adjustment on deferred
tax on unrealized foreign exchange loss on fair value of concession liability and accrued
interest. Other noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2022 decreased by 15.0% to
P86.8 million from P102.0 million as of December 31, 2021.

Total liabilities went up by 13.7% to P12,470.1 million as of December 31, 2022 from
P10,972.3 million as of December 31, 2021. Trade and other payables as of
December 31, 2022 of P2,379.9 million were higher by 38.3% than P2,379.9 million as of
December 31, 2021. Trade and other payables are covered by agreed payment schedules.
Provision for claims went down to P61.0 million as of December 31, 2022 from P63.2 million as
of December 31, 2021. Income and other taxes payable increased by 58.7% to P210.6 million
as of December 31, 2022 from P132.7 million as of December 31, 2021 due to higher income
before tax. Port concession rights payable (current and noncurrent) as of December 31, 2022
totaled P7,933.3 million, 3.0% higher than P7,702.2 million as of December 31, 2021. Lease
liabilities (current and noncurrent) were at P765.1 million as of December 31, 2022, increased
by 69.0% from P452.6 million as of December 31, 2021 due to renewal of lease contracts.
Pension liability as of December 31, 2022, of P207.4 million was lower by 14.2% compared to
P241.6 million as of December 31, 2021.

Consolidated Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities increased by 36.0% to P5,886.8 million in 2022 from
P4,328.7 million in 2021 due to higher operating income and increase in trade and other
payables.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2022 of P2,757.8 million were 9.3% higher than
P2,523.1 million in 2021 due to higher acquisitions of intangible assets and property and
equipment.

Cash used in financing activities in 2022 of P2,639.0 million was higher by 9.8% than the

P2,403.5 million in 2021 due to higher payments of cash dividends and payments of lease
liabilities.
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Adoption of Amendments to Standards

The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards starting January 1, 2022 and
accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption did
not have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to PAS 16,
Property, Plant and Equipment). The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment the proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset is available for use. The proceeds before intended use should
be recognized in profit or loss, together with the costs of producing those items which are
identified and measured in accordance with PAS 2, Inventories.

The amendments also clarify that testing whether an item of property, plant and equipment
is functioning properly means assessing its technical and physical performance rather than
assessing its financial performance.

For the sale of items that are not part of a company’s ordinary activities, the amendments
require the company to disclose separately the sales proceeds and related production cost
recognized in profit or loss and specify the line items in which such proceeds and costs are
included in the statement of comprehensive income. This disclosure is not required if such
proceeds and cost are presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income.

The amendments apply retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the company first applies the amendments.

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendment to PAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets). The amendments clarify that the cost of
fulfilling a contract when assessing whether a contract is onerous includes all costs that
relate directly to a contract - i.e. it comprises both incremental costs and an allocation of
other direct costs.

The amendments apply to contracts existing at the date when the amendments are first
applied. At the date of initial application, the cumulative effect of applying the amendments
is recognized as an opening balance adjustment to retained earnings or other component
of equity, as appropriate. The comparatives are not restated. Earlier application is
permitted.

Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020. This cycle of improvements contains
amendments to four standards, of which are applicable to the Group:

e Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter (Amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards). The amendment simplifies the application
of PFRS 1 for a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of PFRS later than its
parent. The subsidiary may elect to measure cumulative translation differences for all
foreign operations at amounts included in the consolidated financial statements of the
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to PFRS.

e Fees in the '10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabilities (Amendment to
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments). The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of
performing the '10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities, the fees paid
net of fees received included in the discounted cash flows include only fees paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. It applies to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment.
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Lease Incentives (Amendment to lllustrative Examples accompanying
PFRS 16, Leases). The amendment deletes from the lllustrative Example 13 the
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements to remove the potential for
confusion because the example had not explained clearly enough the conclusion as to
whether the reimbursement would meet the definition of a lease incentive in PFRS 16.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendment to PFRS 3 Business Combinations).
The amendments:

updated PFRS 3 so that it now refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework;

added a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of PAS
37  Provisions, Contingent  Liabilities and  Contingent  Assets  or
IFRIC 21 Levies, an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

added an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognize contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

Amendments to Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

A number of amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after
January 1, 2022. However, the Group has not early adopted the following new or amended
standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, none
of these are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Effective January 1, 2023

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation
of Financial Statements). To promote consistency in application and clarify the
requirements on determining whether a liability is current or non-current, the amendments:

removed the requirement for a right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period to be unconditional and instead requires that the right
must have substance and exist at the end of the reporting period;

clarified that a right to defer settlement exists only if the company complies with
conditions specified in the loan agreement at the end of the reporting period, even if
the lender does not test compliance until a later date; and

clarified that settlement of a liability includes transferring a company’s own equity
instruments to the counterparty, but conversion options that are classified as equity do
not affect classification of the liability as current or non-current.

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted.

In November 2021, the International Accounting Standards Board issued the Exposure
Draft, Non-Current Liabilities with Covenants after considering stakeholder feedback on the
December 2020 tentative agenda decision issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee
about the amendments. The exposure draft proposes to again amend IAS 1 as follows:

Conditions which the entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period
will have no effect on the classification as current or non-current.

Additional disclosure requirements will apply to non-current liabilities subject to such
conditions to enable the assessment of the risk that the liability could become
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repayable within twelve months.

e The amendments will apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2024, with earlier application permitted. Entities that have early
applied the 2020 amendments may retain application until the 2022 amendments are
applied. Entities that will early apply the 2020 amendments after issue of the 2022
amendments must apply both amendments at the same time.

e The 2022 amendments are not yet locally adopted as part of PFRS.

= Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors). To clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates, the amendments introduce a
new definition for accounting estimates, clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying
that an accounting estimate is developed to achieve the objective set out by an accounting
policy. Developing an accounting estimate includes both selecting a measurement
technique and choosing the inputs to be used when applying the chosen measurement
technique. The effects of changes in such inputs or measurement techniques are changes
in accounting estimates. The definition of accounting policies remains unchanged. The
amendments also provide examples on the application of the new definition.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the amendments are applied.

= Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements and PFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements). The
amendments are intended to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures.
The key amendments to PAS 1 include:

e requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies;

e clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

e clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other
events or conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The amendments to PFRS Practice Statement 2 include guidance and additional examples
on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments are effective from January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted.

= Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to PAS 12 Income Taxes). The amendments clarify that that the initial
recognition exemption does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.
Earlier application is permitted. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated
deferred tax assets and liabilities will be recognized from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment to
retained earnings or other appropriate component of equity at that date. For all other
transactions, the amendments apply to transactions that occur after the beginning of the
earliest period presented.
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Deferral of the local implementation of Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures). The amendments address an inconsistency between
the requirements in PFRS 10 and in PAS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves
a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized
when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets
are housed in a subsidiary.

Originally, the amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016 with early adoption permitted. However, on January 13, 2016, the FRSC
decided to postpone the effective date of these amendments until the IASB has completed
its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the
simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for

associates and joint ventures.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

KPIs discussed below were based on consolidated amounts as portions pertaining to the

Company’s subsidiary, ATl Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) were not material. As of end 2022:

e ATIB's total assets were only 9.4% of the consolidated total assets.
e Income before other income and expense from ATIB was only 11.1% of consolidated

income before other income and expense.?

Manner of
Consolidated KPI | Calculation 2022 2021 Discussion
Percentage of Increased due to
Return on Capital income bgfore higher income
P . 16.3% 13.2% before interest
Employed interest and tax over :
caital emploved and taxes during
P ploy the period.
Ret_urn on Equity Percentage of ngt Improved due to
attributable to income over equity .
) . d 14.1% 11.0% higher net
equity holders of attributable to equity income
the parent holders of the parent )
. Decreased due
Ratio of current to higher current
Current ratio assets over current 2.21:1.00 | 259 : 1.00 | 2> M9
oo liabilities.
liabilities
Ratio of total assets
oVer equit Increased due to
Asset to equity ratio T equity . 1.56:1.00 | 1.53:1.00 | increase in total
attributable to equity
assets.
holders of the parent
Ratio of total
liabilities over equit Increased due to
Debt to equity ratio : qUy ) 0.56:1.00 | 0.53:1.00 | increase in
attributable to equity liabilities
holders of the parent )

3 Income before interest and tax excludes also net unrealized foreign exchange losses and others.
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Gross trade
Day Sales in receivables over 11 davs 9 davs Increase due to
Receivables (DSR) | revenues multiplied Y Y higher revenues.
by number of days
Net income over
. revenues less Ir]creased due to
Net Income Margin . 27.1% 24.3% higher net
government share in .
income growth.
revenues
Number of Improved as a
reportable injuries result of
. within a given extensive safety
Reportable Injury accounting period campaign and
Frequency Rate . gp 0.52 0.56 mpaig
relative to the total strict
(RIFR)* . .
number of hours implementation
worked in the same of HSES
accounting period. policies.
Summary of Selected Financial Data (in millions)
Description Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Revenues P13,622.7 P11,162.7
Net income 3,028.2 2,237.7
Total assets 34,631.3 31,710.9
Total liabilities 12,470.1 10,972.2

4 RIFR is the KPI for injuries introduced in 2014 to replace LTIFR. RIFR is a more stringent KPI as it covers not only
Lost Time Injuries (LTIs) but also Medically Treated Injuries (MTIs) and Fatalities incidents.
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Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Year Ended December 31
2021 2020 Change % Change
REVENUES FROM OPERATIONS P11,162,744 P10,960,959 P201,785 1.8%
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUE S (1,947,677) (1,805,558) 142,119 7.9%
9,215,067 9,155,401 59,666 0.7%
COSTS AND EXPENSES EXCLUDING
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUES (5,426,240) (5,062,192) 364,048 71.2%
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Finance income 5,758 28,554 (22,796) -79.8%
Finance cost (504,068) (544,101) (40,033) -1.4%
Others - net (254,907) 599,339 (894,246) -142.5%
(753,217) 83,792 (837,009) -998.9%
CONSTRUCTION REVENUES 546,474 1,595,105 (1,048,631) -B55.7%
CONSTRUCTION COSTS (546,474) (1,595,105) (1,048,631) -55.7%
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,035,610 4 177,001 (1,141,391) -27.3%
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current 716,918 1,102,599 (385,681) -35.0%
Deferred 80,963 118,366 " (37,403) -31.6%
797,881 1,220,965 (423,084) -34.7%
NETINCOME P2,237,729 P2956,036 P (718,307) -24.3%
Income Attributable to
Equity Holders of the Parent Company P2,236,720 P2954904 P (718,1684) -24 3%
MNon-controlling interest 1,009 1,132 (123) -10.9%
P2,237,729 P2956,036 P (718,307) -24.3%
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Parent Company P1.12 P148 P (0.36) -24 3%

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2021 of P11,162.7 million went up by 1.8% from
P10,961.0 million in 2020. Revenues from international containerized cargo operations in South
Harbor (SH) and Batangas Container Terminal (BCT) increased from last year by 2.8% on
account of higher container volumes. Container volumes at SH and BCT increased by 3.9%
and 3.8% respectively.

Port authorities’ share in revenues in 2021 of P1,947.7 million increased by 7.9% from
P1,805.6 million in 2020 as a result of higher revenues subject to port authorities’ share.
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Cost and expenses in 2021 amounted to P5,426.2 million, 7.2% higher than P5,062.2 million
in 2020. Depreciation and amortization in 2021 increased by 6.7% to P1,849.7 million from
P1,733.7 million in 2020. Equipment running in 2021 went up by 21.4% to P665.4 million from
P548.3 million in 2020 due to the following: i) higher usage of equipment spare parts and
consumables; and ii) higher fuel costs related to higher volume and higher fuel price.
Facilities-related expenses in 2021 went up by 37.8% to P214.4 million from P155.6 million in
2020 due to higher repairs and maintenance costs for building, surface/pavement, lightings and
wharves related to safety as well as higher IT costs. Insurance of P198.4 million in 2021
increased by 37.6% compared to P144.2 million last year due to higher insurance premiums.
Labor costs in 2021 of P1,495.2 million were higher by 3.3% compared to P1,447.0 million in
2020 due to salary rate increases. Taxes and licenses in 2021 increased by 1.8% to
P419.7 million from P412.4 million in 2020 due to higher real property taxes and business taxes.
General transport of P116.5 million in 2021 were higher by 6.7% than P109.2 million in 2020
on account of higher trucking costs. Provision for claims of P7.2 million in 2021 increased by
208.2% compared to P2.3 million last year due to higher provision for claims. Entertainment,
amusement and recreation in 2021 of P3.5 million went up by 49.7% from P2.3 million last year.
Other expenses in 2021 totaled P136.2 million, went up by 22.8% from P111.0 million in 2020
due to higher general operations.

Meanwhile, management fees in 2021 decreased by 27.5% to P133.6 million from
P184.4 million in 2020 following lower earnings before tax. Security, health, environment and
safety in 2021 of P152.5 million were lower by 8.7% compared to P167.0 million in due to lower
security costs related to lower passenger volume and continued cost savings initiatives.
Professional fees in 2021 of P12.9 million went down by 7.6% from P14.0 million last year due
to lower consultancy fees related to Business Development Projects. Marketing, commercial,
and promotion in 2021 decreased by 27.7% to P7.0 million from P9.7 million due to lower
advertising costs. Rentals of P14.0 million in 2021 declined by 33.9% compared to P21.1 million
in the same period last year due to lower rental costs of generator sets and shuttles to services
to employees during pandemic.

Finance income amounted to P5.8 million in 2021, 79.8% down from P28.6 million in 2020 due
to lower interest rates for money market placements and lower cash balance. Finance costs in
2021 of P504.1 million were lower by 7.4% compared to P544.1 million in 2020. Others-net was
lower was negative P254.9 million in 2021 from P599.4 million in 2020 mainly due to unrealized
foreign exchange losses on fair value of concession liability and accrued interest following the
depreciation of the Philippine Peso against the US Dollar.

Income before income tax in 2021 of P3,035.6 million was lower by 27.3% compared to
P4,177.0 in 2020. Provision for income tax decreased by 34.7% to P797.9 million in 2021 from
P1,221.0 million in the same period last year due to lower results and decrease in income tax
rate to 25% due to the implementation of CREATE LAW

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2021 decreased by 24.3% to P2,237.7 million
from P2,956.0 million last year. Earnings per share was down to P1.12 in 2021 from P1.48 in
2020.
Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors
(i) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Liquidity)

e There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably

expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s, other
than those discussed in this report.
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(i) Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation

e There had been no event known to management that could trigger direct or contingent
financial obligation that is material to the Company, including any default or
acceleration of an obligation.

(iii) All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period

e There had been no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the period that would address
the past and would have a material impact on future operations.

(iv) Description of any material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of such
commitments, expected sources of funds for such expenditures

e This includes the construction of the Batangas Passenger Terminal Phase 1,
expansion of existing port facilities, acquisition of additional modern equipment,
implementation of smart IT systems as well as the construction of Cavite Barge
Terminal using the Company’s internal funds.

(v) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Sales)

e There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s
revenues from continuing operations, other than those discussed in this report.

(vi) Any Significant Elements of Income or Loss (from continuing operations)

e There had been no significant elements of income that did not arise from the
Company’s continuing operations.

(vii) Causes for Any Material Changes from Period to Period of FS which shall include vertical
and horizontal analyses of any material item (5%) — refer to discussion on Results of
Operations, Financial Condition and Cash Flows.

(viii) Seasonal Aspects that has Material Effect on the FS

e There had been no seasonal factor that had a material effect on the financial condition
and results of operations.

COVID-19 has impacted the business operations of the company and its offsite facilities.
Business operations continue following existing government regulations and guidelines. The
measures undertaken by the company and its offsites include the implementation of its
Business Continuity Plan for COVID-19. The company also has a Prevention and Control Plan
for COVID-19 and other communicable diseases in place as well as emergency response
procedures for situations concerning public health and safety. This includes: mandatory thermal
scanning prior to entry into our gates and offices, thermal imaging equipment deployed in areas
where there is a heavy volume of people, issuance of personal protective equipment, work from
home and four-day work week, regular sanitization of offices and facilities, social distancing,
remote modes of communication such as teleconference and videocalls and sustained
information campaign on COVID 19 and proper personal hygiene. The company also
continuously maintains close coordination with relevant government entities.
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Consolidated Financial Condition

ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Amounts In Thousands)

December 31

2021 2020 Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P3,954,166 P4,437,874 P (483,708) -10.9%
Trade and other receivables - net 809,229 624,516 184,713 29.6%
Spare parts and supplies 935,478 890,289 45,189 5.1%
Prepaid expenses 2,149,009 1,731,317 417,692 24.1%
Total Current Assets 7,847,882 7,683,996 163,886 2.1%
Noncurrent Assets
Investment in an associate 58,373 45,115 13,258 29.4%
Property and equipment - net 1,890,714 1,198,815 691,899 57.7%
Intangible assets - net and goodwill 20,551,531 20,226,591 324,940 1.6%
Right of use asset - net 458,999 615,510 (156,511) -25.4%
Deferred tax assets - net 801,324 880,505 (79,181) -9.0%
Other noncurrent assets 102,037 173,875 (71,838) -41.3%
Total Noncurrent Assets 23,862,978 23,140,411 722,567 3.1%
TOTAL ASSETS P31,710,860 P30,824,407 P886,453 2.9%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables P2,379,928 P2,114,850 265,078 12.5%
Provisions for claims 63,216 58,024 5,192 8.9%
Port concession rights payable - current portion 368,778 327,521 41,257 12.6%
Income and other taxes payable 132,693 311,097 (178,404) -57.3%
Lease Liabilities - Current 85,028 134,452 (49,424) -36.8%
Total Current Liabilities 3,029,643 2,945,944 83,699 2.8%
Noncurrent Liabilities
Port concession rights payable - net of current portion 7,333,393 7,312,248 21,145 0.3%
Pension liability 241,609 188,090 53,519 28.5%
Lease liabilities - Non current 367,609 465,323 (97,714) -21.0%
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,942,611 7,965,661 (23,050) -0.3%
10,972,254 10,911,605 60,649 0.6%
Equity
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 0.0%
Additional paid in capital 264,300 264,300 - 0.0%
Retained earnings 18,467,868 17,642,548 825,320 4.7%
Fair value reserve (5,820) (5,820) - 0.0%
20,726,348 19,901,028 825,320 4.1%
Non-controlling Interest 12,258 11,774 484 4.1%
Total Equity 20,738,606 19,912,802 825,804 4.1%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P31,710,860 P30,824,407 P886,453 2.9%
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Total assets as of December 31, 2021 increased by 2.9% to P31,710.9 million from
P30,824.4 million as of December 31, 2020. Total current assets as of December 31, 2021 up
by 2.1% to P7,847.9 million from P7,684.0 million as of December 31, 2020. Cash and cash
equivalents as of December 31, 2021 were lower by 10.9% to P3,954.2 million from
P4,437.9 million as of December 31, 2020. Trade and other receivables - net as of
December 31, 2021 up by 29.6% to P809.2 million from P624.5 million as of
December 31, 2020. Spare parts and supplies - net as of December 31, 2021 of P935.5 million
were higher by 5.1% compared to P890.3 million as of December 31, 2020 in support of
operational requirements and equipment maintenance program. Prepaid expenses of
P2,149.0 million as of December 31, 2021 went up by 24.1% from P1,731.3 million as of
December 31, 2020 on account of higher input taxes on PPA fees and various purchases and
advance payment on real property taxes for 2021 for South Harbor.

Total non-current assets of P23,863.0 million as of December 31, 2021, were higher by 3.1%
compared to P23,140.4 million as of December 31, 2020. Property and equipment-net
increased by 57.7% to P1,890.7 million as of December 31, 2021 from P1,198.8 million as of
December 31, 2020. Additions to property and equipment which were not subject of the service
concession arrangement totaled P897.1 million in 2021. Intangible assets - net as of
December 31, 2021 of P20,551.5 million were higher by 1.6% compared to P20,226.6 million
as of December 31, 2020. Acquisitions of intangible assets which consisted of civil works and
cargo handling equipment that were subject of the service concession arrangement amounted
to P1,730.6 million in 2021. Right-of-use assets — net was at P459.0 million as of
December 31, 2021, was lower by 25.4% compared to P615.5 million as of December 31, 2020.
Deferred tax assets - net as of December 31, 2021 of P801.3 million went down by 9.0% to
P880.5 million as of December 31, 2020, pertaining to adjustment on deferred tax on unrealized
foreign exchange loss on fair value of concession liability and accrued interest. Other
noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2021 decreased by 41.3% to P102.0 million from
P173.9 million as of December 31, 2020.

Total liabilities went up by 0.6% to P10,972.3 million as of December 31, 2021 from
P10,911.6 million as of December 31, 2020. Trade and other payables as of
December 31, 2021 of P2,379.9 million were higher by 12.5% than P2,114.9 million as of
December 31, 2020. Trade and other payables are covered by agreed payment schedules.
Provision for claims went up to P63.2 million as of December 31, 2021 from P58.0 million as of
December 31, 2020. Income and other taxes payable decreased by 57.3% to P132.7 million as
of December 31, 2021 from P311.1 million as of December 31, 2020 due to lower income tax
rate from 30% to 25%. Port concession rights payable (current and noncurrent) as of
December 31, 2021 totaled P7,702.2 million, 8.1% higher than P7,639.8 million as of
December 31, 2020 due to payments of government share in 2020. Lease liabilities (current
and noncurrent) were at P452.6 million as of December 31, 2021, decreased by 32.5% from
P599.8 million as of December 31, 2020. Pension liability as of December 31, 2021, of
P241.6 million was higher by 28.5% compared to P188.1 million as of December 31, 2020.

Consolidated Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities increased by 38.9% to P4,328.7 million in 2021 from
P3,116.1 million in 2020 despite lower operating income due to increase in trade and other
payables and lower income taxes paid.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2021 of P2,522.6 million was 36.6% higher than

P1,847.3 million in 2020 due to higher acquisitions of intangible assets and property and
equipment.
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Cash used in financing activities in 2021 of P2,403.5 million was higher by 3.5% than the
P2,322.7 million in 2020 due to higher payments of port concession and payments of lease
liabilities.

Adoption of Amendments to Standards

The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards starting January 1, 2021 and
accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption did
not have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

= COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to PFRS 16, Leases). The
amendments introduce an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee
accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of COVID-19. A lessee that
applies the practical expedient is not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions
are lease modifications, and accounts for them in accordance with other applicable
guidance. The practical expedient applies if:

e the revised consideration is substantially the same or less than the original
consideration;

e the reduction in lease payments relates to payments due on or before
June 30, 2021; and

e no other substantive changes have been made to the terms of the lease.

Lessees applying the practical expedient are required to disclose that fact, whether they
have applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions and, if not, the nature
of the contracts to which they have applied the practical expedient; and the amount
recognized in profit or loss for the reporting period arising from application of the practical
expedient. No practical expedient is provided for lessors.

Amendments to Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

A number of amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after
January 1, 2021. However, the Group has not early adopted the following new or amended
standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, none
of these are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Effective April 1, 2021

= COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to PFRS 16,
Leases). The amendment extends the practical expedient introduced in the 2020
amendment which simplified how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct
consequence of COVID-19, permitting lessees to apply the practical expedient to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally
due on or before June 30, 2022.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021.
Earlier application is permitted. A lessee applies the amendments retrospectively,
recognizing the cumulative effect of the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate. The adoption is
mandatory for lessees that chose to apply the practical expedient introduced by the 2020
amendments and may result in reversal of lease modifications that was ineligible for the
practical expedient under the 2020 amendments, but becomes eligible as a result of the
extension.

Effective January 1, 2022
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= Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to PAS 16,
Property, Plant and Equipment). The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment the proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset is available for use. The proceeds before intended use should
be recognized in profit or loss, together with the costs of producing those items which are
identified and measured in accordance with PAS 2, Inventories.

The amendments also clarify that testing whether an item of property, plant and equipment
is functioning properly means assessing its technical and physical performance rather than
assessing its financial performance.

For the sale of items that are not part of a company’s ordinary activities, the amendments
require the company to disclose separately the sales proceeds and related production cost
recognized in profit or loss and specify the line items in which such proceeds and costs are
included in the statement of comprehensive income. This disclosure is not required if such
proceeds and cost are presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments apply retrospectively,
but only to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the company
first applies the amendments.

= Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendment to PAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets). The amendments clarify that the cost of
fulfilling a contract when assessing whether a contract is onerous includes all costs that
relate directly to a contract - i.e., it comprises both incremental costs and an allocation of
other direct costs.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 to contracts existing at the date when the amendments are first applied.
At the date of initial application, the cumulative effect of applying the amendments is
recognized as an opening balance adjustment to retained earnings or other component of
equity, as appropriate. The comparatives are not restated. Earlier application is permitted.

= Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020. This cycle of improvements contains
amendments to three standards:

e Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter (Amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards). The amendment simplifies the application
of PFRS 1 for a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of PFRS later than its
parent. The subsidiary may elect to measure cumulative translation differences for all
foreign operations at amounts included in the consolidated financial statements of the
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to PFRS.

o Fees inthe '10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabilities (Amendment to
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments). The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of
performing the '10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities, the fees paid
net of fees received included in the discounted cash flows include only fees paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

e Lease Incentives (Amendment to lllustrative Examples accompanying
PFRS 16, Leases). The amendment deletes from the lllustrative Example 13 the
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements to remove the potential for
confusion because the example had not explained clearly enough the conclusion as to
whether the reimbursement would meet the definition of a lease incentive in PFRS 16.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022. Earlier application is permitted.
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Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendment to PFRS 3 Business Combinations).
The amendments:

e updated PFRS 3 so that it now refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework.

e added a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies,
an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to
identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

e added an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognize contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

The amendments are effective for business combinations occurring in reporting periods
starting on or after January 1, 2022. Earlier application is permitted.

Effective January 1, 2023

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation
of Financial Statements). To promote consistency in application and clarify the
requirements on determining whether a liability is current or non-current, the amendments:

e removed the requirement for a right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period to be unconditional and instead requires that the right
must have substance and exist at the end of the reporting period.

o clarified that a right to defer settlement exists only if the company complies with
conditions specified in the loan agreement at the end of the reporting period, even if
the lender does not test compliance until a later date; and

e clarified that settlement of a liability includes transferring a company’s own equity
instruments to the counterparty, but conversion options that are classified as equity do
not affect classification of the liability as current or non-current.

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors). To clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates, the amendments introduce a
new definition for accounting estimates, clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying
that an accounting estimate is developed to achieve the objective set out by an accounting
policy. Developing an accounting estimate includes both selecting a measurement
technique and choosing the inputs to be used when applying the chosen measurement
technique. The effects of changes in such inputs or measurement techniques are changes
in accounting estimates. The definition of accounting policies remains unchanged. The
amendments also provide examples on the application of the new definition.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the amendments are applied.
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= Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements and PFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements). The
amendments are intended to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures.
The key amendments to PAS 1 include:

e requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies.

o clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

e clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other
events or conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The amendments to PFRS Practice Statement 2 include guidance and additional examples
on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments are effective from January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted.

= Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to PAS 12 Income Taxes). The amendments clarify that that the initial
recognition exemption does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.
Earlier application is permitted. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated
deferred tax assets and liabilities will be recognized from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment to
retained earnings or other appropriate component of equity at that date. For all other
transactions, the amendments apply to transactions that occur after the beginning of the
earliest period presented.

Deferral of the local implementation of Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

e Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures). The amendments address an inconsistency between
the requirements in PFRS 10 and in PAS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a
business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when
a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed
in a subsidiary.

Originally, the amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. However, on January 13, 2016, the FRSC
decided to postpone the effective date of these amendments until the IASB has completed its
broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification
of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
ventures.
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Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

KPIs discussed below were based on consolidated amounts as portions pertaining to the
Company’s subsidiary, ATl Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) were not material. As of end 2021

e ATIB’s total assets were only 9.8% of the consolidated total assets.

¢ Income before other income and expense from ATIB was only 5.8% of consolidated income
before other income and expense.®

(RIFR)®

accounting period
relative to the total

Manner of
Consolidated KPI | Calculation 2021 2020 Discussion
Decreased due to
Percentage of )
) lower income before
Return on Capital Income before interest and taxes
interest and tax 13.2% 16.0% . )
Employed . during the period and
over capital hiah ital
employed igher capita
employed.
Return on Equity Percentage of net
attributable to Income over Decreased due to
: equity attributable 11.5% 15.5% :
equity holders of . lower net income.
to equity holders
the parent
of the parent
Ratio of current Decreased due to
Current ratio assets over 2.59:1.00 | 2.61:1.00 | higher current
current liabilities liabilities.
Ratio of total
. assets over equity
Assetto equity | iributable to 1.53:1.00 | 1.55: 1.00 | Decreased dueto
ratio ; higher equity.
equity holders of
the parent
Ratio of total
. liabilities over
Debt to equity equity attributable | 0.53:1.00 | 0.55: 1,00 | IMProved dueto
ratio . higher equity.
to equity holders
of the parent
Gross trade
Days Sales in receivables over Increased due to
Receivables revenues 9 days 6 days higher trade
(DSR) multiplied by receivables.
number of days
Net income over
Net Income revenues less 24.3% 32 3% Decreaseq due to
Margin government share lower net income.
in revenues
Number of
Reportable Injury reportable injuries Decreased due to
Frequency Rate within a given 0.56 0.59 lower number of

injuries.

5 Income before interest and tax excludes also net unrealized foreign exchange losses and others.

6

RIFR is the KPI for injuries introduced in 2014 to replace LTIFR. RIFR is a more stringent KPI as it covers not only

Lost Time Injuries (LTIs) but also Medically Treated Injuries (MTIs) and Fatalities incidents.

Page 37 of 50 Annual Report




ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.
Securities and Exchange Commission Form 17-A

number of hours
worked in the
same accounting

period.
Summary of Selected Financial Data (in millions)

Description Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2021 | December 31, 2020
Revenues P11,162.7 P10,961.0
Net income 2,237.7 2,956.0
Total assets 31,710.9 30,824.4
Total liabilities 10,972.3 10,911.6

Information on Independent Accountant and External Audit Fees

The appointment of R.G. Manabat & Co. as the external auditors of Asian Terminals, Inc. for
2023 was approved by the stockholders during the annual meeting held on April 27, 2023. The
same external auditors are being recommended for re-election at the scheduled annual meeting
of the Stockholders.

The Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance and SRC Rule 68, provide that the
Company’s external auditor shall either be rotated or the handling partner be changed every
five (5) years or earlier, subject to the provisions of SRC Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (ix) on the
two-year cooling off period. In compliance with the abovementioned provisions,
Mr. Vernilo G. Yu replaced Ms. Alicia S. Columbres as signing partner effective
November 8, 2023. Ms. Columbres has been the signing partner since November 8, 2018.

The aggregate fees for audit services rendered were as follows:

2023 2022
(P’000) (P’000)
Audit Fees
3,666.7 3,204.8

Audit Fees are for professional services rendered in connection with the audit of our annual
financial statements and services provided by the external auditors in connection with statutory
and regulatory filings or engagements.

There was no engagement for tax or other services with R.G. Manabat & Co. in 2023 and 2022.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy

The Audit Committee pre-approves and recommends to the Board of Directors all audit and
non-audit services to be rendered by the external auditors as well as the engagement fees and
other compensation to be paid. When deciding whether to approve these items, the Audit
Committee takes into account whether the provision of any non-audit service is compatible with
the independence standards under the guidelines of the SEC. To assist in this undertaking, the
Audit Committee actively engages in a dialogue with the external auditors with respect to any
disclosed relationships or services that may impact their objectivity and independence and, if
appropriate, recommends that the Board take appropriate action to ensure their independence.

Item 7. Financial Statements

The audited consolidated financial statements are herein attached as Exhibit 1.

Page 38 of 50 Annual Report



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.
Securities and Exchange Commission Form 17-A

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosures

There was no change in or disagreement with external auditors on accounting and financial
disclosures.

PART IlI-CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer

As of December 31, 2023, the following were the directors and executive officers of Asian
Terminals Inc.

Name Age Position
Glen C. Hilton 55 Chairman
Eusebio H. Tanco 75 Director/President
William Wassaf Khoury Abreu 45 Director
Monico V. Jacob 78 Director
Teodoro L. Locsin, Jr. 75 Independent Director
Felino A. Palafox, Jr. 74 Director
Artemio V. Panganiban 87 Independent Director
Zissis Jason Varsamidis 48 Director

Senior Vice President for Commercial
Sean James L. Perez 58 and Outports
_ Corporate Secretary and Vice President
Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr. 64 for Business Support Services
Treasurer/ Vice President for

Jose Tristan P. Carpio 55 Finance/CEO

A brief background of the current Company’s Board of Directors and Executive Officers is as
follows (brief description of their respective business experience for the past five (5) years
included):

Glen Christopher Hilton, 55, was a former director of ATI from 2008 to 2013 and was
elected again in August 2019. He is the Chairman of the Board since November 2020 and
the current CEO and Managing Director of DP World, Asia Pacific. He was the former CEO
of Port of Tanjung Pelepas, Malaysia (2013 to 2016) and VP and Managing Director of DP
World South East Asia (2008- 2013), Executive Director of DP World Caucedo (2006- 2008)
and the General Manager of DP World Adelaide (2001 to 2006).

Eusebio H. Tanco, 74, Filipino, is the President of the Company from 1995 to 2001 and
2007 to present. He is the Chairman of STI Education Systems Holdings, Inc. (formerly
JTH Davies Holdings, Inc., since 2010), DigiPlus Interactive Corp. (formerly Leisure
Resorts World Corporation, since 2019 and as director since 2011), Fibertex (since 2012)
Mactan Electric Company (since 1988), - Eximious Holdings, Inc. (formerly Capital
Managers and Advisors, Inc., since 1995), GROW Vite (since 2014), Venture Securities,
Inc.(since 1980), IACADEMY (since 2002), and the chairman emeritus of STI Education
Services Group, Inc. (since 2022) and director (since 2003). He is Chairman and President
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of Prime Power Holdings (since 1999), Prudent Resources, Inc. (since 1999), Philippines
First Insurance Co. (since 1973), First Optima Realty Corporation (since 1980); and CEO
of Classic Finance, Inc. (since 2004) and director (since 1978).

He is also the president of, Bloom with Looms Logistics, Inc. (formerly STMI Logistics, Inc.,
since 1988), Total Consolidated Asset Management Inc. (TCAMI) (since 2006), Eujo
Philippines, Inc. (since 1986), Tantivy Holdings, Inc (formerly Insurance Builders Inc.,since
1979) Mar-Bay Homes Inc. (since 1980) , Cement Center, Inc. (since 1983), Biolim
Holdings and Management Corp. (formerly Rescom Developers, Inc ,since 1979). In
addition, he is a Director of Philhealthcare Inc. (since 2009), Philplans First, Inc. (since
2017), Philippine Life Financial Assurance (formerly Asian Life Financial Assurance, since
2000), STI West Negros University (since 2013), United Coconut Chemicals, Inc. (since
1995), M.B. Paseo (since 1980, Maestro Holdings, Inc. (formerly STI Investments, since
2007), Philippine Racing Club (since 2011)-. His professional associations include the
Philippines-Thailand Business Council, Philippines-UAE Business Council, and the
Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry. He obtained his Master of Science in
Economics from the London School of Economics and Political Science. He has been a
member of the ATl Board since 1993.

William Wassaf Khoury Abreu, 45, a national of Dominican Republic. Mr. Khoury was
elected by the Board in the regular Board Meeting in November 2021. He is currently the
Vice President for Ports & Terminals, South East Asia, APAC for DP World. He was the
Executive Vice President of ATl from March 2018 up to November 2021, the former Director
of PT Terminal Petikemas Surabaya (TPS) Indonesia (from 2014 to 2018), the CEO of DP
World-Saigon Premier Container Terminal from 2010 to 2014, the Operations Director of
DP World Korea from 2009 to 2010 and held various management positions at DP World
Caucedo, Dominican Republic from 2003 to 2009 and CSX World Terminals (Caucedo)
from 2001 to 2003. William holds an Industrial Engineering degree from Pedro Henriquez
Urefia University Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic, a Post Graduate Diploma in Port
and Transport Management from IMTA-STC in Rotterdam, The Netherlands and has
undertaken executive management programs at Michigan Ross School of Business,
London Business School, and Case Western Reserve University.

Monico Jacob, 78, Filipino, is currently the President of STI Education Systems Holdings,
Inc. (2011), Chairman of STI West Negros University (since 2019) and the CEO and
Vice-Chairman of the STI Education Services Group (since 2016). He is the Chairman of
Rosehills Memorial Management, Inc. (since 2014), Philippine Life Financial Assurance,
Inc. (PhilLife, since 2016), Global Resource for Outsourced Workers, Inc. (GROW, Inc.,
since 2000), Total Consolidated Asset Management Inc. (since 2006), GROW-Vite (since
2014), and TechZone Philippines, Inc. (since 2021). He is currently a director of IACADEMY,
(since 2010) and PhilCare, (since 2012). Prior to his current engagements, he was the
General Manager of the National Housing Authority (NHA) (from 1989 to 1991); Chairman
and CEO of Petron Corporation from 1991 to 1998 and Philippine National Oil Company
(PNOC) and all of its subsidiaries from 1991 to 1994; and CEO of the Home Development
Mutual Fund (PAG-IBIG Fund) from 1988 to 1989. Mr. Jacob also served as an Associate
Commissioner for the Securities and Exchange Commission in 1986. He is a member of the
Integrated Bar of the Philippines and the Management Association of the Philippines (MAP)
and served as its President in 1998. Mr. Jacob finished his Bachelor of Arts degree with a
Major in Liberal Arts from the Ateneo de Naga University in 1966 and his Bachelor of Laws
degree from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1971. He joined the Board in 2009.
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Felino A. Palafox, Jr., 74, Filipino, has more than 52 years of experience in the field of
architecture and 50 years in planning. He is the Principal Architect-Urban Planner and
Founder of Palafox Associates which was founded in 1989. For more than 35 years, he led
and managed his firm in carrying out the planning of more than 54 billion square meters of
land area and the architecture of more than 20 million square meters of building floor area
in 40 countries. He is the President of FIABCI (International Real Estate Federation)
Philippines for 2015. He is also an international associate of the American Institute of
Architects, country leader of the Council on Tall Buildings and Urban Habitat, member of
the U.S. Green Building, Urban Land Institute, Congress for the New Urbanism, American
Planning Assaociation, and the International Council of Shopping Centers, all U.S.-based.
He was formerly the Chairman of the National Real Estate Association (NREA). He was the
past President of the Philippine Institute of Environmental Planners and the Management
Association of the Philippines. He is a Fellow of the United Architects of the Philippines
(UAP). He finished his Bachelor of Science in Architecture in 1972 from the University of
Santo Tomas, Manila, and his Master in Environmental Planning from the University of the
Philippines as a scholar of the United Nations Development Program (UNDP), in 1974. He
took up the Advanced Management Development Program for Real Estate in 2003, and 7
other continuing education courses, from Harvard University. Architect Palafox is a
registered APEC Architect and a recipient of several local and international awards. He
joined the Board in 2009.

Artemio V. Panganiban, 87, Filipino. He served as Chief Justice of the Philippines from
2005 to 2006 and as Associate Justice from 1995 to 2005. Prior to his appointment to the
Supreme Court, he was a senior partner at Panganiban Benitez Parlade Africa and Barinaga
Law Offices from 1963 to 1995. He is a recipient of over 250 prestigious awards and
recognitions from various associations and groups for his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic leader,
Catholic lay worker, entrepreneur and youth leader. Among such awards is the
“Renaissance Jurist of the 215t Century” given by the Supreme Court of the Philippines upon
his retirement in 2006. Chief Justice Panganiban holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Law from the
Far Eastern University where he graduated cum laude. He was a 6™ placer in the 1960 Bar
Examinations. He was also conferred Doctor of Laws (Honoris Causa) by several
universities. At present, he writes a column for the Philippine Daily Inquirer. He sits as an
independent director in the following companies aside from Asian Terminals, Inc.; GMA
Network, Inc. (2007-present), First Philippine Holdings Corp. (2007-present), Metro Pacific
Investments Corp. (2007-present), Manila Electric Company (2008-present), Robinsons
Land Corp. (2008-present), GMA Holdings, Inc. (2009-present), Petron Corporation
(2010-present), Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company (2013-present). He is also
a non-executive Director at Jollibee Foods Corporation (2012-present), Senior Adviser,
Metrobank (2007 to present), Member of the Advisory Council, Bank of the Philippine
Islands (2016-present) and Adviser, DoubleDragon Properties Corp. (2014-present). He is
the Chairman of Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the Company’s
Compensation Committee and Nomination Committee. He has been an independent
director of Asian Terminals, Inc. since April 22, 2010.

Teodoro L. Locsin Jr., 75, Filipino, was the former independent director of ATI from 2010
to 2018 when he stepped down to assume a position in the government as the Secretary of
Foreign Affairs. He is currently the Philippine Ambassador to the United Kingdom of Great
Britain and Northern Ireland. Prior to this, in 2017, he was appointed and took his oath as
Philippine Representative to the United Nations based in New York, USA. He also served
as member of the House of Representatives from 2001 to 2010. Atty. Locsin Jr. obtained
his Bachelor of Law from the Ateneo de Manila University and Master of Laws from Harvard
University. He is the Chairman of Audit Committee and a member of the Corporate
Governance Committee and Executive Committee.
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Zissis Jason Varsamidis, 48, Australian, is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of DP World
Asia Pacific & Australasia. Prior to this, Mr. Varsamidis was the CFO of DP World Australia
from 2013 to March 2021 and held various positions in the company prior to that
appointment. He has a degree in Commerce from the University of Wollongong, holds a
Diploma in Terminals Operations Management from US Merchant Marine Academy and
Masters in Applied Finance & Investment from the Securities Institute of Australia. He is also
a Certified Public Accountant (CPA). Mr. Varsamidis was elected in the special board
meeting held on June 30, 2021, replacing Mr. Ahmad Yousef Ahmad Alhassan Al Simreen,
who resigned effective on same date.

Sean James L. Perez, 58, Filipino, is the Senior Vice-President for Commercial and
Outports since November 2017. He was the Vice-President for Marketing and Commercial
from October 2008 to October 2017, Vice President for Domestic and Outports from
January 2007 to September 2008, Vice-President for Domestic/Marketing and Commercial
Services (2004-2006). He has held various positions in the Company from the position of
being the Terminal Manager of Batangas, Container Division and General Stevedoring
Division for South Harbor to Vice-President for Operations, Marketing and Outports. He
obtained his degree in Bachelor of Arts, Major in Economics from the University of Santo
Tomas. He has been with the Company since 1996.

Jose Tristan P. Carpio, 55, Filipino, is the Vice-President for Finance and Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) of the Company since July 2012. He joined ATI in 2000 as Assistant Vice
President for Treasury and Special Projects. Prior to joining ATI, he was the Assistant Vice
President for Capital Markets of All Asia Capital & Trust Corporation from 1997 to 2000.
Mr. Carpio obtained his degree in B.S. Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila
University.

Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr., 64, Filipino, is the Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer
since 1997, the Vice President for Business Support Services and Data Protection Officer
(since 2017). He has held various positions in the Company handling Administration, Legal,
Human Resources, Procurement, Industrial Relations, HSES, Insurance and Claims, Risk
Management and Corporate Communications. He was a Law Partner of Diaz, Corvite and
Associates. He is a member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines. He obtained his
Bachelor of Laws from the Ateneo de Manila University. He has been with the Company
since 1989.

All the directors serve for a term equivalent to one (1) year from election or for the unexpired
portion of the term of his predecessor.
Family Relationships

There are no family relationships among the directors and officers listed up to the fourth civil
degree of consanguinity or affinity.

All employees are expected to make reasonable contribution to the success of the business of
the Company.

The Company has no knowledge of events occurring during the past five years that are material
to an evaluation of the ability and integrity of the above-named directors and officers.
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Pending Legal Proceedings

The Company has no knowledge that the current members of its Board of Directors, or its
executive officers have been involved during the last five years up to the present in any legal
case affecting/involving themselves and/or their properties before any court of law or
administrative body in the Philippines or elsewhere, which are material to an evaluation of the
ability or integrity of any of the said directors or executive officers. Also, during the last five
years, the said persons have not been: a) involved in any bankruptcy petition, b) convicted by
final judgment of any offense punishable by the laws of the Philippines or of the laws of any
other country, c) subjected to any order, judgment or decree, and d) violated any securities or
commodities law.

Item 10. Executive Compensation

1) The total annual compensation of the Company’s President and the most 4 highly
compensated officers amounted to P62 million in 2023 and P59 million in 2022.

The projected annual compensation in 2024 is P64 million. The total annual compensation
of all other officers and directors in 2023 amounted to P138 million and in 2022 amounted
to P128 million. The projected annual compensation in 2024 is P149 million.

(in millions of pesos)
Name and Principal Position Year Salary | Bonus | Total
Eusebio H. Tanco
President and CEO
Sean Perez
Senior Vice President for Marketing and Commercial
Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr.
Vice President for Business Support Services
Jose Tristan Carpio
Vice President For Finance/CFO
Adrian Edward A. Baking
Vice President Business Development and Legal
2024
CEO and most 4 highly compensated officers (Projected) 52 12 64
2024
All other officers and directors as a group unnamed | (Projected) 117 32 149
(in millions of pesos)
Name and Principal Position Year Salary | Bonus | Total
Eusebio H. Tanco
President and CEO
Sean Perez
Senior Vice President for Marketing and Commercial
Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr.
Vice President for Business Support Services
Jose Tristan Carpio
Vice President For Finance/CFO
Adrian Edward A. Baking
Vice President Business Development and Legal
2023
CEO and 4 most highly compensated officers (Actual) 49 13 62
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All other officers and directors as a group unnamed | 2023
(Actual) 105 33 138
(in millions of pesos)
Name and Principal Position Year Salary | Bonus | Total
Eusebio H. Tanco
President and CEO
Sean Perez
Senior Vice President for Marketing and Commercial
Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr.
Vice President for Business Support Services
Jose Tristan Carpio
Vice President For Finance/CFO
Adrian Edward A. Baking
Vice President Business Development and Legal
2022
CEO and 4 most highly compensated officers (Actual) 47 12 59
2022
All other officers and directors as a group unnamed | (Actual) 97 31 128

2)

3)

The Directors do not receive compensation for services provided as a director other than
reasonable per diems” for attendance at meetings of the Board and the Board Committees.
This is in accordance with Article 1V, Section 14 of the Company’s By-Laws which states
that “Except for reasonable per diems, directors, as such shall be entitled to receive only
such compensation as may be granted to them by the vote of the stockholders representing
at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or a special meeting of
the stockholders. In no case the total yearly compensation of the directors, as such, exceed
ten percent (10%) of the net income before income tax of the Corporation during the
preceding year.

The Board of Directors specified the duties and responsibilities of the elected Company
officers. Other officers, whose duties and responsibilities are set by the Management, are
considered regular employees of the Company.

There is no bonus, profit sharing, stock options, warrants, rights or other compensation
plans or arrangements with directors and officers that will result from their resignation,
retirement, termination of employment, or change in the control of the Company.

7 Directors’ per diem amounted to P2,705,000 (for 2023) and P3,045,000 (for 2022). The Chairman receives
P60,000.00 per diem, for every board meeting attended, while members of the Board receive P50,000.00.
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Iltem 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

1. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of December 31, 2023, the Company knows of no one who owns in excess of 5% of its
common stock except as set forth in the following table:

Title of Class Name and Address of Name of Citizenship | Amount of % of
Record Owner and Beneficial Record Class
Relationship with Issuer Owner and Ownership
Relationship
with Record
Owner
Common DP World Australia (POAL) DP World Australian 346,466,600 | 17.32%
Pty. Limited Australia
Level 21 400 George St., (POAL) Pty.
Sydney NSW 2000, GPO Box | Limited
4084, Sydney NSW 2001
Australia
(Stockholder)
Common ATI Holdings, Inc. ATI Holdings, | Australian 291,371,229 | 14.57%
3 Floor SSHG Law Centre, | Inc.
105 Paseo de Roxas Makati
City
(Stockholder)
Common Pecard Group Holdings, Inc. Pecard Filipino 198,203,968 9.91%
3'd Floor SSHG Law Centre, Group
105 Paseo de Roxas Makati Holdings, Inc.
City
(Stockholder)
Common Philippine Seaport, Inc. Philippine Filipino 196,911,524 9.85%
3 Floor SSHG Law Centre, Seaport, Inc.
105 Paseo de Roxas Makati
City
(Stockholder)
Common PCD Nominee Corp. (Beneficial Filipino 158,466,973 7.92%
(Filipino.)* Owners
G/F MKSE Bldg. unknown to
6767 Ayala Ave., Makati City | Issuer)
Common Daven Holdings Filipino 155,906,071 7.80%
7% Floor, Philfirst Building, Daven
6764 Ayala Avenue, Makati Holdings
City
(Stockholder)
Common SG Holdings Inc. Filipino 130,000,000 6.50%
7™ Floor, Philfirst Building, SG Holdings,
6764 Ayala Avenue, Makati Inc.
City
(Stockholder)
Common Kayak Holdings, Inc. Kayak Filipino 109,500,000 5.48%
3/F HRC Center, 104 Rada Holdings, Inc.
St., Legaspi Village, Makati
City
Common PCD Nominee Corp. (Non- (Beneficial Non-Filipino | 100,521,529 5.03%
Filipino.)* Owners
G/F MKSE Bldg. unknown to
6767 Ayala Ave., Makati City | Issuer)
Common Morray Holdings, Inc. Morray Filipino 100,000,000 5.00%
Holdings, Inc.
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7t Floor, Philfirst Building,
6764 Ayala Avenue, Makati
City

(Stockholder)

2. Security Ownership of Management

Owners of record of ATl shares among Management as of December 31, 2023, are as

follows:
Title of Name of Beneficial/Record Amount and Nature of Citizenship % of Class
Class Owner Beneficial Ownership
Common | Felino A. Palafox, Jr. 15,300/direct Filipino 19.76%
395,115,492/indirect
Common | Monico V. Jacob 1/direct Filipino 0.00%
Common | William Wassaf Khoury 1/direct | Dominican 0.00%
Abreu
Common | Glen C. Hilton 1/direct | Australian 0.00%
Common | Zissis Jason Varsamidis 1/direct Australian 0.00%
Common Eusebio H. Tanco 15,257,663/ direct Filipino 31.99%
624,591,246/indirect
Common | Artemio V. Panganiban 1/direct Filipino 0.00%
(independent director)
Common | Teodoro L. Locsin, Jr. 1/direct Filipino 0.00%
(independent director)
Common Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr. 222,398/direct Filipino 0.01%
TOTAL 1,035,202,105 51.75%

There was no change in control of the registrant during the year. There is no voting trust or
similar agreement with respect to any portion of the outstanding shares, nor any agreement
which may result in a change of control of the Company.

The Board of Directors generally has the power to vote on behalf of their respective corporate
stockholders. A proxy is usually designated to cast the vote for the stockholder.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

a) Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

Note 20 of the attached Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended
2022 and 2023 indicate related party transactions in the normal course of business.
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The Group, in the normal course of business, has the following transactions with its related

partles:
Outstanding Balance
Amount Due from Due to
Category/ of the Related Related Lease
Transaction Note Year Transaction Parties Parties Liability Terms Conditions
Associate
= Management 20A 2023 P7,950 P641 P - P - Payable on Unsecured;
income demand no impairment
2022 7,557 491 - - Payable on Unsecured;
demand no impairment
= Dividend income 9 2023 28,658 - - - Payable on Unsecured,;
demand no impairment
2022 35,465 - - - Payable on Unsecured;
demand no impairment
Post-Employment
Benefit Plan
= Retirement fund 20B 2023 55,682 24,939 - - Payable on Unsecured;
demand no impairment
2022 35,018 13,902 - - Payable on Unsecured;
demand no impairment
Others
= Management 20C 2023 259,221 - 17,266 - Payable Unsecured
fees within ten
(10 days) of
the following
month
2022 173,445 - 19,215 - Payable Unsecured
within ten
(10) days of
the following
month
= Advances 20D 2023 207,139 81,444 29,677 - Payable on Unsecured,;
demand no impairment
2022 112,682 5,338 3,997 - Payable on Unsecured;
demand no impairment
= Lease 20E 2023 45,413 - - 375,639 Payable Unsecured
within five
(5 days) of
the following
month
2022 40,993 - - 396,948
TOTAL 2023 P107,024 P46,943 P375,639
TOTAL 2022 P19,731 P23,212 P396,948

A. Amount owed by SCIPSI pertains to management fees equivalent to 6% of gross
revenue of SCIPSI.

B. The Parent Company and ATIB have separate, noncontributory, defined benefit
retirement plans covering all its regular employees, in the form of a trust being
maintained by a trustee bank. Certain payments to retired employees were paid directly
by the Group to be subsequently paid by the retirement fund.

C. P & O Management Services Phils., Inc. (POMS) is a related party which is 40% owned
by POAL. POMS engages in advisory services which it provides to the Parent
Company by virtue of a 5-year contract. The Parent Company’s contract with POMS
expired in 2020 and was renewed on August 27, 2020 for another five years until
August 31, 2025. The terms of the contract provide for the payment of a monthly fee
equivalent to 5% of ATI's consolidated income before income tax of the immediately
preceding month (see Note 18).

D. Advances include amounts owed to or by DP World Asia Holdings Limited-Regional
Operating Headquarters, DP World Philippines Logistics, Inc., and DP World Holdings
Philippines, Inc., which are related parties under common control, pertaining to
reimbursements for expenses paid by or for the Group. The balance also includes
amounts owed to companies controlled by the Group’s director for expenses incurred
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by the Group for manpower, healthcare and insurance services. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, related amounts are recorded as Other Payables under
Trade and other payables (see Note 14).

E. The Parent Company has entered a 5-year lease contract with a company controlled
by the Group’s director commencing on May 1, 2019 for a parcel of land located at
Barangay Lawa, Calamba, Laguna, with a monthly lease rental of P40 per square
meter, subject to an escalation of 8% beginning May 1, 2021 and every 2 years
thereafter. The contract terms are based on market rates for this type of arrangement
and amounts are payable on a monthly basis for the duration of the contract. The
leased premises shall be used for its off-dock container yard and cargo support
requirements, including but not limited to warehousing and logistics (see Note 23).

The compensation and benefits of key management personnel are as follows:

2023 2022

Short-term employee benefits P134,508 pP229,274
Post-employment benefits 11,187 11,114
P145,695 P240,388

The outstanding related party balances are expected to be settled in cash.

Iltem 13. Corporate Governance

The Company has substantially complied with the provisions of its Manual on Corporate
Governance which was adopted on August 30, 2002. In 2017, the Board in its regular meeting
amended the Manual on Corporate Governance in substantial compliance to the provisions of
the Memorandum Circular No. 19 series of 2016 or the Code of Corporate Governance for
Publicly Listed Companies.

The Company commits to the principles and best practices of good corporate governance to
attain its goals and objectives. Its principal officers and directors have attended Corporate
Governance seminars and orientations in compliance with the provisions of its Manual of
Corporate Governance and provisions of SEC Memorandum Circular No. 19 series of 2016.
The seminars were facilitated by accredited providers: Risks, Opportunities, Assessment and
Management (ROAM), SGV and Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD).

The Company has not deviated from its Manual. In November 2023, the Board, individual
directors, Corporate Governance Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Compensation Committee and the key officers have undergone the required self-assessment.
The over-all results for 2023 yielded “excellent” scores and were reported by the Corporate
Governance Committee which convened last November 21, 2023, to discuss the results for
reporting to the Board. The Board took note of the results and approved the same in the board
meeting on November 23, 2023. The Audit Committee also separately conducted its
self-assessment last August 8, 2023.8

Summary of the directors’ attendance to board meetings for 2023 is posted on the Company
website.®:

Continuous monitoring and compliance with the Corporate Governance Manual and other
corporate standards are ensured through the Board and the board committees, Compliance
Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer and the Internal and External Auditors.

8 Pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 4 series of 2012 and the ATl Audit Committee Charter. The results are
posted in the ATI Website https://www.asianterminals.com.ph/ati_sec disclosures.aspx
9 ATI Website, https://www.asianterminals.com.ph/ati_sec_disclosures.aspx

Page 48 of 50 Annual Report


https://www.asianterminals.com.ph/ati_sec_disclosures.aspx
https://www.asianterminals.com.ph/ati_sec_disclosures.aspx

ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.
Securities and Exchange Commission Form 17-A

Item 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

(A) Exhibits

Exhibit 1* Quarterly Report (SEC Form 17-Q)
As of September 30, 2023

Exhibit 2 Financial Statements and Schedules

*Please refer to the September 30, 2023 Quarterly Report (SEC Form 17-Q) submitted to the
Securities and Exchange Commission

(B) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

Date Filed Reference Particulars
January 5, 2023 SEC 17-C Attendance of Directors in the 2022 Board Meetings
January 24, 2023 SEC 17-C Certification on Compliance to the Corporate
Governance Manual
February 15, 2023 SEC 17-C Notice of Guidelines for Nomination
February 23, 2023 SEC 17-C

Setting of the date, time, agenda and venue of the
2023 annual stockholders’ meeting and for holding
the same by remote communication, the record date
and closing of stock and transfer book; approval of
the audited financial statements; re-appointment of
R.G. Manabat & Co. as independent auditors for

2023;

April 27, 2023 SEC17-C Declaration of Cash Dividends, with record and
payment dates; Results of the 2023 Annual Meeting
and the organizational meeting,

August 8, 2023 SEC 17-C Audit Committee Self-Assessment Results

November 8, 2023 SEC 17-C

Change in the signing partner (external auditors)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation
Code, this amended report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Manila on the /£ day of April 2024.

By:
=

SEAN JAMES L. PEREZ JOSE TRISTAN P. CARPI

Senior Vice President Vice President and Chief Financial Officer/
P Corporate Treasurer

W G. CORVITE, JR. MARISSA R. PINCA

Vide President for Business Support Assistand Vice President for Accounting

Services /Corporate Secretary / and Financial Planning

R15 2024 _ :
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me lﬁg day of April 2024 affiants
exhibiting to me their respective government issued IDs.

Name | ID, Date and Place of Issue

Sean James L. Perez

=1

Jose Tristan P. Carpio

e —

Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr.

Marissa R. Pinca ‘

Notary Public

Socorro @l N. Nepemuceno

Doc. No. Notary PL_... -
Page No. AM No 0494%023-2024) until Dec, 31, 2024
Series of 2084. Roli No.

IBP No. 249988 — 1/17/2023
PTR No. 4030518 — 1/3/2024
MCLE Vil-0025787, 01.23.2023
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Annex A: Sustainability Report Disclosures

Contextual Information

Company Details

Name of Organization

Asian Terminals, Inc.

Location of Headquarters

ATI Bldg. A. Bonifacio Drive, Port Area, Manila

Location of Operations

e ATI Manila — Manila South Harbor, Port Area, Manila

e Batangas Container Terminal — Sta. Clara, Batangas City

e ATl Batangas, Inc. (Batangas Passenger, RoRo and Gen.
Cargo Port) — Sta. Clara, Batangas City

¢ Inland Logistics Terminals — Manila and Laguna
*Note: Inland logistics terminals are operationally linked to Manilla South Harbor and
Batangas Container Terminal, respectively, hence relevant data for these facilities are
captured and reported under the said units.

Report Boundary: Legal
entities (e.g. subsidiaries)
included in this report*

This report only discloses material information covering the
operational sites which ATI has direct management control and
supervision

Business Model, including
Primary Activities, Brands,
Products, and Services

ATI operates, manages, and develops strategic seaports which serve
as vital marine transport linkages and trade gateways in the
Philippines. ATI’'s terminals offer arrastre, stevedoring and ancillary
port services. The Company handles containerized and non-
containerized vessels carrying various commodities as well as cruise
vessels. Over in Batangas, ATl handles domestic passengers and
vehicles traversing mainland Luzon to nearby island destinations.
Batangas is also the hub for imported completely-built car units. ATI
also operates strategic inland logistics terminals which are
operationally linked to Manila and Batangas Ports to sustain optimum
port efficiency and complement the needs of nearby customers in
high growth markets.

Reporting Period

January 1 to December 31, 2023

Highest Ranking Person
responsible for this report

Eusebio H. Tanco
President
Asian Terminals Inc.

Materiality Process

Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in
identifying your material topics.!

1 See GRI 102-46 (2016) for more guidance.



https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1037/gri-102-general-disclosures-2016.pdf#page=34

For the purpose of this report, ATI continues to reflect on the definition of materiality under the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI): “Those topics and indicators that reflect the organization’s significant
economic, environmental, and social impacts or that would substantively influence the assessments
and decisions of stakeholders.”

ATI began exploring topics encompassing its business operations and stakeholders back in 2014
which resulted in its Corporate Responsibility (CR) framework: Our World, Our Future. ATlI's CR
framework then was then built around four pillars, namely: Community, Environment, People & Safety
and Marketplace aimed to improve social and environmental performance while adding value to the
Company’s broader stakeholders (employees and their dependents, customers, partners, suppliers,
and the community in general). ATI fully understands that by operating ethically and responsibly, it also
contributes to creating a more sustainable and productive future for the Philippine supply-chain.

In 2019, the framework was revisited and refreshed in alignment with and in support of the UN
Sustainable Development Goals. Through internal analysis and stakeholder surveys, the Company
identified an initial list of sustainability issues. These were further refined through stakeholder
engagement to ten key areas and are periodically reviewed as presented in the materiality matrix
below based on importance to stakeholders and to the Company. In 2021, focus has shifted from
Oceans to the broader sphere of Water, taking to consideration that water accessibility is a major
necessity across all societies.

MATERIALITY
MATRIX

OURWORLD OURFUTURE
O Women
@ Education
@ VWater

Increasing importance to AT|

The framework is split into two components: ‘Our World’ focuses on ATI’s efforts to operate as a
responsible business across seven priority areas while ‘Our Future’ looks at the legacy component, or
areas where ATl hopes to make a positive difference for future generations. It is visually summarized
through the image below.

o7 responsible bus,ne
Ss

OURWORLD

OURFUTURE




Progressing in its sustainability journey, ATl plans further alignment with the GRI standards towards its
maiden integrated sustainability report in the very near future.

ECONOMIC

Economic Performance
Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed

Disclosure Amount Units
Direct economic value generated (revenue) 15,451,800 | PhP’000
Direct economic value distributed:
a. Operating costs 4,242,747 | PhP’000
b. Employee wages and benefits 1,759,712 | PhP’000
c. Government share in revenues 2,669,519 | Php’000
d. Payments to suppliers, other operating costs 3,746,950 | Php’000
e. Dividends given to stockholders and interest payments to 2,000,000 | PhP’000
loan providers
f. Taxes given to government 2,387,024 | PhP’000
g. Investments to community (e.g. donations, CSR) 24,879 | PhP’000
Discussions:
Revenues from Operations Stakeholders Affected Management Approach
ATI’s revenues in 2023 of P15.45 e Company ATI has demonstrated resilient
billion went up by 13.4% from e Shareholders financial results on the back of
P13.62 billion in 2022. Revenues e Customers operational discipline, diligent cost
from South Harbor (SH) management efforts, and the careful
international containerized cargo execution of its long-term business
and Batangas Container Terminal plans.

(BCT) increased from last year by
12.0% and 38.1%, respectively, on
account of higher container volume
while revenues from ATI Batangas
were lower than last year by 3.8%
on account of lower RoRo volumes
and higher number of passengers.
In all, ATI handled a consolidated

ATI continuously optimizes its
facilities in Manila, Batangas and
Laguna to support the growth of
customers and respond to future
market demand.




container volume of 1.53 million
teus (twenty-foot equivalent units)
in 2023.

For more information on the Company’s results of
operations and financial conditions, please refer to
the 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and accompanying Notes to the
Consolidated

Operating Cost

Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach

ATI’s operating cost and expenses
in 2023 increased by 9.5% to
Php4.2 billion, compared to 2022
on account of corresponding port
activities and volume related factors
during the period.

For more information on the Company’s results of
operations and financial conditions, please refer to
the 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and accompanying Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in its
SEC Form 17-A.

e Company
e Shareholders
e Customers

ATI optimizes resources and
pursues innovation projects to
continuously improve processes,
increase efficiencies and manage
operating cost.

Guided by its Asset Management
Program, ATl adheres to strict
operations and maintenance
(predictive maintenance) schedules
to ensure the operational readiness
of port facilities and equipment.
Replacements or spare parts are
adequately stocked for the timely
management of ageing equipment.

Over the long-term, ATl is eyeing
hybrid port equipment to reduce fuel
costs and further improve its
environmental performance. It has
also moved closer to 100%
utilization of electricity derived from
renewable sources.

Employee Wages and Benefits

Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach

Labor costs in 2023 amounting to
Php1.76 billion were higher than
2022 by 7.8% due to salary rate
increase and higher volumes.

For more information on the Company’s results of
operations and financial conditions, please refer to
the 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and accompanying Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in its
SEC Form 17-A.

e Company
e Shareholders
e Employees

ATI operates at an optimal
workforce complement. The
Company is committed to managing
labor costs and expenses consistent
with the level of its business
operations. Delivering safe, efficient,
and reliable port services to
customers are paramount.

Government Share in Revenues

Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach

Port authorities’ share in revenues
in 2023 of Php2.67 billion increased
by 8.1% from 2022 as a result of
higher revenues subject to port
authority’s share.

e Company
e Government

ATI regularly remits government
share in compliance to its
concession agreement and in line
with its commitment to good
corporate governance.




Dividends to Stockholders

Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach

Php2.00 billion in total cash
dividends were released by ATI for
its stockholders in 2023.

e Company
e Shareholders

ATI provides healthy returns to its
shareholders, resulting from its
operational and financial
performance.

Taxes to Government

Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach

Taxes given to government in 2023
of Php2.39 billion increased by
12.4% from 2022 mainly due to
higher results.

e Company
e Government

ATI dutifully pays its tax obligations
to government arising from its
business operations in line with its
commitment to good corporate
governance.

ATI has consistently been cited as
among the top taxpayers of the City
of Manila and the City of Batangas.

Community Investment

Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach

In 2023, ATI invested Php24.9
million in its communities as part of
its Corporate Sustainability
initiatives.

e Communities
e Government
e Stakeholders

Through the years, ATI has helped
its host communities and
neighboring areas through its
dynamic Corporate Sustainability
programs anchored on Health,
Education, and Environment.
Through its community investments,
ATl is able to:

¢ Help improve the health and
wellbeing of underprivileged
communities in nearby areas;

¢ Equip the youth with useful and
productive tools for the future
through educational support
(including scholarships, IT
programs, port-related lectures)

e Improve community health
through provisions of sanitation
infrastructure;

e Improve community’s self-
resilience especially in
emergency response (fire,
typhoon, etc.)

e Support charitable institutions
and relevant social causes.

e Contribute to cleaner seaways

¢ Protect watersheds and
rehabilitate mangrove forests




Climate-related risks and opportunities?

Impact: Given the nature of its business, ATl is inherently exposed to climate-related and other
environmental risks. With an average of 20 typhoons frequenting the Philippines yearly, heavy rainfall,
flooding, and high winds could potentially damage port facilities and infrastructure, injure port workers,
and cut-off road-to-port trade routes, resulting in suspension of port operations and eventual disruption of
supply-chain cycles. Earthquake is also a natural threat. All these could materially and adversely affect
the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations, and business outlook.

Strategy: Integral and central to ATI's business operations is a strong safety culture. To maintain a safe
and hazard-free industrial work environment, ATl implements stringent protocols, governing the safety
and health of employees and other stakeholders consistent with international standards and compliant to
government policies.

Proactive monitoring and engagement with authorities, customers and stakeholders are inclusive in these
programs. Business Continuity Plans are in place and are regularly reviewed and kept in check, ready for
implementation as the need arises. Furthermore, ATl has been investing in climate change adaptation in

and around its terminals.

Risk Management: Risk is an inherent part of doing business. ATI's approach is to identify and assess
all significant risks which could adversely affect the Company’s ability to achieve its business objectives
and to identify management actions and internal controls which can mitigate the effects of those risks to
an acceptable level.

Cognizant of this, the Company regularly undertakes a Business Risk Profile review where risks are
identified by priority based on a systematic assessment of probability and impact.

The risk management process applies to all critical projects and business processes as determined in
what ATI calls as a Risk Category Universe. Control strategies are identified, and action points
established with the designated accountable persons. Results and developments are monitored during
reviews at least quarterly.

ATI’s Board of Directors establishes the control environment, sets the risk appetite, and approves the
policies and delegates responsibilities under our risk management framework.

2 Adopted from the Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures. The TCFD Recommendations apply to non-
financial companies and financial-sector organizations, including banks, insurance companies, asset managers and asset owners.



Metrics

Initiatives/Targets

Governance on Climate-Related Risks

The Company has an Integrated Management
System. Part of this is its Environment
Management System which is certified against
ISO 14001:2015 international standards.

Risk Management and Mitigation

ATl is covered by comprehensive insurance
policies, first and excess layers, with business
interruption clause, to respond to climate-risk
eventualities and other forms of natural or man-
made disruptions. Business Continuity Plans are
in place and are regularly reviewed and updated,
ready for execution as the need arises, like the
previous COVID-19 pandemic.

Procurement Practices
Proportion of spending on local suppliers

Disclosure Quantity Units
Percentage of procurement budget used for significant locations 88 %
of operations that is spent on local suppliers

Discussions

Identification of Impact Stakeholders Affected [Management Approach, Risk and

Opportunities

Safe and Secure Procurement

ATI considers impacts when « Company In line with the Company’s Integrated

making purchasing decisions, *  Suppliers

consistent with its commitment to
being an ethical and responsible
port operator.

Management System Policy, ATI
considers quality, health, safety, security,
and environmental factors in purchasing
decisions.

ATl is certified for Supply Chain Security
Management or ISO 28000:2017.

Anti-corruption

Training on Anti-corruption Policies and Procedures

Disclosure Quantity Units
Percentage of employees to whom the organization’s anti- 100 %
corruption policies and procedures have been communicated to

Percentage of business partners to whom the organization’s anti- 100 %
corruption policies and procedures have been communicated to




Percentage of directors and management that have received 100 %
anti-corruption training
Percentage of employees that have received anti-corruption 100 %
training

Incidents of Corruption
Disclosure Quantity Units
Number of incidents in which directors were removed or 0 #
disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents in which employees were dismissed or 0 #
disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents when contracts with business partners were 0 #
terminated due to incidents of corruption

Discussions

Identification of Impact Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach, Risk and
Opportunities

Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics

ATI strictly adheres to a code of +  Employees
professional conduct and ethics «  Community
which upholds professionalism and »  Suppliers
guides employee behavior in + Government

business dealings and transactions.

This includes comprehensive
policies governing employee
conduct, procurement, relations
with stakeholders, including
\vendors, customers, and other
parties, acceptance of gifts,
entertainment, among others.

The Company recognizes that corruption,
or even allegations of corruption, is a
reputational risk that may significantly
affect business.

The Company is committed to conducting
its business with honesty and integrity and
expects all staff to maintain high
standards in accordance with its code of
conduct policy and procedure, including
zero tolerance of bribery and corruption.

The company has institutionalized strong
programs and policies in support of this
commitment:

» Code of Ethics

» Table of Offenses and Penalties
(governing administrative and
disciplinary sanctions covering
employee infractions)

* Policy on Anti-Bribery and Corruption

* Policy on Gifts and Hospitality

* Whistleblowing Policy

* Regular and special audits

These policies are cascaded company-
wide, integrating these in the formal
onboarding program of newly hired

employees.




Regular engagement programs are also
conducted to reinforce ATI’s policies to
employees.

Internal Measures on Corruption

All employees of the Company are
expected to behave in an ethical
and professional manner

Employees
Community
Suppliers
Government

Allegations or incidents of corruption

undergo thorough investigation and are
subjected to internal administrative and
disciplinary procedures consistent with

due process requirements of law.

ATI has institutionalized a Whistleblowing
Policy which encourages staff to report
suspected wrongdoing without fear of
reprisals and with reports kept in
confidence through the pertinent company
unit.

ENVIRONMENT

Resource Management
Energy consumption within the organization

Disclosure ATI MANILA BCT ATIB ICD Units
Energy consumption (renewable GJ
sources) 22,645.8 964.43 0 0

Energy consumption (gasoline) 477.70 124 83 18724 0 GJ
Energy consumption (LPG) 0 0 0 0 GJ
Energy consumption (diesel) 150,164.00 32.876.26 552074 18,576 GJ
Energy consumption (electricity) 5818,659.7 | 4.417,093.91 | 3,832,968.00 89,280 kWh

Reduction of energy consumption

Disclosure ATI MANILA BCT ATIB ICD Units
Energy reduction (gasoline) ) ) ) ) GJ
Energy reduction (LPG) ) ) ) ) GJ
Energy reduction (diesel) ) ) ) . GJ
Energy reduction (electricity) 719.196.35 ) 7.250.70 7.920 kwWh
Energy reduction (gasoline) ) ) ) ) GJ

Discussion




Identification of Impact

Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach, Risk and
Opportunities

Energy Efficiency

ATI explores new technologies and
innovations to reduce energy
consumption and reduce its carbon
footprint

+ Company
+  Community

In line with ATI’s carbon reduction
measures, the following initiatives are
undertaken:

e Shift to green energy/renewable
energy. Currently, 70% of the
electricity consumption in SH comes
from renewable energy. Will be
100% renewable energy by 2025.
Batangas is 100% renewable energy
since December 26, 2023.

¢ Replacement of high-pressure
sodium lamps with of LED lamps

¢ Installation of energy saving
apparatus on port equipment (eg.
Hybrid Rubber-tired gantry cranes
with Lithium-ion batteries for stored
energy for hoisting operations; idling
control to lower engine RPM;
automatic engine shutoff for long
idling; Car Tracking System for
shuttle services to monitor idle time
of shuttle services); and

¢ Installation of solar panels to
supplement electricity requirements
in Manila and Batangas ports.

¢ In the mid- to long-term,
electrification of equipment will be
pursued, shifting from diesel
powered rubber-tired gantries,
internal transfer vehicles and
shuttles to electric powered. An
electric-powered commuter van is
currently engaged in ATI’s Batangas

operations.
Water consumption within the organization

Disclosure ATI MANILA BCT ATIB ICD Units

i 3

Water withdrawal 46,395.00 | 17,184.00 | 26,479.00 3,883 m

i 3

Water consumption 47,90500 | 17,184.00 | 26,479.00 3,883 m

3

Water recycled and reused 1,510.00 0 0 m
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Materials used by the organization

Disclosure ATI Manila BCT ATIB ICD Units
Materials used by weight or volume
Renewable n/a n/a n/a n/a kg/L
non-renewable n/a n/a n/a n/a kg/L
Percentage of recycled input materials
used to manufacture the organization’s n/a n/a n/a n/a %
primary products and services
Ecosystems and biodiversity (whether in upland/watershed or coastal/marine)
Disclosure ATI Manila BCT ATIB ICD Units
Operational sites owned, leased,
managed in, or adjac_ent to, protet_:ted None None None None
areas and areas of high biodiversity
value outside protected areas
Since 2001,
ATI has Since
reforested 2021, BCT
and
rotected has
P planted
over 40 89.250
hectares of ! Since 2021, ATIB
trees at
the La Mesa Mt has
Nature Malaré at Planted 89,250
Reserve. Foresyt trees at Mt.
Reserve Malarayat Forest
Habitats protected or restored In 2023, ATI Brgy. Rese_r\_/e E_Brgy. None ha
has planted Malitlit Malitlit, Lipa,
40,000 trees S Batangas
. Lipa,
in La Mesa Batanaas
Nature 9 10,750 mangroves
Reserve and in Brgy. Puctol San
5,000 10,750 Juan Batangas
mangroves
mangroves in Brgy
in BASECO :
Puctol San
lagoon and
Juan
Navotas Batanaas
Marine Tree 9
Park.
IUCNJ[1] Red List species and national
conservation list species with habitats in None None None None

areas affected by operations

Discussion

Identification of Impact

Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach, Risk and
Opportunities

Managing Water Resources
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and/or minimized and that it strictly
abides by regulatory requirements
and policies.

As a shared resource, ATI Company ATI has an Environmental Policy which
recognizes its responsibility to Community governs its ecological risk identification,
prudently manage its water Government assessment, and mitigation measures as
consumption and monitor the water an impact of its operations
quality in its areas of its operations. i . .
ATl is ISO 14001:2015 certified for its
Environment Management System
ATI has rainwater collection system.
Collected water is used for watering of
plants and other cleaning purposes.
Treated water form wastewater treatment
facility is re-used for cleaning purposes
Managing Wastewater
ATI strives to ensure that the Company ATI has wastewater treatment facilities
environmental impact of its Community located in Manila South Harbor which sifts
business operations is mitigated Government out water used during cleaning of terminal

mobile resources. Water is treated and re-
used for other purposes.

ATI’s terminal facilities are installed with
emergency shutoff valves to prevent
spillage going to Manila Bay.

Domestic wastewater is interconnected to
Maynilad sewage treatment facility and
some are contained in septic tank and
regularly collected by siphoning service
facility.

Other wastewater from washing activity
are treated offsite by a DENR-accredited
treatment, storage and disposal (TSD)
facility.

Environmental impact management

Air Emissions

GHG

Disclosure ATI Manila BCT ATIB ICD Units
. - Tonnes

Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions 10,834.51 2.372.06 398.98 1,292.15 COse

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG 4.144.05 Tonnes

Emissions T 3,145.85 2,729.84 53.93 COoe

Emissions of ozone-depleting substances No available | Tonnes

(ODS) 1,453.19 0 0 data COze
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Air pollutants

Disclosure ATI Manila BCT ATIB ICD Units
NOx 24.1-34.3 58 32.7 <750 | HOMNem
SOx 9.9-10.0 <127 <125 <aag | MO/Nem
. . no available | No available | No available | No available
Persistent organic pollutants (POPS) data data data data
. . no available | No available | No available | No available
Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) data data data data
. no available | No available | No available | No available
Hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) data data data data
. /N
Particulate matter (PM) 64.2-86.5 40.2 31.8 73.4 ng/iem
Solid and Hazardous Wastes
Solid Waste
Disclosure ATI Manila BCT ATIB ICD Units
Total solid waste generated 576,519 37,701.00 386,236.00 480 kg
Reusable 0 0 0 0 kg
Recyclable 172,443 3,886.40 1,519.10 0 kg
Composted 0 0 0 0 kg
Incinerated 0 0 0 0 kg
Residuals/Landfilled 404,076 33,814.6 384,716.9 480 kg
Hazardous Waste
Disclosure ATI Manila BCT ATIB ICD Units
Total weight of hazardous waste 62.679 9.888.20 4.237.80 200 kg
generated
Total weight of hazardous waste 62,679 9.888.20 4.237.80 0 kg
transported
Effluents
Disclosure ATI Manila BCT ATIB ICD Units
Total volume of water discharges ) 0 0 0 m3
Percent of wastewater recycled 3 0 0 0 %
Environmental compliance
Non-compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations
Disclosure ATI Manila BCT ATIB ICD Units
Total amount of monetary fines for non-
compliance with environmental laws 0 0 0 0 PhP
and/or regulations
No. of hon-monetary sanctions for non-
compliance with environmental laws 0 0 0 0 #

and/or regulations
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resolution mechanism

No. of cases resolved through dispute

SOCIAL

Employee Management

Employee Hiring and Benefits

Employee data

Disclosure Quantity Units
ATI-Manila BCT ICD ATIB TCTI
Total number of employees?® 1310 191 12 297 6 #
a. Number of female 112 23 0 23 #
employees
b. Number of male 1198 168 12 274 6 #
employees
Attrition rate* 2.44 Rate
Ratio of lowest paid employee 53 %
against minimum wage

Employee benefits

List | Y/ | % of female employees who availed for the % of male employees who availed for the
of N year year
Bene
fits

ATI- BCT ICD ATIB TCTI ATI- BCT ICD ATIB TCTI

Manila Manila
SSS | Y 41% 78% - 35% - 63% 74% 67% 76% 33%
PhilH | Y 4% - - 9% - 9% - - 1% -
ealth
Pag- | Y 20% 22% - 52% - 75% 17% - 95% 17%
ibig
Pare | Y 3% - - 9% - - 1% - - -
ntal
leave
S
Vaca | Y 100% 100% | 100% | 100% 100% 55% 40% 100% 16% 100%
tion
leave
S
Sick | Y 100% 100% | 100% | 100% 100% 55% 40% 100% 16% 100%
leave
S

3 Employees are individuals who are in an employment relationship with the organization, according to national law or its application (GRI

Standards 2016 Glossary)

4 Attrition are = (no. of new hires — no. of turnover)/(average of total no. of employees of previous year and total no. of employees of current

year)
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https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1035/gri-standards-glossary-2016.pdf
https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1035/gri-standards-glossary-2016.pdf
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ealth
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100%
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100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Hous
ing
assis
tance
(asid

from
Pag-
ibig)

Retir
eme
nt

fund
(asid

from
SSS)

1%

4%

2%
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1%

Com

pany
stock
optio

ns

Telec
omm
uting
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50%

22%

19%

23%

1%

20%

2%
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Workplace Conditions, Labor Standards, and Human Rights

Occupational Health and Safety

Disclosure Quantity Units
Safe Man-Hours 8,013,445 Man-hours
No. of work-related injuries 41* #
No. of work-related fatalities 0 #
No. of work-related ill-health 0 #
No. of safety drills 30 #
*83% or 34 cases were classified as first-aid only
Labor Laws and Human Rights
No. of legal actions or employee grievances involving forced 0 #

or child labor

Do you have policies that explicitly disallows
bullying) in the workplace?

violations of labor laws and human rights (e.g. harassment,

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the company policy

Forced labor Y ATI Recruitment Policy and ATI Corporate
Responsibility Policy

Child labor Y ATI Recruitment Policy and ATI Corporate
Responsibility Policy

Human Rights Y ATI Anti-Harassment and ATI Corporate
Responsibility Policy

Discussion

Identification of Impact

Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach, Risk and
Opportunities

Occupational Health, Safety and Security

Safety is ATI’'s number one priority. .
This culture resonates across the .
organization and is embodied in .

programs and initiatives to ensure a .
safe and healthy work environment
for port workers and stakeholders.

Company AT/’s institutional safety programs are
Employees anchored on the Company’s Integrated
Customers Management System Policy which
Community includes occupational health and safety

practices which are compliant to
international standards.

As part of this policy, ATl promotes
occupational health, safety,
environmental, quality and security
awareness among our partners, suppliers,
contractors, and surrounding
communities.

The Company sustains its safety

performance through proactive
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engagement programs and innovations
with high employee and stakeholder
involvement.

ATl is certified for 1ISO45001:2018
(Occupational Health & Safety),
1ISO28000:2007 (Supply Chain Security
Management), 1ISO14001:2015
(Environment Management) and
1ISO28000:2007 (Supply Chain Security
Management).

Equal Employment Opportunity

ATl employs a dynamic hiring
strategy which opens employment
opportunities to qualified
individuals, including those from
surrounding port communities.

Company
Employees
Community

ATI promotes diversity and inclusion as a
general employment policy, giving equal
employment opportunities to qualified
individuals regardless of race, gender,
religion, and other demographics.

ATI introduced the practice of blind CV for
applicants, purposely dropping any
reference to gender when pre-screening
applicants.

Women Empowerment is also strong in
ATI through institutionalized mentoring
programs and timely activities on diversity
and inclusion. ATI’'s Women Trade
Enablers’ Network (WTEN) actively
champions women empowerment in the
industry. It hosts interactive workshops
aimed at personal and professional
advancement, including skills in public
speaking, corporate presentations, stress
management, and other holistic interests
like mental health, physical fitness, sports,
and wellness.

More female employees have taken part
in the global MentorHer program in
partnership with The Hub, ATI’s foreign
equity partner’s premier center for people
excellence. MentorHer is a six-month
program which aims to augment the
professional development of women
colleagues under the stewardship of
senior managers across local and global-
affiliated sites.

People Development
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Efficient, reliable, and sustainable « Company ATI continues to focus on skills

port operations are dependent on + Employees reinforcement, leadership, innovation, and

the skills and competencies of inclusion in advancing competencies and

employees. In 2021, ATI diversity through traditional and emergent

accumulated over 13,000 training platforms.

hours in the areas of operations,

engineering, safety, and support Trainings are conducted internally or

services. externally in partnership with international
and local facilitators.
ATI locally rolled out the Emerge Program
with the support of its regional and global
talent management peers as it
strengthened its career advancement and
succession planning process. Emerge is a
trailblazing platform which
comprehensively screens key talents
across the organization and prepares
them for next-in-line leadership roles and
functions throughout the business.

Corporate Responsibility

ATI’s business activities take to + Company Following its Corporate Responsibility

careful consideration workplace + Employees Policy, ATI conducts its business in a

conditions, labor standards, and «  Community responsible way. It is committed to pursue

human rights and maintain the highest standards in all
aspects of its activities.

Supply Chain Management

Do you have a supplier accreditation policy? If yes, please attach the policy or link to the policy:

https://bit.ly/3fQnOSo

Do you consider the following sustainability topics when accrediting suppliers?

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the supplier policy

Environmental performance Y ATI Procurement Policy/Integrate Management System

Forced labor Y ATI Procurement Policy/Integrate Management System

Child labor Y ATI Procurement Policy/Integrate Management System

Human rights Y ATI Procurement Policy/Integrate Management System
and ATI Corporate Responsibility Policy

Bribery and corruption Y ATI’s Code of Professional Conduct governs the

professional behavior and ethics in all business
dealings and transactions of ATl employees. The
Company also has relevant policies on Anti-Bribery and
Corruption, Acceptance of Gifts and Hospitality,
Whistleblowing, Conflict of Interest and Related Party
Transactions, which can be viewed at ATI’s corporate
website: https://bit.ly/3fOnOSo

Discussion
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Identification of Impact

Stakeholders Affected [Management Approach, Risk and
Opportunities

Ethical Procurement

ATI strictly adheres to ethical
procurement processes, from
supplier accreditation up to actual
procurement process, including
document reviews and field audit
and validation of suppliers.

« Company
+ Employees
+  Community
*  Suppliers

ATI procurement processes are governed
by the Company’s Procurement Policy
and other related policies. It is primarily
supervised by the Procurement
Management Committee which includes
big-ticket items such as equipment
acquisition, infrastructure, and other
development projects.

Relationship with Community

Significant Impacts on Local Communities

Operations Location Vulnerable Does the Collective or Mitigating
with groups (if particular individual measures (if
significant applicable)* operation rights that negative) or
(positive or have have been enhancement
negative) impacts on | identified that measures (if
impacts on indigenou | or particular positive)
local s people concern for
communities (YIN)? the community
(exclude CSR
projects; this
has to be
business
operations)
Port ¢ Manila e Surrounding N o Community ¢ Health and
Operations South underprivileged health wellness
Harbor port o Mobility projects are
communities issues along rolled out in
shared roads partnership
with local
community
officials.
e Vehicle
Booking
System has

been instituted
to ease road
traffic with
organized and
scheduled
arrival or
departure of
trucks
transacting at
the terminal
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*Vulnerable sector includes children and youth, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees,
migrants, internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or the
base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E)

For operations that are affecting IPs, indicate the total number of Free and Prior Informed Consent (FPIC)
undergoing consultations and Certification Preconditions (CPs) secured and still operational and provide a
copy or link to the certificates if available:

Certificates Quantity Units
FPIC process is still undergoing N/A #
CP secured N/A #

Customer Management

Customer Satisfaction
Disclosure Score Did a third party
conduct the
customer
satisfaction study
(YIN)?
Customer satisfaction Outstanding N

Health and Safety

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on product or service 0 #
health and safety*

No. of complaints addressed 0 #

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s formal
communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and acted upon by
government agencies.

Marketing and labelling

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on marketing and 0 #
labelling*

No. of complaints addressed 0 #

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s formal
communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and acted upon by
government agencies.

Customer privacy

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on customer privacy* 0 #
No. of complaints addressed 0 #
No. of customers, users and account holders whose 0 #
information is used for secondary purposes

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s formal
communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and acted upon by
government agencies.

Discussions
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Identification of Impact Stakeholders Affected

Management Approach, Risk and
Opportunities

Customer Relationship Management

As a customer-centric organization, + Company
ATI maintains good relations with *  Customers
importers, exporters, brokers,
forwarders, shipping line partners
and other stakeholders.

The Company works with its
customers to address issues
peculiar to the port industry

ATI efficiently manages company
resources such as manpower, equipment,
facilities, and business systems with the
aim of attaining customer satisfaction in
cargo handling and other port-related
services in the most cost-effective and
most efficient way.

ATI strives to be attentive and
responsive to the concerns of customers,
conducting regular forums that may
involve government entities as venue for
stakeholder interaction.

Back in 2019, ATI in partnership with
major international shipping lines,
launched ELSA or the Empty Loadout
Shipping Alliance, which resolved the
problem of high inventory of empty
container boxes in the market that has
triggered bottlenecks in the supply chain.
ELSA continues to deliver efficiency to the
industry to this day.

Engagement with customers has resulted
in the development of bespoke services
and innovations to make trade flow faster
and smarter. End-to-end services have
eased pain points in customers’ supply
chain leveraged on ATI’s strategic port

assets and comprehensive services.

Data Security

Disclosure

Quantity Units

No. of data breaches, including leaks, thefts, and losses
of data

0 #
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UN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Product or Service Contribution to UN SDGs

Key products and services and its contribution to sustainable development.

UN SDGs

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

4

QUALITY
EDUCATION

|

Key Products Societal Value / Potential Management
and Services | Contribution to UN SDGs Negative Approach to
Impact of Negative
Contribution Impact

Community
Health Program
and institutional
response

As ATI puts health and
safety as a core policy.
Consistently, the Company
extends assistance to
surrounding port
settlements, improving
community health and
wellbeing, especially in
times of exigencies.

Post Covid-19 pandemic,
ATI continued to mobilize
corporate resources to
distribute food aid to
neighborhoods in need,
improve access to
community-based
healthcare services
through medical outreach,
and sustain other
community health
programs.

ATI Scholarship
Program

Basic Computer
Programming
Literacy
Program

Employee
volunteerism to
improve school
facilities

ATI’s Scholarship Program
has produced skilled
professionals in various
fields. The program
continues to be a vital
component to ATI’s
sustainability programs as
it improves access to
Education, which is among
its major legacy
sustainability pillars.

2023 saw the completion
of the partnership between
ATI and Ayala Foundation
Inc. (AFI), DepEd and City
of Manila for a unique
computer literacy program
called <CODE/IT>. The
program trained
elementary public school
teachers in Manila in basic
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GENDER
EQUALITY

GLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

programming skills and
provided them with IT
resources. As scrum
masters, the teachers are
expected to cascade basic
programming skills to
young Filipino students,
ergo bridging the digital
divide at the onset of
learning through Manila’s
over 70 public primary
schools.

Post-pandemic, employees
have joined school
volunteering activities to
improve school facilities in
time for school year
opening.

Women
Empowerment
in PH Ports
Program

ATI helps break barriers in
the traditionally male-
dominated port industry. It
promotes equal
employment opportunities
regardless of gender. Its
Women Trade Enabler
Network Group (WTEN)
continued to expand its
outreach in 2023 to further
empower women in the
industry. Women-centered
programs were also held
online and offline.

Watershed
Protection
Program

ATl is an institutional
partner of Bantay
Kalikasan which leads the
protection and
reforestation of La Mesa
Watershed. To date, ATI
has planted and protected
over 40 hectares of the
forest reserve which
contributes potable water
for Metro Manila.

In 2023, ATI’s support for
watershed protection has
branched out to more
reforestation sites including
Navotas, Malarayat, Lipa
and San Juan in Batangas.
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LIFE BELOW
WATER

Greater use of
green and
renewable
energy

Wherever possible, ATI
has tapped renewable
energy sources for use of
its offices and operational
areas. More solar panels
were installed in ATl in
2022 optimize rooftops and
canopies. One of ATI’s
industrial power
substations now operate
with renewable energy as
primary electricity source.

Engine devices have been
installed on applicable port
equipment to enable them
to run in hybrid mode —
combination of electricity
and fuel.

ATI has moved closer to
100% utilization of
electricity derived from
renewable sources in
partnership with the local
power distribution provider.

Oceans
Protection
Program

Manila Bay
Rehabilitation
Program

Run for Ocean
Protection

Under its Ocean Protection
Program, ATI has taken an
active role in raising public
awareness against plastic
pollution. ATI continues to
reach out to students,
teaching them on
responsible port operations
and outlining ways to
preserve and protect this
vital economic resource.
The Program has banked
on students as advocates
for plastic-free oceans.

As an organization, ATI
discourages the use of
single-use plastics across
its sites. Use of flasks and
reusable water bottles
have become the norm for
employees and
stakeholders.

ATI has sustained its
partnership with the
Environment Department
for the multisectoral Manila
Bay Rehabilitation
Program. Significant
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resources have been
allocated for the program
covering community
sanitation infrastructure
and planting of mangroves
In nearby coastal areas in
partnership with
community volunteers.

ATI have facilitated
employee involvement in
industry fun run events,
optimizing these as
advocacy platforms to
promote the protection of
seas and oceans.

25



COVER SHEET

for
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEC Registration Number

113]13|6]|5]3

COMPANY NAME

A[S|I [A|N TIE{R{M[I [NJA|L|S]|, I [N|JC]. A[N|D

I [ T|S S|U[B|S|I|DJI |A|[R|I |E[S

PRINCIPAL OFFICE (No./ Street / Barangay / City / Town / Province)

A Blolnli |f |alclilo Dirli|v]|e], Plojr |t Alrle|a
Mla|n|i |l |a
Form Type Department requiring the report Secondary License Type, If Applicable
COMPANY INFORMATION
Company's email Address Company's Telephone Number/s Mobile Number
asianterminals.com.ph 528-6000
No. of Stockholders Annual Meeting (Month / Day) Fiscal Year (Month / Day)
821 4™ Thursday of April December 31

CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION

The designated contact person MUST be an Officer of the Corporation

Name of Contact Person Email Address Telephone Number/s Mobile Number

Jose Tristan P. Carpio Josec@asianterminals.com.ph 528-6000

CONTACT PERSON's ADDRESS

Note 1:  In case of death, resignation or cessation of office of the officer desigrnated as contact person, such incidert sial be reported to the
designated.

Eabifty for its deficiencies.

'BY: ERIVIN PACINIO
LT DOCUMENT PROCESENG AND QUALITY ASSURANCE DIVISION
allines. U




ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS
SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

With Independent Auditors’ Report

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE |
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE |
" ¥y |

12 W | %!
JL
BYSERWIN raCiniy
LT DOCUMENT PROCE SSING A UALITY aSur=MCE DIvissw




R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 6/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1209

Telephone +63 (2) 8885 7000
Fax +63 (2) 8894 1985
Internet www.home.kpmg/ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asian Terminals, Inc.

A. Bonifacio Drive

Port Area, Manila

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asian Terminals, Inc. and its
Subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the consolidated statements of
income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2023, and notes, comprising material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at

December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2023, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audits of the consolidated financial statements in
the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. This matter
was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
this matter.

Revenue Recognition (P15,451,800 - amount in thousands)
Refer to Notes 2 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The risk

The Group's revenues are mainly generated from arrastre, stevedoring, storage,
and special and other services. Market expectations and profit-based targets
may put pressure on management to recognize revenues before all the revenue
recognition criteria have been met. Risk of material misstatement may arise in
order to improve business results and achieve capital and revenue growths in
line with the objectives of the Group.

Our response

Our audit procedures included assessment of the Group's accounting policies in
respect of revenue recognition to ensure that they appropriately reflected the
requirements of PFRSs. Evaluation of relevant IT systems and the design and
operating effectiveness of controls over the recording of revenue transactions
and generated reports was also conducted. In doing so, we have involved our IT
specialists to assist in the audit of automated controls across different IT
applications. Our substantive procedures included testing of revenues earned, to
confirm that all services had been performed at the point at which revenue is
recognized. Among others, we performed examination of selected individual
transactions' supporting documentation to test the existence and accuracy of
revenue transactions and to verify whether the revenue recognition practices
adopted complied with the stated accounting policies. A detailed movement
analysis of revenues earned for each of the Group's revenue streams was also
performed to determine any significant fluctuation on the account.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Form 20-IS
(Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2023, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive Information
Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2023
are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audits or otherwise
appears to be materiall = INTERNAL REVENUE]
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When we read the other information mentioned above, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those

charged with governance and determine whether the other information needs to be
revised.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matter. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing

so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Vernilo G. Yu.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

v

UG YU
“ j Partner ’

CPA License No.
Tax Identification
BIR Accreditation No. UB-0UU198/-035-2021
Issued June 29, 2021; valid until June 28, 2024
PTR No. MKT 10075209
Issued January 2, 2024 at Makati City

March 12, 2024
Makati City, Metro Manila
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www.asianterminals.com.ph

\_ K ASIAN

lTERM]N ALS Asian Terminals, Inc. (ATI) Head Office Bldg.
: A. Bonifacio Drive, Port Area, 1018 Manila, Philippines
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INCOR-PO TED (L) +632 85286000 | (F) +632 85272467

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Asian Terminals, Inc. and its Subsidiaries (the “Group”) is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2023 in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework
indicated therein, and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

R.G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such audit.

GLHN (.‘H-RISTOPHER HILTON/___\ ~ P
Chairman of the Board .

EUSEBIQNT TANCO JOSE TRISTAN P. CARPIO

President _ Chief Financial Officer
MAR 1 2 2024
Signed this of , 2024
. - MAR 1 2 202% : ' L .
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this day of © 2023, the signatories exhibiting to me their

respective Passports/Driver’s License Nos., as follows:
Name Passport Nos. Date/Place lssued
1 Glen Christopher Hilton

2. Eusebio H. Tanco
3. Jose Tristan P. Carpio
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Page No. :
Book No. /
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{1/ *:bﬁﬁi'i
A8 11372024
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Amounts in Thousands)

December 31

Note 2023 2022
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6, 24, 25 P5,424,938 P4,600,267
Trade and other receivables - net 7, 20, 24, 25 830,653 805,985
Spare parts and supplies 18 1,066,535 1,081,456
Prepaid expenses 8 2,776,433 2,503,263
Total Current Assets 10,098,559 9,090,971
Noncurrent Assets
Investment in an associate 9 65,436 55,282
Property and equipment - net 10 2,611,749 2,566,211
Intangible assets - net 11 21,595,130 21,080,924
Right-of-use assets - net 23 726,211 775,248
Deferred tax assets - net 13 1,002,295 975,876
Other noncurrent assets 12 73,551 86,759
Total Noncurrent Assets 25,974,372 25,540,300
P36,072,931 P34,631,271
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 14, 20, 24, 25 P2,934,416 P3,292,607
Provisions for claims 15 58,873 61,044
Port concession rights payable - current
portion 23, 24, 25 455,254 423,028
Income and other taxes payable 100,052 210,629
Lease liabilities - current portion 20, 23, 24 46,615 118,066
Total Current Liabilities 3,595,210 4,105,374
Noncurrent Liabilities
Port concession rights payable - net of
current portion 28 24, 25 7,011,351 7,510,283
Pension liability - net 21 236,779 207,409
Lease liabilities - net of current portion 20, 23, 24 678,189 647,026
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,926,319 8,364,718
11,521,529 12,470,092
Equity
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of
the Parent Company
Capital stock 2,000,000 2,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 264,300 264,300
Retained earnings 22,276,607 19,887,619
Fair value reserve (5,820) (5,820)
16, 24 24,535,087 22,146,099
Non-controlling Interest 16,315 15,080
SEVIENLIE
Total Equity BUREAY OF INTERNAL REV N | 24,551,402 22,161,179
1 %-MWM—I“U A Y P36,072,931 P34,631,271

APR T2 205 | 13|

See Notes to the Consolidated
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2023 2022 2021
REVENUES FROM
OPERATIONS 26 P15,451,800 P13,622,704 P11,162,744
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN
REVENUES 1 (2,669,519) (2,468,762) (1,947 ,677)
12,782,281 11,153,942 9,215,067
COSTS AND EXPENSES
EXCLUDING
GOVERNMENT SHARE
IN REVENUES 18, 20, 21 (6,628,665) (6,176,412) (5,426,240)
OTHER INCOME AND
EXPENSES
Finance income 189,142 45,496 5,758
Finance cost (503,531) (505,572) (504,068)
Others - net 40,328 (529,694) (254,907)
19 (274,061) (989,770) (753,217}
CONSTRUCTION REVENUES 11 1,920,973 1,928,019 546,474
CONSTRUCTION COSTS 11 (1,920,973) (1,928,019) (546,474)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME
TAX 5,879,555 3,987,760 3,035,610
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 1,441,737 959,604 797,881
NET INCOME P4,437,818 P3,028,156 P2,237,729
Income Attributable fo
Equity holders of the Parent
Company P4,435,986 P3,024,811 P2,236,720
Non-controlling interest 1,832 3,345 1,009
P4,437,818 P3,028,156 P2,237,729
Basic/Diluted Earnings per
Share Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Parent
Company 22 P2.22 P1.51 P1d2

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2023 2022 2021
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR P4,437,818 P3,028,156 P2,237,729
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS)
item that will never be
reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gains (losses) on
pension liability 21 (62,687) 14,663 (7,127)
Tax on item taken directly to
equity 13 15,672 (3,666) 1,782
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR - Net of tax (47,015) 10,997 (5,345)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME P4,390,803 P3,039,153 P2,232,384
Total Comprehensive Income
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent
Company P4,388,988 P3,035,751 P2,231,320
Non-controlling interest 1,815 3,402 1,064
P4,390,803 P3,039,153 P2,232,384

See Notes teo the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Years Ended December 31

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

Retained Earnings

. e YO, Additional Appropriated Non-
= zfgl Paid-in for Port Fair Value controlling
:T;r;l Note Capital Stock Capital Development  Unappropriated Reserve Total Interest Total Equity
§ Bal f EE'&f anuary 1, 2023 P2,000,000 P264,300 P 16,400,000 P3,487,619 (P5,820) P22,146,099 P15,080 P22,161,179
= Cas nds - P1.00 a share 16 c - : (2,000,000) : (2,000,000) (580) (2,000,580)
z ev appropriation of retained
; Jea % 16 - - (2,400,000) 2,400,000 - - - -
< - ~Applapaaiions during the year 16 - - 5,000,000 (5,000,000) - - - -
PR .. Net licomi@|for the year - - 2 4,435,986 & 4,435,986 1,832 4437 818
= OthdF Ebmprehensive income:
Z _ Achuafiabibss - net of tax 21 x . . (46,998) - (46,998) (17) (47,015)
f __.Bal.ahce a_ﬁ December 31, 2023 P2,000,000 P264,300 P19,000,000 P3,276,607 (P5,820) P24,535,087 P16,315 P24,551,402
= NS gy, g = =
' Balance at;ianuary 1, 2022 P2,000,000 P264,300 P15,100,000 P3,367,868 (P5,820) P20,726,348 P12,258 P20,738,606
Cash dividends - P0.808 a share 16 & = - (1,616,000) - (1,616,000) (580) (1,616,580)
Reversal of appropriation of retained
earnings 16 - - (2,000,000} 2,000,000 - - - 4
Appropriations during the year 16 - - 3,300,000 (3,300,000) - - 5 =
Net income for the year - - - 3,024,811 - 3,024 811 3,345 3,028,156
Other coemprehensive income:
Actuarial gain - net of tax 21 - - - 10,940 - 10,940 57 10,997
Balance at December 31, 2022 P2,000,000 P264,300 P16,400,000 P3,487,615 (P5,820) P22,146,099 P15,080 P22,161,179




Years Ended December 31

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Retained Earnings

Additional Appropriated Non-
Paid-in for Port Fair Value controlling
Note Capital Stock Capital Development Unappropriated Reserve Total Interest Total Equity
Balance at January 1, 2021 P2,000,000 P264,300 P14,000,000 P3,642,548 (P5,820) P19,901,028 P11,774 P19,912,802
Cash dividends - P0.703 a share 16 - - - (1,406,000) - (1,406,000) (580) (1,406,580)
=rsa| of appropriation of retained
garninds 16 . . (2,500,000) 2,500,000 . . - -
epribtions during the year 16 - - 3,600,000 (3,600,000) - = = -
m Ageme for the year - - - 2,236,720 - 2,236,720 1,009 2,237,729
2, fnprehensive income:
0% 3| loss - net of tax 21 - - — - (5.400) - (5,400) 55 (5,345)
: at December 31, 2021 P2,000,000 P264,300 P15,100,000 P3,367,868 (P5,820) P20,726,348 P12,258 P20,738,606

s to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2023 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P5,879,5655 P3,987,760 P3,035,610
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and
amortization 10, 11, 78,28 1,989,066 1,908,756 1,849,725
Finance cost 19, 21, 23 503,531 505,572 504,068
Current service cost 21 39,193 45,664 40,639
Provision (reversal of
provision) for spare parts
and supplies obsolescence 18 10,000 - (5,035)
Provision for claims 15 48 832 7,172
Finance income 19 (189,142) (45,496) (5,758)
Net unrealized foreign
exchange losses (gains) (102,127) 411,159 255,670
Equity in net earnings of an
associate 9, 19 (38,812) (32,374) (44,782)
Gain on disposals of:
Property and equipment 19 (5,359) (728) (302)
Intangible assets 19 - (5,688) (930)
Operating income before
working capital changes 8,085,953 6,775,457 5,635,977
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables 74,256 (96,756) (184,621)
Spare parts and supplies 4,921 (145,978) (40,154)
Prepaid expenses (273,170) (354,254) (417,692)
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables (310,979) 827,752 234,196
Provisions for claims (2,219) (3,004) (1,980)
Income and other taxes
payable (118,513) 6,376 (33,407)
Cash generated from
operations 7,460,249 7,009,593 5,192,319
Finance income received 190,218 45,496 6,117
Income tax paid (1,444,548) (1,066,262) (861,915)
Contributions to retirement
funds 21 (84,505) (74,978) -
Finance cost paid (54,208) (27,013) (7,818)
Net cash provided by operating
activities 6,067,206 5,886,836 4,328,703
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Years Ended December 31

Note 2023 2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:

Intangible assets 3 (P1,939,908) (P1,986,879) (P1,730,573)

Property and equipment 10 (262,665) (829,665) (897,080)
Proceeds from disposals of:

Intangible assets - 6,260 930

Property and equipment 97,935 1,760 302
Dividends received 9, 20 28,658 35,465 31,524
Decrease (increase) in:

Other noncurrent assets - 26,083 13,189

Deposits 13,208 (10,805) 58,649
Net cash used in investing

activities (2,062,772) (2,757,781) (2,523,059)
CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of:

Cash dividends 16 (2,000,000) (1,616,000) (1,406,000)

Cash dividends to

non-controlling interest (580) (580) (580)
Port concession rights
payable 23 (972,915) (799,238) (792,135)

Lease liabilities 23 (192,288) (223,176) (204,810)
Net cash used in financing

activities (3,165,783) (2,638,994) (2,403,525)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)

IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 838,651 430,061 (597,881)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN

EXCHANGE RATE

CHANGES ON CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (13,980) 156,040 114,173
CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6 4,600,267 3,954,166 4,437,874
CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 6 P5,424,938 P4,600,267 P3,954,166

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

1.

Reporting Entity

Asian Terminals, Inc. (ATl or the “Parent Company”) was incorporated in the
Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) on July 9, 1986. The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Parent Company and its Subsidiaries, ATI Batangas, Inc. (ATIB)
and Tanza Container Terminal, Inc. (TCTI), (collectively referred to as the “Group”).
The Parent Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the Securities
Regulation Code and its shares are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
(PSE). DP World Australia (POAL) Pty. Ltd. directly owns 17.32% of the total
outstanding capital stock of ATI.

The Group operates and manages the South Harbor Port of Manila and the Port of
Batangas in Batangas City. The registered office address of the Parent Company is
at A. Bonifacio Drive, Port Area, Manila.

2. Operating Contracts

Following are the Group’s operating contracts:
a. South Harbor, Port of Manila

ATl's exclusive right to manage, operate and develop South Harbor was
renewed for a period of 25 years from May 19, 2013 to May 18, 2038 pursuant to
the Third Supplement to the Contract for Cargo Handling and Related Services
(the “Third Supplement”’) with the Philippine Ports Authority (PPA) dated
October 19, 2007 (see Note 23).

b. Port of Batangas

On January 18, 2010, the PPA issued to ATl the Notice to Award the Contract for
the Management, Operation, Maintenance, Development and Promotion of the
Container Terminal “A-1,” Phase Il of the Port of Batangas for a period of
25 years. The Contract was signed on March 25, 2010. The Notice to Proceed
dated June 16, 2010 allowed ATI to start and commence operations at the
Terminal on July 1, 2010.

On October 2, 2015, ATl and ATIB signed a Contract with PPA for the
Management, Operation, Maintenance and Development of Phase |, Port of
Batangas with a term from October 1, 2015 until September 30, 2025.

In December 2019, ATl and ATIB signed a Contract with PPA for the extension
of the term from 2025 to 2035 (see Note 23).
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3. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The: consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine. Financial Reporiing Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based on
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). PFRSs which are issued by the Philippine Financial and
Sustainability Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC), consist of PFRSs, Philippine
Accountifig Standards (PASs), and Philippine interpretations.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on February 22, 2024.

Basis of Measurement

The consclidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a
historical cost basis except for the following. items, which are measured on an
alternative basis on each reporting date:

ltems Measurement Bases
Equity investments at Fair Value Fair value
through Other Comprehensive
Income {(FVOCH)
Pension liability The present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan
assets,

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consclidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Group's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off fo the nearest
thousand pasos (PD00), except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consalidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of AT,
ATIB, TCTl and the Group's interest in an ‘associate accounted for under the equity
method of accounting. ATIB is a 99.17% owned subsidiary as at December 31, 2023
and 2022. TCTI was incerporated on January 18, 2018, and a 100% owned
subsidiary as at December 31, 2023 and 2022,

The financial statements of ATIB and TCTI are prepared- for the same financial
reporting year as. AT], using Uniform accounting policles for like {ransactions and
other events in similar circumstances.

Al intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses resulting from intra-
group transaclions are eliminated in full.

TCTH is fully consolidated. from the date of incorporation. ATIB is fully consolidated
from the date of acguisition, beéing the date when ATI obtained control, and continues’
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interest represents the ‘portion of profit and loss and net assetls in
ATIB not held by AT and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of
income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements
of changes in equity, and within equily in the consolidated statements of financial
position.



4. Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The account;ng policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these consolidated financial statements, except if mentioned otherwise.

-Adoption of Amendments to Standards

The Group has adopted the follewing amendments to standards stariing
January 1, 2023 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as
otherwise mdicéted, the adoption did not have any significant impact on the Group's
consoclidated financial statements.

Defmition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments fo PAS 8, Accounting. Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors). To clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates, the
amendments introduce a new definition for accounting estimates, clarifying that
they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also-clarify the relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that an accounting
estimate is deveioped to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy.
Developing an accounting estimate includes both selecting a measurement
technique and choosing the inputs to be used when applying the chasen
measurement technigue. The effects of changes in such inputs or measurement
technigues are changes in accouriting estimates. The definition of accounting
policies remains unchanged. The amendments also providé examples on the
appiication of the hew definifion,

The amendments will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates
and changes in-accotinting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period in which the amendments are applied.

Disclosure of Acdcounting Policies (Amendments to PAS 1, Fresenfation of
Financial Staternents and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Making Materiality
Judgements). The amendments are intended to help companies provide useful
accounting policy disclosures, The key amendments to PAS 1include:

o requiring sompanies 1o disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies:

= -clarifying thal accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other
evenis or conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be
disclosed; and _

s clarifying that not all accounting policles that relate to material transactions,
other events or conditions are themiselves material to a company's financial
staiements.

The amendments to PFRS Praclice Statement 2 includes guidance and
additional examples. on the application of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures, assisting companies o provide useful, entity-specific accounting
policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial
statements.

The Group reviewed the accounting policies. The amendments did riot result in
any changes to the accounting policies, However, updates were made tb the
accounting policy information disclosed in Note 4 Material Accounting Policies
section in ceftain instances in fine with the amendments,



Deferred Tax related 10 Assets and Liabilities arising from & Single Transaction

(Amendments to PAS 12, Incorne Taxes). The amendmients clarify that the initial

recognition exemption does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal

taxable and deductible temporary differences such as Jeases and

decommissioning cbligations.

For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associaled deferred tax assets
and liabilities will be recognized from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative’ effect recognized as an adjustment fo
retained earnings or other appropriate companent of equity at that date, For all
other fransactions, the amendments apply to transactions that oceur after the
beginning of the earliest period presented:

Amendments to Standards [ssued but Not Yet Adopted

A number of amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after January 1, 2023. However, the Group has not eaily adopted the following
amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Uniless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2024

Classification of Liabiliies as Current or Noncurrent - 2020 amendments and

Noncurrent Liabilities with Covenants - 2022 amendments (Amentdments fo
PAS 1). To promote consistency in application and clarify the requirements an
determining whiether a liability is current or honcurrent, the amandments;

» Temoved the requirement for a right to defer settiement of a liability for at
least tweive months after the reporting period to be unconditional and instead
requires that the right must have substance and exist at the end of the
reporting period;

« clarified that enly covenants with which a company must comply on or before
the reparting date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-
current and covenants with which the entity must comply after the reparting
date do not affect a liability's classification at that date;

+ provided additional disclosure requirements for non-current liabilities subject
to conditions within twelve months after the reporting period to enable the
assessment of the risk that the liability could become repayable within twelve
months; and

+ clarfied that sefflement -of & liability includes transferring an entity's own

equity Instruments to the counterparty, but conversion options that are
classified as equity do not affect classification of the liability as current or
noncurrent,

The amendments will apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2024, with earlier application permitted. Entities
that have early applied the 2020 amendments may retain application until the
2022 amendmenis are applied. Entiles that will early apply the 2020

‘amendments after issue of the 2022 amendments must apply both amendments

at'the same time.



Finarncial Instrumenis

Non-derivative Financial Instruments. Non-derivative financial instruments consist of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, deposits, equity securities,
trade and other payabies (except for stafutory payables), port concession rights
payable and lease jiabifities.

Recagnition and Initial Measurement. Trade receivables and debt sacurities issued
are inifially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
findncial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group bgcomes g paity fo the
contractual provisions of the instrurhent. '

A financial asset {unless it is a trade réceivable without a significant financing
compenent) or financial fiability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs. that are directly
attibutable o its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Financial Assets
The Group's financial assets at amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, and deposits.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method if
it meets bioth of the following conditiens and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= it is held within a business model whose cbjactive is fo hold assets to collect
contractiual cash flows; and

= its contractual terms dive rise on specified dates fo cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principat-amount outstanding.

The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, forsign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on deregognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Cash inciddes cash on hand and in banks which are stated at face value. Cash
equivalents are shorfterm, highly figuid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturifies of three months or less from dates of
agquisition and are. subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vajue.

On initial racognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group
may irrevotably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. The accumulated
fair value reserves are never reclassified to profit or loss, Dividends are recognized
as income in profit or loss unléss it clearly represents a recevery of the cast of
investment.

Included in this categoty is the Group’s equity insttuments (included under other
noncurrent assets).



Business Model Assessment. The Group makes an assessment of the objéctiva of
the business mode! in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this
best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered ingludes:

a. the staled policies and objectives for the portiolio and the operation of those.
policies in practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on
garning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets fo the duration of any related
liabilites or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

b. how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's.
managemeant;

¢. the risks that affect the performance of the business. model (and the financial
assets held within that busingss madel) and how those risks are managed;

d. how managers of the business are compensated - e.g., whether compensation is-
based on the faif valie of the asséts managed or the contractual cash flows
collected; and

g. the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations ahout future sales activity.

Solely Paymaenis of Pribcipal and interest Assessment. Principal is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset on injtial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration
for the time value of morey and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic Iendmg
risks and cests (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the conlractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Group considers the confractual terms of the instrument. This includes.
assessing whether the financial asset ¢ontains a contractual ferm that could change
the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition, In making this assessment, the Group considers:

» contingent events that would change the amount of timing of cash flows;

= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate
features:

= prepayment and exiension features; and

= terms that fmit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial Liabilities

Classification, Subsegquent Meastrement and Gains and Losses: Financial liabilities.
are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liahility is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-frading, it is a derivative or it is
designdted as such o initial recogtiition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair vajue and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in prafit or loss.



included under ather financial fiabiliies are the Group's trade and other payabies
{except for due to government agencies) port concession rights payable and lease
Hiabilities.

[mpairment of Financial Assets

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments replaces the ‘incurred loss' model in PAS 39,
Financial Instruments; Recognitionn and Measurement with an *expected credit loss’
(ECL) medel. The new impairment mode! apylies to financial assets measured at
amortized cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to
investments in equity instruments. Under PFRS 9, credit losses are recognized
earfier than under PAS 39.

ECL is the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument, representing the present value of expected cash shortfalls. The
Group applies either a 12-month ECL or a lifetime ECL. Lifetime ECL applies {o the
financial assets that have experienced a significant intrease in credit risk. or are
already credit-impaired. The Group's approach to ECL measurement is descrifed in
Note 24.

The Group considers thie probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing hasis
throughout each reporing period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of defaull as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reascnable and supportive fgrwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

» Internal credit rating;
»  External credit rating (as far as avaiiable);

»  Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet ifs obligations;

» Agtual or expected significant changes in the cperating resuits of the debtor;

*  Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same
debtor; and

»  Significant changes in the expected performance and behavieur of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status of debtor and changes in the operating
resulis of the debtor.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant risk in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment,

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 75 days of when they fall due. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when an evant that hag a détrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows have
cecurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes’ the following
observable data:

x significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

= a breach of contract such as default or being more than 75 days past due,



« the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on lerms that the Group
would not consider otherwise;

» it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or either financial
recrganization; or

» the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financiai
difﬁcuities.(

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery,
The Group categonzes a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make.
payments or when it is no longer probable that the receivable will be collected,
Wheére loans or receivables have been wiitten off, the Group cantinues to engage in
enforcament activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are
made, these are recognized in profif or loss.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
fhe consolidated statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or ta realize the asset and settie the liability simultaneously.

This is not generally the case with master nelting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statements of finangial
position.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financiat asset or
a paft of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= therights to recelve cash flows from the asset have expired;

» the Group retaing the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay {0 a third party
under a "pass-thfough” arfangement; or

= the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
{b} has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Group has trahsferred its rights to receive cash flows fram an asset or has
entered into a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantlally all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s conlinuing involvement in
the. ‘asset, Contmumg involvement that takes the form of 2 guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the fower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
pay.

Financial Liabilifies. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged, cancelled or has expired.



When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially -different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original fiability and the recogmtton of a new liabifity, and the difference in the
respective carrying amoaunts is recognized in profit or loss.

Determination of Fair Values.

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the
determination of fair value; for both fihancial and rionhfinancial assets and liabilities.
Fair values haveé beén determined for measurement andfor disclosure purposes,
when necessary, based on the market values, being the estimated amount for which
assets could be exchanged on thé date of the valuation between a willing buyer and
a wiling seller in an arm's length iransaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specifie 1o that asset of liability.

The different levels of fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method have been defined as follows:

» level 1: quoted piices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

~ Level2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e.; derived from prices), and '

¢ lLevel 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data {unchservable inputs).

ff the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability mighi be
categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirey in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest input that is significant to the éntire measurement:

Fair values of the financial instruments are discussed in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Spare Parts and Supplies

Spare parts and supplies. are siated at the lower of cost and current replacement
cost. Cost i3 détermined using the weighted average method and includes all
expenditures incurred in acguiring and bringing them to their existing location and
condition.

investment in. Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity controlied by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is expoesed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvernent with the entity
and has the ability to- affect those retums through its power over the entily. The
financia! statermnents of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
staternents from the date on which control commernces untl the date on which
control ceases.

Non-gontrofling Inferest _ .

NCH is measured at its proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at
the acguisition date. Changes in the Group's Interest in & subsidiary that do net result.
in a loss of contrdl are accounted for as equily transactions.



Loss of Controf

When the Grou;; loses confrol over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other componenis of equlty Any
resufting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the
former subsidiary is mieasured at fair value when control is lost.

investment in an Associate

The Group’s 35.71% investment i its associate, South Cotabato integrated Port
Services, Inc. (SG!PSI} is accounted for under the equlity method of accounting. An
associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence but not control or
Joint control, over the financial and operating policies.

Under the equity method, the investrnent in the associate is initially recognized at
cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to tecognize the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehenswe income of the associate after the
date of acquisition. The Group's share in the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate is recognized in the Group's consolidated statements of
income. Dividends received from the associate reduce the cafrying amount of the
investment. Adiustment to the carrying amount, may also be necessary for changes
in the Group’s proporticnate interest ih the associate arising from' changes in the
associate’s other comprehensive icome.

Goodwill relating 1o an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is not amortized.

‘The financial statéments of the associate are prepared for the same reporting: period
as the Group. The accounting policies of the associate conform to those used by the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Property and Equipment

Properly and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and any accymulated impalrment. Such cost includes the. cost of
repiacing part of such property and equipment at the time that cost is incurred, if the
Tecognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its construction cost or
purchage price, inciuding lmport duties, taxes and any directly atfributable costs in
bringing the asset to its working cendition and location for its intended use. Cost also
includes interest incurred during the construstion period on funds borrowed to
finance the censtruction of the projects, Expenditires incurred affer the asset has
been put into operation, such as repairs, malntenance and overhaul costs, are
normally recognized as expense in the period the costs are incurred. Major repairs
are capltauzed as part of properly and equipment only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the items will flow fo the Group and the cost of the
iterns can be measured reliably.

Port facilities and equipment include spare paris that the Group expects to use for
more than one year. These: are not depreciated untll ready for its intended use.
However, these are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the spare parts may not be
recoverable.
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Construction in progress fepresents struclures under construction and is stated at
cost. This includes the costs of construction and other direct costs, Borrowing costs
that are directly attributable to the construction of property and equipment are
capitalized during the construction peried. Construction in progress is not
depreciated until such time-that the relevant assets are substantially comp{eted and
ready for its intended use. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Numbér of Years
Port facilities and equipment 2. - 25 years or iife of the operating
' ¢ontract, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 2 - 40 years or term of the lease,
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-byears
Transpoertation and gther sguipment 2 -5 years

The remaining useful lives, rasidual values, depreciation and amortization method
are reviewed and adjusted periodically, if appropriate, to ensure that such periods
and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected
pattern of egonomic benefits from the items of property and equipment.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be.
recoverable,

Fully depreclated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or {oss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has been disposed
of or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the retirement and
disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit
or loss in the period of refirement or disposal.

intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Subseguent to initial recegnition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumuiated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible ‘assefs with finite lives are amortized using the straight-line method over
the period covered by the dontract or useful life, whichever is shorter. The
amortization period and the amortizatioh method are reviewed annually. Changes in
the expected useful life. or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are treated as changes in aceounting estimates, The
amortization expehse is recognized in profit or loss in the expense category
corisistent with the function of the intangible asset. Gains or losses arising from
dergcognition of an intangible asset are recognized in profit.or loss and measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset.
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Fort Cencession Rights

The Group recognizes pori concession rights as intangible assets. arising from a
service concession arrangements i which the granfor controls or regulates the
services provided and the prices charged, and also controls any significant residual
interests in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement, such as
property and equipment, if the infrastructure is existing infrastructure of the grantor or
the infrastructure is constructed or purchased by the Group as part of the service
cancession arrangements,

Port concession rights consist of:
a. Upfront fees payments on the concession contracts:

b. The cost of port infrastructures constructed and port equipment purchased,
which are not recognized as property and equipment of the Group but as
intangible dsset received as consideration for'such cost; and

c. Future fixed government share considerations in exchange for license or right.
Fixed government share is recognized at present value using the discount rate at
the inception date with a corresponding liability recognized. Interest on the
unwinding of discount of the lability and foreign exchange differences arising
from transiations are recognized in profit or loss,

Port cencession rights are delermined ds intangible assets with finite useful lives and.
are -amortized using the straight-line method over the coneession period or useful
fife, whichever is sharter. The amoitization period and the amartization method are
reviewed annhudlly. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense is recogriized in profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.
Gains or losses arising fram derecognition of an intangible asset are recognized in
profit or foss and measured as thé difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset.

Fort congession rights are amartized using the straight-line method over the term of
contract asset or useiul life ranging from 2 {o 25 years whichever is shorter.

Goodwill

Goodwill acguired in a business combination' is initially measured at cost belng the
excess of the cost of the busiriess combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiabie assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial
regognition, goodwill is measured at cost less a@ny accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill s reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the investment to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount is less than the camrying
-amount of the investmeént, an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed. Where part of the operation within the investment
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the operation, Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the poriion of the cash-generating
unit retained.
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impairment of Non-financial Asseis

The carrying amounts of investment in an associate, property and equipment,
intangible assets other than goodwill and right-of-uUse assets are reviewed for
impairment when evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, and if the carrying
amount exceads the estimatad recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating
units are written down to their recoverable ameunts, The recoverable amount of the
asset s the greater of fair value less costs to sell or value in use, The fair value legs
cosis to sell is the amount-obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's-length
transaction less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash’
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Impairment losses of ‘continuing operations are recognized in profit or loss
in those expense calegories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as fo whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment fosses may no lenger exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimdted. A
previously recognized impairment [oss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amopunt that would have been determined, net of depreciation and
amortization, had rio impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
Such-reversal is recegnized in profit or loss. After such reversal, the depreciation and
amortization charge. is adjusted in future periods to aliocafe the assel's revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over ifs remaining
useful life. ' '

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has: (a) a present obligation {legal or
constructive) as a result of past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than not)
that an ouiflow of resources embadymg egonamic benefits Wi! | be required o setfle
the obligation; and {(c} 2 reliable sstimaie can be made of the amount of the
obligation. |f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time: value of money and those. risks
specific fo the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense, Where some or all of the
expenditure reguired to sétlle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only when, it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the en’uty settles the obligation. The
reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognized for the
reimbursement shail not -excegd the amount of the provision, Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Share Capital

Capital Stock

Capital stock is classified as equity. incremental costs directly atiributable to the
issue of common shares -are recognized as @ deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.
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Additional Pajid-in Capital

The amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as “Additional
paid-in capital.” Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from additionsl paid-in capital, net'of any related income tax benefit.

Retaibed Farnings and Dividend Distribution

Retained earnings include current and prior years’ results, net of dividends declared,
if any, and other capital adjusiments.

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognized as a liability, and
deducted from equity In the Group’s consolidated statements of financial position in
the period in which the dividends are approved and declared by the Group's BOD.

Retained earnings may aiso include prior year adjusiments and the effect of changes
in accounting policies as may be required by the standards’ transitional provigions.

Revenue, Cost and Expense Recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group recognizes revenue when it iransfers control over a service to a
customer, Reévenue is measured based on the ‘consideration specified In a contract
and PPA Tariff regulations, which are all fixed amounts, for each type of services
rendered net of variable consideration, if any. The PPA established all relevant port
regulations, basic port services and semvice level requirements, liability on cargo,
security, and safety. The Group's: revenue is well defined in PPA Operations
Memaorandum Cirgutar No. 02-2018 and revised schedule of Cargo Handling Tariff
implemenied on June 5, 2018,

The foliowing is-a description of principal activities from which the Group generates
its revenue. Revénue is disaggregated by the following service lines:

= Stevedoring

The Greup generates stevedoring revenue from all works performed on board
vessel, The aclivity includes mevement of cargoes from ship-fo-shore,
shore-fo-ship lifting -for inbound and eutbound and transshipment including the
related stevedoring transportation and liftings from shore t¢ yard and yard to
shore. The activity generally finishes in a short period of ime (l.e. 24 to 48 hours
from the time ship arrives at the port). The Group recognizes revenue at a point
in time upon completion of service and the average crédit term is 15 to 30 days.

x Arrastre
The Group generates arrastre revenue from poriside carge handling operations,
The activity includes receiving, handling, custody, security and delivery of cargo
passing over piers, guays, warehouses and open storages within the
jurisdictional area of responsibility of the Group. The Group recognizes revenue
upon completion of service (i.e at a point in time). The customer pays arrastre
charges before the release of cargoes.

«  [Logistics
Logistics operation includes trucking and handlings services. The Group
recoghizes revenue Upon completion of service (i.e at a point in time) and the
average credit term is 15 {o 30 days.
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» Special and Others Services

Special and other services include siorage, reefer monitoring, container freight
servicing, and equipment or manpower rental. Majority of these service lines
pertains to storage revenues. Storage revenues are charges from the use of
warehouses and/or open storages within the jurisdictional area of responsibility
of the Group beyond the free storage period. Customers are billed upon
withdrawal of cargoes from the terminal (for import) or upon loading of cargoes to
vessel (for export), The Group recognizes revenues over a period of time
(number of days. the container stayed in the jurisdictional area) and the average
credit term is15 fo 30 days.

Other income
Other income is recognized at the point in time when the service has been rendered.

Finance Income
Finance incorme. is recognized .on a time proportion basis that refiects the effective
yield on the investment..

Construction Reveriues and Costs

The Group recognizes revenue related to construction and upgrade of services
under service concession arrangement in accordance with PFRS 15, Revenue from
Conlracts with Customers. When the construction or upgrade services are provided
or delivered under concession arrangement accocunted within the scope of Philippine
Inferpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements the consideration is
measured at the estimated selling price of the construction services provided. No
margin has been recognized since the estimated selling price of the consideration
sgrvices provided approximates the consiruction costs. The nature of the
consideration determines the subsequent accounting. The consideration is classified
as a contract asset under intangible assets during the construction or upgrade. period
in accordance with PFRS 15.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are recognized upon receipt of goods, utilization of services or
at the date they are incurred.

Baorrgwing Cosis

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connecticn
with the borrowing of funds. Borfowing costs are capitalized if they are directly
-attributable to the aequisition or construction of a qualifying asset. The capitalization
of borrowing costs: (a) commences when the activities to prepare the assets are in
progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred; {b) is suspended
during extended periods in which agtive development, improvement and construction
of the assets are interrupted; and (c) ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets are complete. These costs are amortized using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the related property, plant and
equipmentto which it is capitalized.

Borrowing costs that are not directly aftributable 6 the acquzs;tlon construction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
these are incurred using the effective interest method.
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Leases

At the inception of the contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to conirol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to controt the use of
an identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease in PFRS 18, Leases.

Group as Lessee:

At commencement or -on modification of a contract that contains a lease component,
the Group aliocates the considération in the coniract to each lease component on the
basis of ils relative stand-alone price.

However, for leases of property the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and acecount for the lease and associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and & lease Hability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, ‘which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently deprecidgted using the straight-liné method
from the commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying assetto the Group by the end of the lease term
or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase
option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of
the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property
and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease
liability.

The lease Hability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, and the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate.

The Group determines its incrémental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates. from
various extérnal financial surces and makes gertain adjustments to reflect the terms
of the igase and type of the assét leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following:

= fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

» variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

x  amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
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= the exercise price under a purchase' option that the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an éxiension option, and pehafties for early
termihation of a lease uniess the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate
garly,

The-iease liability is measured at amortized cost using effective interest method, it is
remeasured when there is & change in future lease payments arisifig from a change
in an Index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimaté of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group's changes
its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option
or if there is a revised in substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made fo the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
the carrying amount of the rght-of-use asset has been réduced {0 zero,

The Group has elected not to reécognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases of short-term leases and low-value assets, if any, The Group recoghizes the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a siraight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group has classified:

» cash payments for the principal portion of lease payments as financing activities;

» cash payments for the interest portion as operating activities consistent with the
presentation of inlerest payments chosen by the Group; and

* shori-term lease and payments for leases of low value assets as operafing
activities.

Employee Benefits

a. Short-term Employes Benefils
Short-term employes benefits are expensed as the related service is. provided. A
liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a
present, legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employes and the obligation can be estimated reiiably.

b. Pensions _
ATI and ATIB ‘have funded, defined benefil pension plans, administered by a
common pension {rustee, covering their permanent employees. The cost of
providing benefits under the defined benefit pension plans. is deteérmined
separatety for @ach plan using the projected unit credit method.

The defined benefit pension asset or liabllity comprises the present vaiue of the
defined benefit obhgatlon less the fair value of plan assets out of which the
obligation is to be seltled directly. The value of any plan asset recognized Is
restricted to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan.
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Remeasurements of the net defined benefit pension liability, which comprise
actuarfal gains and lossés, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
effect of the asset celling (lf any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately
in other comprehensive income. The Group determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit pension lizbility (asset) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the .
beginning of the annual peried to the then net defined benefit pension Hability
{asset), taking into. account any changes in the net défined pension liability
(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense arid other expenses related {o defined benefit perision plans.are
recognizéd in profit orjoss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resuiting
change. in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curailment is
recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognizes. gains and losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit pension plan whan the settlement oceurs.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The consolidated finaricial statements dre presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Group's functional currency. Transactiohs in foreign currencies are transiated to the
functional currency at exchange rafes at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated fo the functional currency at the exchange rate at that dats. Al
differences are taken to the profit or loss, Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis.

Taxes

Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
it refates to a business combination, or items recognized directly In equity or in other
comprehensive income,

Current Tax, Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year, using tax rates (tax laws) enacted or substahtively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred Tax. Deferred fax is recognized in respect of femporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable {emporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the:
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be ulilized.

Deferred tax labiliies are not provided on nen-taxable temporary difference
associated with investment in associate.

The carrying amouni of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to aliow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be regovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply In the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively énacted by the end of the
reporting period.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account
the impact of uncertain tax. positions and whether additional taxes and interest may
be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabllities are adequate for all
open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretation of
tax laws and prior experiénce. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions
and may involve a series -of judgments about future evenis. New information may
become available thal causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the
adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax
expense in the peried that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lizbilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current fax assefs against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Value Added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assels are recagnized net of the
amount of VAT, extept:

= where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assels or services is not recoverable
from the tax authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of the.
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense ifem as applicable; and

« receivables and payables that are stated with amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authorily is included
as part of receivables or payables in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

Earnings Per Share (EPS) _ _
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the year after giving
retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared during the year.

The Group does not have potential common shares or other instruments that may
entitle the holder to common shares. Hence, diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS,

Operaling Segments

THe Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according
to the lines of business: port and non-port, with each segment representing a
strategic business uni thal serves different markets. The BOD reviews segment
reports on a regular basis.

The Group has a single reportable operating segment, as its business has been
mainly on port operations and the non-port operation is insignificant to the Group's
iotal business.

The Group operates only in the Philippines which is freated as a single geographical
segment.

Segment capital expenditure s the tofal cost incurred during the year {o acquire
property and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill,
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Contingencies

Contingent liabilities ‘are. not recognized in the consclidated financial statemenis.
They are disclosed in the notes to the consoiidated financial statements uniess the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end evenls that provide additional information about the Group's
censolidated financial position at the reporting date (adjusiing events) are reflected in
the consolidated financial statements, Post year-end events that are not adjusting
evenis are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.

5. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with
PFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the: application of accounting policies and amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses reported in the consolidated financial statemenis at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these judgments, estimatés and assumptions could
result in an outcome that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of the affected asset or liability in the future.

Judgmenis and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations. of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, Revisions are recognized in the
period in which the judgments and estimates are reviséd and in ahy future periods.
affected.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting poficies, management has made

the following judgments, apart from those uwo}vmg astimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Functional Currency, Based on the economic substance of the underlying
cireumstances relevant to the Group, the functional currency of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries has baen detertnined to be the Philippine péso. it is the currency
that mainly influences the price and cost of providing services.,

Service Congession Amangements. The Group has determined that the operating
econtracts are within the scepe of IFRIC 12, accounted for- under the intangible asset
madel.

The intangible assets pertaining to concession rights as at December 31, 2023 and
2022 are presented in Note 11 td the consolidated financial statements.
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Port Concession Rights and Port Concessioh Rights Payable. Estimates and
assumptions are required on the determination of the cost of port concession rights
on service concession arrangéments to determine the extent to which the Group
receives a right or license 1o charge users of public service. Port concession rights
inciudes future fixed government share considerations in exchange for ficense or
right. Fixed government share is recognized at present value using the discount rate
at the inception date with a corresponding liability {port concession rights payable)
recognized. In making those estimates, the management is required to determine a
suitable discount rate to calculate the present value of port concessions rights and
port concession rights payable. The Group.believes that, while the assumptions.used
are reasonatle and appropriate, these estimates and assumptions can materiaily
affect the consolidated financial statements.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements
are based .upon-management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of
the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from
such estimates,

Provisions for Claims. The Group records provisions for claims. for property,
equipment and cargo damage and for pending civil and iabor cases when it is
determined that an unfavorabie outcome is probable and the amount of the claim can
he reasonabfy ssfimated. The determination of the amount of reserves required, if
any, is based on managements analysis of each individual issue, often with
assistance of oulside legal counsel.

Provisions for claims amounted to P58.8 million and PB81.0 milion as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Note 15).

Lease Extension Opfion. Some properly leases contain extension opfiens
exercisable by the Group before the end of the non-canceliable contract period. The
Group assesses at lease commencement date whaether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension optiens: The Group reassess. whether it is reasonably certain
‘to exefcise the oplions if there is a significant event or significant changes in
cireumstances within-its control.

Lease liabifities on properly leases on which extension options were exercised
amounted {o P48.7 million and P31.8 million as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note 2023 2022
Cash on hand and in banks P520,599 P624,833
Short-term investments 4,904,339 3,875,434

24, 25 P5,424,938 P4.600,267
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Cash in banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Majority of short-term invesiments are on 80-day term subject to rol-over
requirements of the Group and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates
amounting to P189.1 miilion, P45.5 million and P5.8 miflion in 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively (see Note 19).

'7. Trade and Other Recéivables

Nofe 2023 2022

Trade receivables 609,257 P736,984.
Due from related parties 20 107,024 18,731
Receivable from insurance: 82,757 56,621
Advances {o officers and empioyees 22,786 28,020
Interest receivable 11,131 12,207
Receivable from escrow fund - 13,635
Cther receivables 31,893 42 982
834,848 810,180

Allowance for impairment losses {4,195) (4,195}
24 25 PB830,653 PS05,985

Trade and other receivables are noninterest-bearing and generally have credit term
of thirty (30) days.

There was no movement in allowance far impairment losses on trade and other
receivables in 2023 and 2022 (see Note 24).

8. Prepaid Expenses

2023 2022

Taxes 2,729,206 P2.487,343
Insurance 11,025 9,217
Rental 3,927 3,927
Advances fo contractors 2,520 2,035
Advances 1o government agencies 101 101
Others 29,654 20,640
P2,776,433 P2,503,263

Taxes pertain fo the Group's input VAT credils, netof output VAT.

Rentals pertain to prepayments on shori-term leases entered during the period. The
Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these

leases.
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8. Investment in an Associate

ATl has a 35.71% interest in SCIPSI, which is engaged in arrastre, stevedoring and
other related cargo handiing services, -except porterage, in Makar Wharf, General
Bantos City, Philippines. SCIPSI is not listed In any public exchange. The camying
amount of investment in an associate as at December 31 follows:

_ Naote 2023 2022
Acquisition cost P14,222 P11,222
Accurmnulated eqguity i net earnings®

Balance at bedinning of year 44,060 47,151
Equity in net earmings fer the vear 19 38,812 32,374
Dividends received during the year (28,658) (35,465)
54,214 44,060

P65,436 P55,282

The information presented in the table includes the result of SCIPSI's operations for
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. The following table also reconclies
the summarized financial information t¢ the carrying amount of the Group's interest

in SCIPSL.
20323 2022
Current assets P165,483 P125,617
Noncurrent assets 49,228 48,607
Total assets P244,709 P174 224
Current liabilities P44,448 P3_5_,86_Q
Noncurrent abilities 1,636 1,432
Total liabllities P46,084 P37,292
Nef assets P168,625 P136,932
Share in net assets’ P§0,216 P48,698
__Excess of cost over the interest 5,220 8,384
Carrying amount of interest P&85,436 P55,282
Revenues ' P297,047 P283,941
Expenses {188,360) (193,283)
Net income P108,687 P90,658

Based on unaudited finanaial statéments
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10. Property and Equipment - net

The movements in this account are as follows:

2023
Part FurnHure,  Transporiation
Fasilities and Leasehiold Fixtures and and Other  Construction
Equipment  Improvements Equipmant Equipment ih-progress. Tokat
Cost
Batarics al beginning of year P224,268 FT07,135 PO35:940 P328,305 P1,960,215 P4,155,563
Additians : 1,343, 84,200 50,795 4,445 77.953 278,746
Bisposals- - {81,255 {5,259 {21,628 . {118, 1400
Reciassifinaiong v 1,782,665 24,814 45,7115 1,853,204} -
Balance at end of yoar 226,611 2 ABZTAT 1,005 394 418,837 184,880 4,318,458
Accumdiated Deprecialion
Batarze at beginning of year 131,137 527,218 713,372 220,825 . 1,582,652
Daprociation 13,440 92,311 57,770 47,111 - 240,632
Dispdsals - - {5,2594 120,35} - {36,564}
‘Batanca at end of year 144,577 519,629 784,882 47,531 - 1,806,720
. Garrylng Amaount PZ,034 P1.863,118 F210,51% Pa71,206 P154,880 P2.814,749
2022
_ Pan Futrhes, Transportation
Facilitlas arid Leasahold Fixtires and and Gther Gonsiruction
Eguipment improvements Eauipman Eouipment Jo-RIDGrass Total
Cost
Baiance al beginaing of vear P222.4B6 PE&3,405 Ra1g,51h Paga2ir F1,282,618 P3,308,298
Addiions ’ 2Fi8 11,576 BGF02 44,951 734,005 854 012
Risposals - - f4,346) {7,968) - {12,314]
__Reclassificaiivng 4 2,150 54,0639 {950} 56,4067 HEBET
Balanee at end of year da5288 FOT,135 235,940 230,305 1,960,215 4,158,853
Accumulsted Daepreclation . . . . .o
Balsnee o Beglnning of year 196,162 485,188 832,073 184,124 - 1,417,584
Depreciakion 14,545 42,123 85,181 44101 - 186350
Eispesals: - - {35623 {7,400 - {11282}
Balance a) end of year 131,137 527,418 713,272 230,825 . 1,592,652
Carmying Amauat ot F17g,B17 pe2a 5E8 P408,480 P1IGBRE P2.856.211

No borrowing costs were capitalized in 2023 and 2022.

The Group has non-cash addifions for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022 which amounted to P186.1 million and P24.3 millien, respectively.

Degreciation is charged under "Depreciation and amortization” account inclisded in
“Costs and expenses excluding government share in revenues” in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 18},

Cost of fully depreciated property and equipment which are still being used by the

Group amounted to P712.0 million and P620.8 imillion as at December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

-2 -



11. Intangible Assets.- net

‘“The movements in this account are as follows:

2023
Port Contession Rights
Fixad
Upfront Fees Government Part
{Note 23) _Share. Infrastructure Subtotal BGoadwili Total
Cost
Hatance af beginniny ) ) .
of year PRB2,000 P3,279,654 F25,508 643 P.35,B?0,301_' P42,660 P35,712,367
Agidi_tiogs - - 2,061,603 2,061,603 . 2,064,603
_Disposais . - _{15,8531 {15,653} - {15,653}
Balance at end of year 282,000 P5,279,694 #7,554,563 47,716,257 42,050' 37,758,317
Accumuiated
Amditization
‘Batance atheginning ]
of yeas 108,494 4,628,828 9,894,121 14,631,443 - 14,631,442
Amaortization 41,280 478,406 1,057,711, 1,547 3687 " 1,547,397
Disposais - - i1 5'_6 53) {15,653} - {15,633
Balance at end of year 118,774 5,107,234 10,938,479 15,163,187 - 18,169,187
Carrylng Amount 762,226 P4,472,460  P16,518,384  F21,553,070 P42,060 P21,595,130
2022 _
Port Concession Rights
Fixed
Upfront Fees Government Port )
iNole 23Y Share  |Infrastutice Subtotat Goodwli Total
Cost
Balance af beginming ) ] ) o
of year sz, 0048 P,279.694 PR3,934 464  PI4.096,158 42,060 P34,138,218
Addiions - - 2,041,736 2,041,735 - \2[141.738
Reclassifications - - 18.747) {8,747} - (8,747
Disposais - - 4 5&_&4 9] (458 E40) - {486,640}
Batance af end of year BEZ,000 '9,2?9;694- 25,508 613 35,670,307 42 0% AR, T12.3657
Accumuiated
Amorilzaticn
Baiznce at beginaing .
ofyear a7, 244 4,532 562 8,155,911 13,500,887 13,586,687
Aprortization 11,260 268 266 4,185 478 4,903,024 - 1,503,024
Disposals - - (458,268) {458,266} - {458,268)
Balance stend ot year 108,484 4 628,828 9,854 121 14,631,443 - 14,631,443
Carying Ao Pr7aAns P4GE0EG5  P15614,492  P21,038,554 242080 P2i480424

The unamottized capitalized borrowing costs as at December 31, 2023 and 2022
amounted to P50.0 million and P54.7 million, respectively. No borrowing costs were
capitalized in 2023 and 2022.

Amortization is charged under “Depreciation and amortization” account included in
"Costs and expenses excluding government share in revenues” in the consclidated
statements of income (see Note 18).

The Group has non-cash additions for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022 which amounted to P121.7 millicn and P54.9 million, respectively.
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Contract asset under Port infrastructure represents ongoing construction of port
facilities and eventual putting info service in accordance with the investment Plan.
The movemants in contract asset are as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year P2,734,320 P1,840,748
Additions during the year 1,920,973 1,928,019
Reclassification during the year (1,306,974) (1.034,447)
Balance at end of year P3,348,319  P2,754,320
Goodwill
Key Assumptions

In.testing impairment of goodwill, the recoverable amount of ATIR is the value in use,
which has been determined by calculating the present value of cash flow projections
from the operations of ATIB. The average revenue growth rate assumption used was
5.0%. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 8.0% in 2023 and 9.4% in
2022 based ¢n the Industry’s weighted average cost of capital (WACC).

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions

The estimated recoverable amount of ATIB exceeds its carrying amount by
approximately P3.0 billion and P1.8 billion in 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Management has identified that earnings before interest and tax and discount rates
are the key assumptions for which there could be a reasopably poessible change that
could cause the carrying amount to exceed the receverable amount.

12. Other Noncurrent Assets

Note 2023 2022

Debosits 24 25 P70,899 P84 107
Equity securilies : 24, 25 2,652 2,652

P73,5651 P8B,758

Deposits mainly represent payments related to refundable security deposits on
property leases and utiliies. This account includes noninterest-bearing refundable
security deposits on a lease agreement that was carrled at fair value as of initial
recagnition determined based on the present vajue of future cash flows discounted
using effective interest rate of 5.8% in 2023 and 6.0%. in 2022. The carrying amoeunts
of these refundable security deposits at amoftized cost amounied to P15.C million
and P14.8 million as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Equily securities consist of investments in quoted and unguoted shares,
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13, Income Tax

On March 26, 2021, the President of the Philippines has approved the Corporate
Recovery ‘and Tax Incentives for Enterprises or the CREATE Act, with nine (§)
provisions vetoed by the President. Effective July 1, 2020, the Group, being qualified
as large corporation, has ifs corporate income tax lowered from 30% to 25%.

The components of taxes are as follows:

2023 2022 2021
Current tax P1,452,484 P1,137,822 P808,801
Deferred tax (10,747} (178,218) (63,404)
Changes in tax rate:.
Currenf tax - - {91,883)
Deferred tax - - 144 367
P1,441,737 PY59,604 P797,881

A reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the effective iax rate on income
befere income tax follows:

2023 2022 2021
Statutory income tax rate 25.00% 25.0% 25.0%
Changes in income tax rate
resulting frém: _
income subjected to final tax {0.80} (0.23) (0.28)
Change in income-tax rate - - 1.73
Cthers 0.32 (0.71) (0.17)
Effective income tax rate 24.62% 24.06% 26.28%

The movemaents in deferred tax balances are as follows:

Nek Recgyrlzed Ducember 3
_ Bafenta at inProfit Reciognizod Doferred Deferrad’
pliya) Note January 4 or LGss in OCI Tax Assets  Tax Liahillbios Neat
“Bor cancassion ights
‘ayabio relaied lo fied
governmeat share P453,566 £7,044 Fo- PAED,830 B P46E,630
Unrealized foreign . )
gxohange 10ss - Net 394,735 13,478 - 398,214 - 398,214
Panslon iabiity #1 T (2412 15,E7% 74,120 - 74128
Asoruad expanses 48,718 {8,602) . hEREE] - w1414
Ewcess of cost over net
redlizable vaiue of spare L . .
pofs.and suppies 14,807 2,500 - 22,307 - 22,307
Provisions iy olalme 15,288, {543) B 14,717 - 14,717
Rignt-of-use and lease .
fiabifity 5.F2A {2,020 - 4,860 . 4,800
Impaipen; iosses on -
cackivahlng 2,254 - - 2,354 - 2,254
Unamardized sepitalizad
orrowing costsand )
Lusiem duties {14,179} 1,340 - = {12 BBy {12569
Nt tax assis tiahinies) P475,876 0,747 Pi5E7Z 74,015,164 {P12,069) P1,002,295
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et Racognized fecagtber 31

Balsnce a1 i Proflt Recognizog Daferrad Deferred

7022 HMote Januany g of Loss In 301 Tax Agsity Tax Liabiiitics Mal
Bon coneessian rights

payable refaled io ixad ) . .

gaverrmen, share P430,655 93,539 "o FagsEas P PAs3 586
Unrealkzed foraign

exthange Ioss - nel 253,408 431333 - 384,735 - 384735
Bension lanilty 21 54,591 {37} {4,668 BB - 50,888
Accrued expenees 19,274 27 447 - 4B 716 - 48,716
Excass of cast over pel

eaiizabie valse af

spare parts and . )

suppiies AR {1,828 - 19,807 - 18,807
Preyisigns for ciaims 15,513 (54l - 15,280 - 14,260
Right-af-use and ieasa

liaDisty 42 B.426 -~ 6.B28 - & 528
Irnpairment losses on ) .

raceivaites 2.284 - - 2,254 - 2284
Unamgrtizad capitafizcs

borrowing costs and

cusiom duties {15.495) 1,311 - - 114 1794 {14 174y
Net tax assets [Hiabiities) PAMH 354 78218 [FEGEE) PoulasE P14,174) PoYS.ATE

Deferred tax asseis have been recognized because management believes that the
Group will earn sufficient future taxable profits against which it can utilize the benefits.
therefrom.

“14. Trade and Other Payables

Note 2023 2022
Accrusd expenses. _
Marketing, cammerctal, promotion and
business development P529,847 P643,570
Finance costs 129,098 136,918
Repairs and maintenance 86,296 77.183
Personnel costs 85,815 81,070
insurance 68,460 51,758
Professional fees 49,405 48,459
Security experises 38,677 28,281
Trucking expense _ 24,600 27,178
Rentals _ 23 21,851 21,760
Corporate social responsibility 14,156 23,156
Utifitles 14,080 13,444
Safely and environment 3,799 4,015
Miscellaneous accriied expenses 120,681 105,655
Due o government agencies 23 967,569 939,018
Eguipment acquisitions 255,405 339,503
Trade 244,925 442,235
Shippers’ and brokers’ deposits 97,555 116,545
Manageameni fee payable 20 17,266 19,215
Other payables . 20 175,123 163,644

24, 25 P2,8534,416 P3,292 607

Following are the terms and conditions of the above liabilifies:

v Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settied on 30 o
60-day terms.

= Accfued finante costs are normally setfled quarterly and semi-annually
throughout the financial year.
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«  Other payablgs dre non-interest b‘eariing_ and are normally settled within twelve
months from inception date. This account includes dividends and other non-trade
payables.

Rentals pertain to short-term leases entéred during the period,

15. Provisions for Claims

The movements and balances of this account are as follows:

Note 2023 2042
Balance at beginning of year PB1,044 P63,216
Provisions during the year 18 48 832
Payments during the year {2,219) {3,004}
Balance at-end of year P58,873 P&1,044

Provisions relate to property and equiptnent, and cargo damage and other claims. It
is expected that most of these provisions will be setlled within the next financial year
or of demand.

16. Eqjuity

Pursuant {o the regisiration statement rendered effective by the SEC and permit {o
sell issued by the SEC both dated April 7, 1895, 1 billion common shares of the
Parent Company were registered and may be offered for sale at an offer price of
P5.10 per comman share. On March 26, 1999, another registration statement was
rendered. effective by the SEC and permit to sell issued by the SEC for 1 biliion
common shares of the Parent Company and may be offered for sale at an offer price
of P1.00 per conwnon share. As at December 31, 2023, the Parent Company has a
total of 2 billion issued and outstanding common shares and 821 stockholders.

Capital Stock - P1 Par Value
The Parent Company has 2.0 biliion issued and fully paid capital stock, fram its
8.0 billion awthorized common shares, as &t December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Retained Earnings _

The Group's unappropristed relained earnings includes the subsidiaries'
unappropriated net eamings of P11.9 million and P17.6 million and the Group’s
accumilated equity in the net earnings of an associate amounting to P54.2 million
and P44.1 million as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which are
available for distribution only upon declaration of dividends by such subsidiaries t0
the Parent Company and the associate to the Group. Cash dividends are distributed
yearly since 2000,

Cash Dividends

On April 27, 2023, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of 1,00 per
share payable on June 20, 2023 to common shareholders: of record as at
May 28, 2023.

On April 28, 2022, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of P0.808

per share payable on June 17, 2022 to common shareholders of record as at
May 28, 2022.
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On April 22, 2021, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
P1.408.0 milion or PO.703 per share payable on June 10, 2021 to common
shareholders of record as at May 17, 2021.

-Appropriation and Reversal of Appropriation of Retained Eamings

On December 29, 2023, the Group's BOD approved the reversal of the appropriated
retained sarnings amounting to P2.4 billion out of the already approved appropriation
of P16.4 billion, for capital expenditures for 2023 and 2022, Furthermore, the Group's
BOD approved an appropriation of the retained earmings amounting to P5.0 billion for
capital expenditures for the next 5 years. The Group’s BOD also approved on the
same date a budget amounting te P16.0 biflion for capital expenditures which include
vard and berth development as well as construction of new fagilities and equipment
acguisition for 2024 to 2028. The. capital expenditures will strengthen the Group's
operations and capability to handie growth.

On December 29, 2022, the Group's BOD approved the reversal of the appropriated
retained earnings amounting to P2.0 biflion out of the already approved appropriation
of P15.1 billion, for capital expenditures for 2022 and 2021, Furthermore, the Group's
BOD approved an appropriation of the retained eamnings amounting to P3.3 billion for
capital expenditures for the next 4. years. The Group’s BOD also approved on the
same date a budget amounting to P16.0 billion for capital expenditures which include
yard and berih develapment as well as construction of new facilities and eguipment
acquisition for 2023 to 2026. The capital expendifures will strengthen ifie Group's
operations and capability to handie growth.

COn December 31, 2021, the Group’s BOD approved the reversal of the appropriated
retained earnings amountmg to P2.5 bilfion out.of the already approved appropriation
of P14.0 billion, for capital expenditures for 2021 and 2020, Furthermore, the Group's,
BOD approved an appropriation of the retained earnings amounting to P3.8 billion for
capital expenditures for the next 5 years. The Group's BOD also approved on the
same date a budget amounting to P17.5 billion for capital expenditures which-include
yard and berth development as well as construction of new facilities and equipment
acquisition for 2022 to 2026. The capital expenditures will strengthen the Group's
operations and capability o handie growth.

Fair Value Reserve _ __ o
Fair value reserve amounting to P5.8 million as at December 31, 2023 and 2022
repraesents unrealized loss on equity securities.

17. Gavernment Share in Revenues

This account consists of the PRPA's share in revenues of the Group as. stipuiated in
the agreemenis discussed in Notes 2 and 23, The PPA’s share In gross revenues
includes variable government share amounting to P2.7 billion, P2.5 billion and P1.9
billion in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively (see Note 23).
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18, Costs and Expenses Excluding Government Share in Revenues

Note 2023 2022 2021

Depreciation and _

amortization 10, 11, 23 P1,989,066 P1,908,756 P1,849,725
Labor costs 21 1,758,712 1,633,131 1,485,219
Equipment running 850,123 824 520 665,431
Taxes and licenses 503,507 548,240 419,726
Facilifies-related _ '

EXpenses 309,287 270,287 214 414
Insurance 276,031 213,391 108,358
Management fees 20 259,221 173,445 133,558
‘General transport- 212,893 179,283 116,549
-Security, health, '

environment and

safety _ 183,346 167,477 162,497
Marketing, commercial _

and promotion 22,709 10,391 7.015
Frofessional fees 21,837 25,410 12,888
Rental 23 10,851 33,745 13,860
Entertainment,

amuseirient ahd

recreation 8,847 10,066 3,453
Provision for claims 15 48 83z 7172
Others 221,187 176,428 136,225

P6,628,665 PB6,176,412 P&,426,240

Labor costs include salaries, benefits and pension expense.

Spare parts and supplies used and included under equipment running amounted to
P272.6 million, P256.4 million and P248.4 milion in 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Provision fer spare parts and supplies obsolescence included under other costs and
expenses amouniad to P10.0 milllon in 2023 and nil in 2022 and 2021.

Rental pertains to short-term leases incurred during the period.



19, Other income and Expenses
Finance income inciudes interest on cash in banks and shortterm investments
amounting to P188 1 million, P45.5 million and P5.8 million in 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively (see Note 8).

Finance cost is broken down as follows:

Noate 2023 2022 2021
Interest on port
concession rights
payable _ P445,150 ‘P468,782 P490,.497
Interest on lease liahility 23 43,627 28,737 7.530
Interest companent of
pension expense 21 11,995 9,777 5,753
Interest on bank
loans/credit facilities 2,759 276 288
P503,531 P505,572 P504,068

Intérest on port concession rights payable pertains to the interest onthe unwinding of
discount of said liability (see related policy on port concession rights in Note 4},

Others corisist of the following:

Note 2023 2022 2021

Eguity in net earnings of _
an associate g P3g,812 P32,374 P44, 782
Management income 20 7,950 7.557 8,588

Gain on disposal of

equipment and

intarigible assets 5,359 6,418 1,232
Foreign exchange

{losses) - port

goncession rights.

payable. {66,418} {728,712) (459,448)
Foreign exchange gains _
{losses) - others (8,481) 127,889 135,737
Other ingome - net 83,086 24,782 14,202
' P40,328 (P529,694), (P254,907)

Foreign exchange gains (losses) - port concession rights payable resulted from
revaluation of foreign currency denominated port concession rights payable.

Other income - net recognized in 20_2’3 js mostly comprised of income from the
reversal of jong-outstanding deposits of dormant customers of the Parent Company.
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20. Reiated Party Transactions

Parties are considered ta be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to conirol the other party or exercise significant infiluence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to commaon conirol. Related parties may be individuals or corporate
entities.

The Group, in-the normat course of business, has the following transactions with its
related parties;

Cutstandltig Balance

Amaynt Dute from Pue to
Categoryf ‘of th Relater Reiated Lease
Transaction Neote  Year _ Transastion Parties Partigs Llablity Terms ‘Conditians
Assoclate
= Manggemedt 204 2022 P7.550 Fa4t P~ o Payahie an Unsécured;
inzome demand no impalrment
2022 7,857 491 - B Pavable on Unsecurad;
demand no impaiTrent
= Chvidend ineome g 2023 28,558 - - . Payable on  Wnsecured;
demand a0 impalrment
2022 354588 - - - Fayable an Unsecured;
demand no impeirmett
Post-Employment
Benefit Fian, )
« Ratirement fund 208 2023 55,682 24,839 - - ‘Payable on Unsesured;
demarnd no impalrment
2022 35,418 13,802 - - ‘Payabie an Unserured,
dernang aoimpalment
Othars- _ )
« Advances 200 2023 8,835 1,444 29,677 . Fayable on Unsecured;
. demand ne impalrment
ity 112,682 5,338 3,587 - Fayabie on Unsectited:
) ) ) ‘damand o impairmant
» Management 20 7023 253,281 - 12,266 - Payable Unsecured
faes. within ten
(10 days) of
‘the following
manth
2022 173,445° - 15,215 - Payabie Urisatured
within ien
{10} days of
the following
month
= i.ease 20 2022 45,413 - - 375,638 Payable Unsecured
within five
{5 days) of
the following
_ _ nonith
2023 41,583 . - AZ6348  Fayabie ‘Unsecured
within flve
{5 days) of
the fallowing
monih
TOTAL 2023 piar,o24 P486.843 PaT8,638
TOTAL 3022, P15 P23212 Fagi 248
A. Amount owed by SCIPS| partains to management fees equivalent 10 8% of gfoss
revenue of SCIFGL
B, The Parent Company and ATIB have separate, nonconiributory, defined benefit
retirement plans covering all its regular employees, in the form of @ trust being
maintained by a trustee bank. Certain payments to refired employees were paid
directly by the Group to.be subsequently pald by the retirement fund.
C. P & O Management Services Phils., Inc. (POMB) is a related party which Is 40%

owned by POAL. POMS engages in advisory services. which I provides to the
Parent Company by virtue of a 5-year contract. The Parent Company's contract
with POMS expired in 2020 and was renewed on August 27, 2020 for another
five years untii Augtst 31, 2025. The terms of the contract provide for the
payment of @ monthly fee equwaient to 5% of ATI's consolidated income before
income tax of the immediately preceding month (see Note 18).
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0. Advances include amounis owed fo or by DP Warld Asia Holdings Limited-
Regional Operating Headquarters, DP World: Philippines Logistics, ing., and DP
World Holdings Philippines, inc., which are related parties under common
confrol, peraining to reimbursements for expenses paid by or for the Group. The
balance also includes amounts owed fo companies conirolled by the Group's
director for expenses Incutred by ihe Group for manpower, healthcare and
ifnsurance servicas. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, related amounts are
recorded as Other Payables under Trade and other payables (see Note 14).

E. The Parent Company has entered a 5-year lease contract with a company
controlied by the Group's director commencing on May 1, 2019 for a parcel of
land located at Barangay Lawa, Calamba, Laguna, with a monthly lease rental of
P40 per square meter, subject to an éscalation of 8% beginning May 1, 2021 and
every 2 years thereafter. The contract-terms are based on market rates for this
type of arrangement and ameunts are payable on a monthly basis for the
duration of the contract. The leased premises shall be used for its off-dock
container yard and cargo suppdrt requirements, including but not limited to
warehousing and logistics (see Note 23},

The compensation and benefits of key management personnel are as follows:

2023 2022

Short-term employee benefits P134,508 P228,274
Past-employment benefits 11,187 11,114
P145,695 P240,388

The outstanding related parly balances are expected to be settled in cash,

21. Pensions

The Group’s latest actuarial valuation reporis are as at December 31, 2023.
Valuations are obtained on-a periodic basis. The following fables summarize the
components of pension expense recognized in the consolidated statements of
income and the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated
statements of financial position for the plans of ATl and ATIB:

Pension Expense

AT ATIB TOTAL
2023 2022 20289 2023 2022 eyl 2023 2022 2023
Cairrent service cost P35418 P4R543  P34534  P3,7758 PEOZY P06 P35,192 P45684 PA0.E3S
{rwerest coston defined _
banefit obligation Jr.@rr 28,824 15,473 3,540 2,948 2407 41,517 31684 21,880
[nterest income on plan o
assets (26 3703 0119.828)  {14494% {34520 {1930y {1833} {29,527) (21.887) MB,127)

Net pension expense P47,025 PASS53  PI0,313  P4NBT  PHS02 P70 P51188 PS54t P45392

Current service cost is charged under “Labor cost” account included in “Costs and
sxpenses exciuding government share in revenuss” in the consolidated statemenits
of income (see Note 18). Interest cost on defined benefit obligation and interest
Income on plan assets are included in "Finance cost” account in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 18).

-34 -



Pansion Liability as of December 31

ATI

ATIB.

TOTAL

2023 2022

2023

2022

2023 2022

Presen! value of
pension obligations

[PEBE,550) (P575,897)
Fairvalue of plan

{50,376} {P50,695)

(P716,926) {P526,593)

__assels 437,648 378,185 42,489 41,029 480,147 419 184
Pension fability. (P228;902) (P197,742) (P7,877)  (P9,BB7Y (P23B,779) {P207,408;
Changes in the Present Value of Pension Obligations
ATi ATIE TOTAL
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Present value of pension
obiigations.at beginning of
year P575,897 P605,378 P50;6596 PE4,937 P§26,693 Po6560.312
Current service cost 35,418 40,643 3,775 5021 39,183 45,664
Interest cost 37,977 28,824 3,840 2,840 41,517 31,664
Benefits paid _ {51;439)  (B5,763) (320)  (346)  .(51,758]  (36,109)
Actuarial loss (gain) £8,647 {33,182} {7,315y {11786} 61,382 {44,538)
Present vatue of pension.
-obiigations at end of year PE6G,550 P575,B47 P5G.376 PEQBIE  PV16.928 P626,593
‘Changes. in the Fair Value of Plan Assels
ATl ATIB TOTAL
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Fair yalue of pian assets at
baginning of year P378,155  P384,731  P41,029 P33,972  P415,184 P418,702
Interest income 26,370 18,928 3,152 1,859 29,522 21,887
Actuyal contriputions 75,743 67,048 8,762 7,932 84,505 74,978
Remeasuremeni gain on plan )
assets 8,818 {27,787} {16124) (2488 {1,305)  {30.275)
Bernefits paid {54,439 (85.763) £320) (348! {51,750] (56,108}
Fair vatue of plan assels af o _ ) ) .
end of year P437,648  PITE155  P42498 P41.028 P4BO14T  P41G1E4

Benefits pald include certain payments to retired employees paid directly by the
Group to be subsequently reimbursed by the retirement fund. Any amount paid by
the Group not reimbursed by the retirement fund within the year is recorded under
“Due from related parties” account included in "“Trade and othet receivables - net” in
the consolidated statemients of financial pesition. As at December 31, 2023 and
2022, the balance due from the retiremeént fund amounted to P24.9 miflion and

P13.9 million, respectively (see Note 20).

The components of retirement benefils recognized in other comprehensive incomea

are as follows:

ATl

ATIR TOTAL
2023 s iyl 2023 223 s ] 2023, #ona ity
Aciuarial gain {ings)

due e
Changas I frenciad . . _

assumplions (Pre,028) PA0EASE  (P23.332) PES3G. P15,081 PE7g8  {P70,392) P171443  (PIGSE4}
Changes:in

demograptic

aEsumplichs - - {26,543 - - - £25,5473)
Exparionce . . . . . )

adiusimant 8,231 {7330 §3,292 178 {3.205; 585 2010 LFe S0 43,680
Rermeasurement gain )

{loss) on pian assels 2,818 (zf 167 {6,385 {19,124y (2 a85) 4944 £1,305} (20,5758 {3,880

IPE3ETE;  PDASS  [P15,998) [P2,B03]  POEE Fr BT (62657 PI4B53 {P7.33
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The cumulative amount of actuarial gain (Joss) recognized in the consolidated
statements of changes in equity included under “Retained earnings” account
amounted to (P43.5) million and P19.2 million as at December 31, 2023 and, 2022,
respectively,

Plan Assets

The plans entitle a retired regular of full-iime emplovee to receive a lump sum
amount equivaient to ona (1) month salary for every year of credited service. Petiod
of service shail be reckoned from date hired to date of retirement, death, permanent
disability, or severance,

The defined benefit pensien plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as
interast rate risk and market {investment) risk.

Contributions will be made at the start of each year based on the funding
requirements and recommendations indicated in the latest actuarial valdation
reporsis.

The Group's plan assets consist of the following:

AT ATIB TOTAL

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
‘Cash and cash gquivalants. P73 _Pe2 P134 F148 P204 P21
Investment in UITF 7,008 3,450 5,252 6,880 13,253 13040
Equily instruments 58,531 §2.214 5,995 5,904 65,526 68,118
investment in govarnment _ _ B

securities 342,528 276,843 27,580 28,377 370,519 302,270

Debf instruments 24,838 34,024 Z168 2528 27,103 32,550
Other receivables 4,807 5,723 356 513 5,303 5,236
Lizhiities {1,730} 211} {31} (30 {1,761) (241)

P437,648 P378,155 P42 498 P41,025  P480147 P419.184

All equity insttuments and government securities have quoted prices in active
markets.

All govemment securities are issued by the Philippine government and are rated
Baa3 by Moody's or BBB by Standard & Poor’s,

The principal assumptions used in determining pension benefit obligations for the
Group’s plans are shown below:

ATI ATIB
2023 2022 2023 2022
Discount rate at end of year - 6.14% 7.286% 6.16% 7.34%
Salary increase rate 5.0%-6.0% 3.5%-6.0% 5.0%-6.0% 3.5%-5.0%

Assumptions for mortality rate are based on the 2017 Philippine intercompany
Mortality Table.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

ATl ATIB
2023 2022 2023 2022

Average expected future
service years 14 14 17 17
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Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

2023
Expected Benefit Payments
ATI ATIB
Within 1 year PB89,865 P4,798
Within 1 - 5 years 260,183 14,780
More than 5 years 3,317,728 441 274
2022
Expected Benefit Payments
ATl ATIB
Within 1 year F89,194 P4,595
Within 1 - 5 years 220,046 15,049
More than 5 years _ 3,018,605 565,466

Sensitivity Analysis

As of December 31, the reasonably possible changes to the relevant actuarial
assumptions holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefif obligation by the amounts betow:

2023
ATI ATIB
1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Discount rate {P51,060} P&0,077 (P5,022) P6,692
Salary increase rate 62,603 (54,142) 6,265 (5,249)
2022
ATI ATIB
1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Discount rate {P39,831) P486,405 {P5,087) P6,131
‘Salary increase rate 48 207 43028 6,392 5 381

The Group. expects to pay P69.4 million in condributions to defined benefit pension
plans in 2024.

Asset Liability Matehing (ALM)

The Group does not perform any ALM study. The overall investment policy and
strategy of the refirement plan is based on the client suitability assessment, as
provided by its trust bank, in compliance with thé Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
reguirements.
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22. Earnings Per Share (EPS) Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

Basic EPS is computed as follows:

2023 2022 2020 )

(a) Netincome attributable'to

Equity Holders of the
Parant Company
{in thousands} P4,435,986 3,024,811 P2,236,720

(b) Weighted average number

of common shares _
outstanding {ip thausands) 2,000,600 2,600,000 2,000,000

Basic/diluted EPS atiributable
to Equity Holders of the _
Parant Company (a/b) p2.22 P1.51 P1.12

The Parent Company does not Have poténtial common shares or other instruments’
that may entitle the holder to common shares. Hence, diluted EPS is the same as
basic EPS.

23. Commitments and Cantingencies

Agreements within._the Scope of Philippine intetpretation IFRIC 12, Service:

Concession Arrangements

a. The Parent Compahy is authorized by the PPA fo render cargo handling services
at the South Harbor until May 2013. On October 19, 2007, the cargo handling
services contract wés extended until May 2038 under the terms mutually agreed
upon with the PPA (see Note 2).

In accordance with the investment Plan which was revised in Decembef
2014 pursuant to the Third Supplement to the Cargo Handling Contract, the
Parént Company has commitfed o invest USD385.7 million from 2010 to
2028, for the rehabilitation, development and expansion of the South Harbor
faciliies. The ocommitment is dependent on centainer volume. The
Investment Plan is subject to joint review every two (2) years, or as often as
negessary as mutually agreed, to ensure that the same conforms o actual
growth levels, taking into account introduction of new technologies and
allowing the Parent Company the opportunity of a fair return on investment.

In 2020, the rectamation of the Engineering Island Basin, which js part of the

South Harbor, was subject to jurisdictional dispute between the PPA and the

Philippine Reclamation Authority. As of date of this report, the opinion of the
Department of Justice (DOJ) on the matter is still pending. !t is the opinion of
the Group that any opinion rendered by the DOJ will not have any material
impact on the Group's ability to use the subjeet reclaimed land.

Government Share
- For storage operations, the Parent Company shall pay an annual fixed
government share of P55.0 million payable quarterly and a governmeant

shate of 30% of its annual gross storage revenue in excess of
P273.0 million.
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- For international containerized cargo operations, the Parent Cempany-
shall pay guarterly fixed government share of USD2.25 million plus a
variable government share amounting to 20% of its total gross revenues.

- For general cargd operations, the Parent Company shall remit
government share amounting to 20% of its {otal gross revenues coliected
from arrastre services and 14% of its total gross revenues collected from
stevedoring services for general cargoes,

- For domestic terminal operations, the Parent Company shall remit
government share amounting to 10% of its total gross revenues derived
from Its. domestic cargo handling and passenger termiinal operations,

b. The Parent Company is authorized by the PPA to render cargo handling services
at the Container Terminal "A-1," Phase 2 at the Port of Batangas for 25 years
starting July 1, 2010: For arrastre operations; the Parent Company shall pay an
annual fixed government share of USD2:26 million for the first 2 years,
USD4.68 million for the 39 year, USD5.08 million for the 4%.7% year, and
USD5.33 million for the 80-25% year. The Parent Company shall also remit
annual variable government share based en committed yearly percentage share
multiplied by whichever {s higher of the projected gross income in the bid
proposal or actual gross income.

¢, The Parent Company and ATIB are authorized by the PPA to render cargo
handling and passenger services, supply base dperations, porterage services,
berth management, parking services, passenger terminal refail outlets,
weighbridge or weighing operations, water supply services, vehicle' booking
system, securlty services, and leasing/sub-leasing of areas and facilities in the
Port of Batangas Phase 1 from October 1, 2015 until September 30, 2025. For
these operations, Parent Company and ATIB shall pay a fixed government share
amount of P112.7 miilion for the first 3 years, which shall escalate by 5% and 4%
on the 4th and 5th years and 3% for the remaining 5 years. In addition, Parent
‘Company and ATIS shall remit annual volume-tiiggered government share: of
10% and 20% for domestic cargoes and passenger terminal fees and for foreign
cargoes, respectively, orice defined threshold volumes are met On
December 18, 2019, the ierm of the contract was extended unti June 30, 2035,
The same percentage for the annual volume-triggered government share shall
be remitted by Parent Gompany and ATIB for the extended term and the
applicable escalation rate is still 3%. In consideration for the extension of the
term from 2025 to 2035, Parent-Company and ATIB paid te the PPA a lump-sum
fee of P200 million in December 20149.

d. A lump-sum fee of P400 million was paid to the PPA in December 2019 as

advance consideration in the event of renewal of the coniracts for Port of
Batangas Phase 1 and Container Terminal "A-1,” Phase 2 beyond year 2035,
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Upon recognition of the fair value of the fixed fees representing the goverhment
share under the concession agreements as discussed above, the Group also
recognized the corresponding port concession rights payable. The movements in
the port concession rights payable are as follows: '

2023 2022
Balance as at January 1 P7,933,311 P7,702,171
Accretion of port concession rights payable 622,316 483,180
Payments during the year (972,915) (799,238)
Effects of exchange rate changes (116,107} 567,198
Balance as at December 31 P7,466,605 P7,933,311

Agreements outside the Scope of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service

.

Corncession Afrangemenis

The Parent Company has a B-year lease agreement with PPA effective
April 3, 2017 covering a land adjacent to the Container Freight Station (CFS)
area of the Cotitainer Terminal “A-1" with a monthiy lease rental of P1.7 million,
subject to a yearly escalation of 5%.

. The Parent Company has a 25-year lease agreement until April 2021 covering

the land in .Calamba, Laguna to be used exclusively as an Inland Container
Depot for which the Parent Company pays an annual rertal of P0.1 millien,
subject to an escalation of 7% once every two years.

The contract was revised in 2004, changing the monthly rate to P0.5 million in
January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2003 and PO.7 millien in January 1, 2004 fo
December 31, 2005; subject fo an escalation of 8% every 2 years starting
January 1, 2008. The monthly rates amounted to P1.3 million in 2023, 2022 and
2021,

The Parent Company has a 5S-year lease contract commencing  on
February 1, 2017 over two parcels of land located in Sta. Mesa, City of Manila
with a monthly lease rental of PD.6 million, subject to an escalation of 7% once
every two years. This land is being exclusively used as an off-dock container
depot.

in 2022, the lease contract was renewed for another period of five (5) years
commencing on February 1, 2022 untit January 1, 2027 with the same terms and
conditions as the original lease contract,

The Parent Company has entered a 25-year [ease contract commencing on
February 15, 2018 for a parcel of land located at barangay Calibuyo, Tanza,
Cavite, with a monthly lease rental of P35 per square metef, subject to an
sscalation of 5% begihning February 15, 2020 and every 2 years thereafter. The
lease premises shall be used exclusively as a port termingl, inlahd clearance
depot, warehouse, and for other activities related or ancillary iherete.

Maijority of the Group's leased properties pertain to land. The jeases typically. run
for a period of 1-25 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date.
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information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented helow.

i. Right-of-Use Assets.

Right-of-use assets related to leased properties whose lgase terms are more

tharn 12 months.

Note 2023 2022
Balance at January 1 P775,248 P458,999
Additions to right-of-use assets 152,000 535,631
_Amortization during the year 18 {201,037} (218,382)
Balance at Decernber 31 P726,211 P775,248
i, Lease Liabilities
Note 2023 2022
Balance at January 1. P765,092 P452,637
Additions to lease liabilities 152,000 535,631
Interest expense during the year 19 43,627 26,737
Payments made (235,918) (249,813)
Balance al December 31 P724,804 P785,052

As at December 31, ._20-2-8. and 2022, the Group has current and noncurrent
lease liabilities included in the consolidated statements of financial position

as follows;
2023 2022
Current P46,615 P118,066
Noncurrent 678,189 847,026
P724,804 P785,092
The maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
2023 2022
Within one year P74,038 P107,873
More tham one year to five years 256,610 238,388
Maore: than five years 901,973 Q88 724
£1,232,621 1,334,995
iii. Amounis Recognized in Profitor Loss
Note 2023 2022
Depreciation expense’ 18 P201,037 P219,382
Interest on leasé liabilities 15 43,627 26,737
Expenses relating to shortterm )
and/or low value leases 18 10,851 33,745
Total P255,515 p279.864




iv. Amounts Recognized in Statements of Cash Fiows

2023 2022

Payments of lease labilities P192,288 P223,176

Interest paid 43,627 28,737
Cash outflow relating to short-term

and/or low value leases 10,860 33,745

Total cash outflow for leases P246,875 P283,658

€. The Group has contingent liabilities for lawsuits and various other matiers
acourring in the ordinary course of business. ‘On the basis of information
furnished by its legal counsel, management believes ihal none of these
contingencies will materially affect the Group's financial pesition and financial
performance,

24. Financial Risk and Capital Mariagement Ohjectives and Policies

The Group has various financial assets -and liabiliies such as cash and cash
‘equivalents, trade and other receivables, deposits, equity securities, trade and other
payables, port concession rights payable and lease liabllitles which arise directly
from its operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is lo raise
financing for the Group's capital expenditures and operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk,
liquidity risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk. The BOD reviews and agrees on
policies for managing each of these risks.

interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk management policy centers on reducing the Group's
overall interest expense and exposure fo changes in interest rates. Changes in
market infefest rates relate primarily to the Group's cash in banks and cash
equivalents.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the interest rate profile of the Group's
interest- bearing financial instrument is as follows:

2023 2022

Fixed Rate Instruments:
Cash and cash equivalents* P5,422,897 P4 597 576

“Excluding cash on hand amounting o P1.9 milliors and P2.7 milion as at Decamber 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Fair Value Sensitivity Analysis for Fixed Rate Instruments o

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit-or loss, therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date
would noet affect profit or loss,

Liguidity Risk

The Group monitors its risk of shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. This
too! considérs the fraturity of both the Group’s financial investments and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations, among others, The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans.
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
based an contractual undiscounted payments’

Contractual Cash Fiows

As at Carrying On Less'than o2 1ip 5 ]

Decamber 37, 2023 Amount Demand 3 Months Months Years > 5 Yoars “Fotal
Trade and othér ) .

payables” £1,958,647 P274;352.  P366ABT  PY,325708 P P - P1,966,847
Port cancession fights ' ) :

payable 7,466,805 . 208,127 600,380 2,783,366 6,458,785 8,842 659
Lease liabilties - 724:804 : 27,841 46,1387 286,618 §a1.972 1,232,521

Pi0,158,255  P274,852  PED4,155  PLSTZ20F  PRO2DSYS  PY.A60,758  P13,042,127

“Exciuding die ic govermment -agen_cr'es'ambunﬁ’ng te PE67.8 miflan s at egember 31, 2623,

Contraciual Casyi-Fiows

As.at Lamying on Less than 3iny2 s

Dlecember ¥1, 2023 Arnouni Demand 3 Monins Werlhs Years > 5 ¥ Eary Fataj.
Trade.and olher )

payables® PZ2,353,591 PIEEIE! PS912YY P3,478,553 Bo. P - 73,858,591
Port conzession fgils '

riayable 7,533 311 - 201,145 503,435 2,922,920 6,258,786 9 988,286,
! oase Hablliflas 763 082 - 25,332 81 544 AR AGH ‘988,724 1,334,985

PiiOStess  P2SRIX PRISTES  BRI69580  PR161,318  PR24TSI0 PilAT4872

“Exciuding e to government agencies-amountiog ta FRIF0.mition as.at Detemaer 31, 2022,

Credit Risk
Credit risk ori frade and other receivabies represents the risk of loss the Group would
incur if credit customers anhd countsrparties fail to perform their confractual
ohligations.

The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties. i is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. in addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the resull that the Group’s expesure 1o bad debis is not
significant. A regular/annual review and evaluation of accounts is being implemented
to assess the credit standing of customers.

The Group does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables. The
Group does not have trade and other receivables for which no loss aliowance is
recognized because of collateral. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables represent the maximum credit exposure.

With respect to credit risk arising from the otheér financial assets of the Group, which
comptiise cash in bank and cash equivalents, deposits and FVOCH - equily, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal o the carrying amount of these instruments. The Group
trades only with reputable banks and recognized third parties.

Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit checks are being
performed on all clients requesting credit over certain amounts. Credit is not
extended beyond althorized limits, eStablished where appropriate through
consultation with a professional credit vetting organization, Credit granted is subject
to regular review, to ensure it remains consistent with the clients’ current credit
worthiness and appropriate to the aniicipated volume of business.

Financial information on the Group's maximum exposure o credit risk as at

December 31, 2023 and 2022, without considering the effects of collaterals and other
risk mitigation technigues, is presented below
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Note 2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents™ & P5,422,597 P4 597 576
Trade and other receivabies - net 7 830,653 905,985
Deposits: 12 70,898 84,107
Eauity secutities 12 2,652 2,652

P6,327,201  P5,550,320

"Exc!udihg cash on hand amounting {o P1.9 miion and P27 milion as al December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respeactively.

The table below shows the credit quality of the Group's financial asset$ based on
their historical experience with the corresponding debtor.

As at December 31, 2023

Grade A Grade B Grade © Total
Cash in banks and
cash eguivalents P5,422,997 P - P - P5,422,997
Trade and other
receivables - net 514,775 315,878 - 830,853
Deposits _ 70,898 - - 70,899
Equity securities 2,652 - - 2,652
6,011,323 F315,878 P - P8,327,201
As at December 31, 2022
Grade A Grade B Grade G Total
Cash in-banks and _
cash eguivaients P4 597 578 P o- o P4,597,576
Trade and other _
recaivables - net 561,460 344 525 - 805,985
Deposits 84,107 “ - 84,107
Equity securities 2,852 - - 2,652
P5 245,785 P344,525 P - P5,690,320

Grade A receivables pertain to those receivables from customers that always pay on
time or even before the maturity date. Grade B inciudes receivables. that are
coliected on their due dates. provided that they were reminded or followed up by the
Group. Those receivables which are collected consistently beyond their due dates
and require persistent effott from the Group are included under Grade C.

Cash in banks is ¢onsidered good quality (Grade A) as this pertains to deposits in
reputabie banks.

Trade and Other Receivables _
The exposure to credit fisk for frade and other receivables by industry is as follows:

Nofe. 2023 2022

Shipping fines P364,89% pP397,892
Cihers 485,754 507,893
7 F830,653 PY05.985
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Expected Credit Loss Assessment

The Group allocates each éxposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is
determined fo be predictive.of the risk of loss (including but not fimited to external
ratings; audited financial statements;, management accounts and cash flow
projections and available press information about customers) and applying expected
credit judgment. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative
factors that are indicative of the risk of default.

Exposures within each credit risk grade are segmented by industry classification and
an ECL rate is calculated for each segment based on delinguency and aciual credit.
loss experience.

The following table provides information about the exposure to eredit risk for trade
and other receivables as at December 31, 2023 and 2022;

Gross impairment

Carrying Loss Credit-

_ Amount Allowance Impaired

Current {not past due) P714,489 P - No

1- 30 days pastdue 47,954 - No

31 - 60 days past due. 19,413 - No

81 - 90 days past due 34,586 - No

More than 20 days past due 18,406 4185 Yes
Balance at December 31, 2023 P834,848 P4,195
Gross Impairment

Carrying Loss Credit-

_ Amount Allowance Impaired

Current {not past due)y P807,887 P - No

1 - 30 days past due 31,836 - No

31 - 60 days pastdue 17,076 - No

61 - 90 days past-due 23:588 - No

More than 80 days past due 28,789 4195 Yes
Balance at December 31, 2022 P910,180 P4,195

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over three years considering
circumstances at the reporting date. Any adjustment to the loss rates for forecasts of
future economic conditions are not expected to be material. The Group applies the
simplified approach in providing for expected credit losses prescribed by PFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision and applies a provision
matrix. The application of the expected loss rates to the receivables of the Group
does not have a material impact on the consolidated finangial stalements.

The maturity of the Group’s trade and other receivables is jess than onge year so the
lifetime expected credit lesses and the 12-month expecled credit iosses are similar.

There are no significant concentrations. of credit risk within the Group. Of the iotal
trade and other receivables which are neither past due nor impaired, 100% are of
high-grade quality instruments because there was no history of default on the agreed
terms of the coniract.



Movement in the Allowance for Impairment in Respect of Trade and Cther
Receivables

There was no movernent in the allowance for impairment on trade and other

receivables from 2020 as no reversals and write-offs were. made since 2021, The

allowance for impairment as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 is P4.2 million with

individually and collectively impaired receivables amounting to P1.1 miilion and

P3.1 million, respectively.

individually Coliectively

2020 Impaired impaired

Balance at January 1 PB,979 P1,173 P5,806
Reversals during the year (2,700) - (2,700)
Write-offs (84} (84 -
Balance at December 31 P4,185 P1,089 P3,1086

Cash in Banks and Cash Equivalents

The Group held cash in banks and cash eguivalents of P5.4 billien and P4.8 biflion
as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The cash and cash equivalenis are
held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated Grade A.

Impairment on cash in banks and cash equivalents has been measured on @
12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The
Group considets that ifs cash in bank and cash eguivalents have low credit risk
based on the external credit rajings of the counterparties and any ECL is expected to
be immaterial.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has foreign currency financial assets and #abilities arising from UsDh
denominated revenues, government share, and other foreign cuirency-denominated
purchases by operating units.

The Group's foreign currency-denaminated accounts as- at December 31 are as
follows:

2023 2022

Assels |
_Cash and cash equivalents ’ sD149,007 UsD18,757

Liahilities

Trade and other payables . 2,378 63,033
Port concession rights payabie 120,527 125,605
122,905 188,638
Net foreign currency-denominated Jabilities {USD103,898) (USD169.881)
Peso equivalent {P5,755,949) {(P9,479,360)

The exchange. rates applicable for USD as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are
P55.4 and P55.8, respeciively.
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The following table demonstratés the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
the USD exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's income
before income tax and equity.

Effect on
Increase {Decrease} in Income before Effect on
USD Exchange Rate Income Tax Equity
2023
+5% (P287,797) (P215,848)
-5% 287,797 215,848
2022
+5% (473,968) (355,476)
5% 473,968 355,476

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group. considers capital to include capital stock, additional paid-in capital,
retained earnings, and fair value reserve: The Group mariages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust its capital siructure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment 1o
shareholdars, returh capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processas from prior year.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, except for the
investment it has comimitted in accordance with the investrment plan discussed in
Note 23,

The fable below shows the capital structure of the Group as at December 37.

Note. 2023 2022
Capital stock P2,000,000 p2.000,000
Additional paid-in capital 264,300 264,300
Retained earnings 22,276,607 19,887,619
Falr value reseive (5,820} {5,820)
Total _ 16 P'24_j535,087 22,146,099
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25. Financial Instruments

The table below presents a comparison by category of carrying amounts and
estimated fair values of all the Group's financial Instruments as &t
December 31, 2023 and 2022.

2023 2022
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Note Amount Value Armotnt Vaiue

Finnangial Assets

Cash and cash equivaients 6 P5,424938 P5.424,538  P4,600,267 P4,600,267
Trade and other recelvables - net 7 830,653 830,650 905,985 905,985
Daposits 12 70,899 77,068 84,107 80,199
_ 5,326,400 5,332,659 5,540,359 5.596.451
Equity securities 12 2,652 2,652 2,652 2852

P5,226,142  P8,335341 P5 59301t P5.599,102

Financial Liabilities

Other financial iishiiities:

Trade and other-payablés*. 14  P1,966,847 P1,966,847 P2,353,581 22,353,591
Puoit concasaion rights payable 7,466,808 8,187,781 7,833,311 8,185,867

F9,433,452. P10,154,608 P10,286,902 P1D,543,452

*Excluding due to govemment agencies amounting o F967.6 milfon and P339.0 mifion ds at Décember 31, 2023 and 2322,
respactvely.

Fair Value of Financial irnstruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables are approximately equal to their carrying amounts due to their
relatively short-term nature.

Nenderivative Financial Instruments N
Quoted market prices have been used o determine the fair values of listed equity
securities. The fair values of unguoted equity-securities are not reliably determinable.

For noninterest-bearing deposits, the fair value is estimated as the present value of
all future cash flows discounted using the prevailing market rate on interest for a
similar instrument. The discount rates used are 5.8% ih 2023 and 6.0% in 2022 (see
Note 12).

The fair value of port concession rights payable was estimated at the present value
of all future cash flows discounted using the applicable rates for similar types of
loans ranging from 5.97% to 6.01% in 2023 and 6.19% fc 7.23% in 2022.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The table below presents the fair value hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

As at December 31, 2023 Nofe Level 1 Levej 2 Level 3
Equity securities. 12 P933 P - P1,719
Port concession rights
payable - 8,187,761 -
P933  P8,187,761 P1,719
As at' December 31, 2022 Noie Level 1 Levef 2 Levelt3
Equity securities 12 Pe33 Fo- P1,718
Port concession rights
payable - 8,189,861 -
P33  PB,189,861 P1,719
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There have been no transfers from one level {0 another in 2023 and 2022.

26. Revenues from Operations

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of services in the following ‘major
service fings:

2023 2021 2021
Revenues from Operations
Stevedoring P6,587,928 P5,862,108 P4,775,548
Arrastre 5,960,647 5,532,700 4 587,974
Logistics 160,055 188,913 106,807
Special and other services 2,743,170 2,038,983 1,692,315

P15,451,800 P13,622,704  P11,162,744
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Asian Terminals, Inc.-and its Subsidiaries
A. Bonifacio Drive

Port Area, Maniia

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements of Asian Terminals Inc.

{the “Company”) and its Subsidiaries (collectively known as the "Group”) as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for each of the three years in the péried eénded
December 31, 2023, included in this Form 17-A, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 12, 2024.

QOur audits were made for the purpose of forming an zopinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group taken as a-whole. The supplementary information
included in the following accompanying additional components is the responsibility of the
Group’s management. . '

»  Map of the Cenglemerate
» Supplementary Schedules of Annex 68-J
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This supplementary information is presented for purposes of complying with the Revised
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, and is nof a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such infermation-has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the consclidated financial statements ‘and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in felation to the consolidated financiai statements taken
as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

Pt

PERRILO G, YU

Partner .

CPA License No. "~~~

Tax [dentification o

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-035-2021
Issued June 28, 20271, valid until June 28, 2024

PTR No. MKT 10075209
lssued January 2, 2024 at Makati City

March 12, 2024
Makati City, Metro Manila.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Asian Terminals, Inc.

A. Benifacio Drive

Port Area, Manila

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the separate
financial statements of Asian Terminals, Inc. {the “Company”), as at December-31, 2023
and 2022 and for the vears then ended, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 12, 2024.

Our audits were made for the purpdse of forming an opinton on the basic separate
financial statements of the Company taken as a whole. The supplementary information
included in Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaratiaon is the:
responsibility of the Company’s management.
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This supplementary information is presented for purposes of complying with the Revised
Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68, and is not a required part of the basic
separate financial statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audiis of the basic separate financial statements
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
separate financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.
T

WLO G. YU
Pariner

CPA License b
Tax Identificath o _
BIR Agccreditation No. 08-001987-035-2021
Issued June 29, 2021; valid until June 28, 2024
PTR No. MKT 10075209 _
Issued January 2, 2024 at Makati City
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Reconciliation of Retained Earhings Available for Dividend Declaration
For the reporting period ended December 31, 2023
(In thousands)

Asian Terminals, Inc.
A. Bonifacio Drive, Pori Area, Manila

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning of
reporfing period P1,994.606

Add: ltems that are directly credifed fo
Unappropriated Retained Earnings
Reversal of Retained Earmnings Appropriation/s 2,400,000
Effects of restatements or prior-period
adjustments - 2,400,000

Less: ltems that are directly debited to
Unappropriated Retained Earnings
Dividend declaration during the repotting period {2,000,000)
Retained Edarnings approgriated during the '
reporting period {5.000,000)
Effect of restatements or prier-peried
adjustments - (7,000,000}

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted (2,605,394)

Add/Less: Net Income (less) for the current year 4,388,108

Less: Unrealized Income recognized in the profit or
loss during the reporting periad (net of tax)

‘Equity in net loss (income) of associatefjoint

venture, net of dividends declared -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain, except those

atiributable to cash and cash equivalents {116,108)
Unrealized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market

gains) of financial instruments at fair value

through profit or less (FVTPL) -
Unrrealized fair value-gain of investment Property -
Other unrealized gains oy adjustments {o the

retained earnings as a result of certain

transactions acceunted for under the PFRS -

Subiotal (116,108)

Add: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or
loss in prior reporting periods but realized in the
current reporting period (net of tax)
Realized foreign exchange gain, except those
attributable to Cash and cash equivalents 156,040
Realized faif value adjustment (mark-to-market
gains) of financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) -
Realized fair value.gain of Investment Property -
Other realized gains or adjustments to.the
retained earnings as a result of certain
transactions accounted for under the PFRS -

Subtotal 156,040

Forward




Adjusted Net Income/Loss

AddiLess: Category F: Other items that should be
excluded from the determination of the amount of
available for dividends distribution

Net'movement of treasury shares (except for
reacquisition of redeemable shares)

Net movement of deferred tax asset not
considered in the reconciling items under the
previous categories

Net movement in deferred tax asset and deferred
tax labilities related to same transaction, e.g.,
set up of right of use of gsset and lease liability,
set-up of asset and asset retirement obligation,
and sei-up of service concession assetand
concession payabls

Adjustment due {o deviation from PFRS/GAAP -
gain (loss) _

Actuarial valuation loss - net of tax

P4,428,040

(7,745)

(10,523)

44,909

Subtotal

26,641

Total Retained Earnings, end of the reporting
period available for dividend

P1,849,287
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R.G. Manabat & Co.
‘The KPMG Center, 8/F

8787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1208

Telephone +63 (2) 8885 7000
Fax +63 (2) 8894 1985
Internet wwiw.horme.kpmg/ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg, com

REPORT OF I'NDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Stockholders.and Beard of Directors
Asian Terminals, Inc.

A. Bonifacio Drive

Port Area, Manila

We have-audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated
finaricial statements of Asian Terminals, Inc. (the “Company”} and its Subsidiaries
{collectively known as the “Group”) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 12, 2024,

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, The Supplementary Schedule on Financial
Soundness indicators, including their definitions, formulas, calculation, and their
appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are the responsibility of the-
Company's management. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of
operating performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs)
and may not be comparablé to similarly fitted measures presented by other companies.

Eirm Regidaiory Regisiration & Adoreditation:
PRC-B0A Regisiration to. 5003, valld uniil Saplember 20, 2025
it Accreditation Mo. 0003-1C, Group A, valid for fivi {5) years.covering thie audif of 202010 2024
financiat stalements. (zutg flnarcsal statemenis.are coverad by IC Clecular Leller. (CLB Nob. 201838, Transilion tlausa}
BSP Accreditation Mo, 0003~ BSF, Group A, valid for five (5] years covering the audii of 2020 to daze
financial statemeants (2048 financial stalen“ems are covered by BSP Modetary Board Resolution No. 2161, Transition clause}
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This schedule is presented for the pufpose of complying with the Revised Securities
Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
and is not a required part of the basic consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with PFRSs. The componenis of these financial soundness indicators have
been traced to the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2023
and 2022 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2_.023 and
no material exceptions were noted.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

T

ILO.G. YU
Partner
CPA License
Tax |dentifica _
BiR-Accreditation No, 08-001887-035-2021
Issued June 28, 2021; valid until June 28, 2024
PTR No. MKT 10075209
Issued January 2, 2024 at Makati City

March 12, 2024
Makati City, Metro Manila



ASIAN TERMINALS INC. AND ITS':SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, 2022 AND 2021

Mannerof
Consolidated KPI Calculation 2023 2022 2024 Discussion
Percentage of Increased due to
. - Income before _ higher income
Eﬁ,f;{;;gg,,capﬂai interest and tax 18.9% 16.3% 132% | beforeinterest and
- over capital taxes during the
employed perficd:
Ret_um on Equity E}i;c;:tzgg f‘,of net _ _
attributable to equity attrioutable | 18.0% 14.1% 110% | mproveddueto
equity holders. of to equity holders higher net income.
the parent of the parent
Ratio of eurrent Increased due o
Current ratio assels over 2.81:1.00 | 221:1.00 | 2.59:1.00 | higher current
current fiabiliies - assets.
Ratio of total _
I assels over equity Decreased due'td
faﬁ;?t to equity attributable to. 1A47:1.00 | 1.56:1.00 | 1.53:1.00 | higher increase in
equity holders of equity,
the pareiit
Ratio of fotal
_ liabilities over | Decreased due {0
Debt to equity fatio | equity aftributable | 0.47:1.00 | 0.56:1.00 | 0.53:1.00 | lower liabiliies and
t equity holders higher equity.
ofthe parent
Gross trade
Days Salés in receivables over _ Decreased due fo
it 1 revenues 10 days 11 days 8 days improved
Receivables (DSR) multiplied by 4 Y 4 coﬁﬁecﬁons.
number of days
iiiggﬁg?;so : Bl _ Increased due to
Net ihcome Margin g'ove'mment share 34.7% 27.1% 24.3% higher net ihcome
: o growth.
N revenues
Number of
reportable injuries
within a given
/i ing pericd increased duecio a
Reportable Injury | o0o0u 78 PEre higher number of
Féeg;ency Rate {otal number of 0.87 0.52 0.56 inﬁ‘meﬁ‘_
RIFR} hours worked In '
the same
accournting
pefiod,

*Income beiore interest and tax-excludes.also net unreallzed foreign exchange losses and athers,

RIFR 5 the new KP| for injuries introduced in 2014-to replace LTIFR. RIFR is a'muore stiingent P! as it covers nol only
Lbst Time Injuries (LTis} but dlso Medical Treatment injurles (MTis}) and Fatalities incidents.



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule A

Financial Assets
December 31, 2023
(in thousands)

Name of Issuing  Number of Shares Amount  Valued Based on

Entity and or Principal Shown  Market Quotation Income

Association of  Amount of Bonds in the Balance at End of Received and

Financial Asseis Eachi Issue and Notes Sheet  Reporting Period Accrued

Cash and cash eguivalents N/A N/A P5,424 038 5,424,838 P188,142
Trade and other receivables - net N/A N/A 830,653 830,653 -
Deposits N/A N/A 70,899 77,0868 -

Equity Securities:

Quoted Equity Shares N/A 933 933 -
Unguoted Equity Shares. NIA 1,719 1,718 -

P§,329,142 P6,335,311 P189,142




ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule B

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal Stockholders

{Other than Related Parties)

December 31, 2023
(in thousands)

Balance at Balance at

Name and Designation of Beginning Amounts Amounts End of
Debtor of Period. Additions Collected Written-off Current  Non-current Period
Officers P28,020 P25,424 {P30,658) P - P - P - P22,786
Relaied Parties 5,829 258,061 (181.:805) - - - 82,085
P33,849 P283,485 {P212.463) P - P - P P104,871




ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule C

Amounts Receivable from {Payable to} Related Parties which are Eliminated during the
Consolidation of Financial Statements
December 31, 2023
(in thousands)

_ ) Balance at Balance at

Name and Designation of Beginning ~ Amounts _ End of

Dehtor of Period Additions Amounts Paid Wiritfen-off Current  Non-current Perind

ATI Batangas, Inc. P242.053 P891,070 (P806,506) P - P - P - P326,617
Tanza Container Terminal, _ o

Inc, 1,861,994 207,832 - - - - 2,069,626

2,306,243

P2,104,047 P1.098,702 {P806,506) P - P - P o~




ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule D

Long-term Debt
December 31, 2023
(in thousands)

Title of Issue and type of obligation

Amount Shown under

Amount Caption "Current Portion
Authorized by of Long-term Debt" in
indenture. Related Balance Sheet

Amount Shown

under caption
"Long-Term Debt" in
Related Balance Sheet

Not Applicable




Schedule E

ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Indebtedness to Related Parties
December 31, 2023
(in thousands)

Amount Shown in the. Valued Based on Market Quotation
_Name of Issuing Entity and Association of Each Issue Balance Sheet at End of Reporting Period

Not Applicable




ASIAN TERMINALS, iNC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule F

Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
December 31, 2023
(in thousands)

Name of Issuing Entity of Securities
Guaranteed by the Company for
which this Statement is Filed

Title of Issue of

Each Class of Total Amount Amourt Owned by
Securities Guaranteed and Person for which
Guaranteed ‘Qutstanding Statement is Filed

Nature of Guarantee

Not Applicahle




Schedule G

ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Capital Stock
December 31, 2023
{in thousands}

Number of Number of Shares Held by
Shares Reserved
for Optiens,
Numnber of Number of Warrants, Directors,
Shares.  SharesIssued Conversjon and Officers, and
Title of Issue Authorized and Qutstanding Other Rights:  Related Parfies Employees Others
Common shares 4,000,000 2,000,000 None 637,838 1,035,257 326,905
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 6/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1209

Telephone +63 (2) 8885 7000
Fax +63 (2) 8894 1985
Internet www.home.kpmg/ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asian Terminals, Inc.

A. Bonifacio Drive

Port Area Manila

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinf'on

We have audited the separate financial statements of Asian Terminals, Inc.

(the “Company”), which comprise the separate statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the separate statements of income, separate
statements of comprehensive income, separate statements of changes in equity and
separate statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the unconsolidated financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its unconsolidated financial performance and its
unconsolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audits of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our augif T dtawWe Ve events or conditions may cause

the Company to ce j 2 9ot (doncern.
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic separate
financial statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 26 to the
separate financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of
Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic separate financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic separate financial
statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects, in
relation to the basic separate financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

e

MLO G. YU
Partner
CPA License ~* 77777
Tax Identific:
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-035-2021
Issued June 29, 2021; valid until June 28, 2024
PTR No. MKT 10075203
Issued January 2, 2024 at Makati City

March 12, 2024
Makati City, Metro Manila
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Asian Terminals, Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, as at and
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the separate financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

R.G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the
financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in
its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon

completion of such audit. S

GLEN CHRISTOPHER HILTON
Chairman of the Board

— f = -
. TANCO JOSE TRISTAN P. CARPIO
President Chief Financial Officer
MAR 1 2 202
Signed this of , 2024
MAR 1 2 202%
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this _ day of 2024, the signatories exhibiting to me their
respective Passports/Driver’s License Nos., as follows:
Name Passport Nos. Date/Place Issued

1. Glen Christopher Hilton
2. Eusebio H. Tanco
3. Jose Tristan P. Carpio

Doc. No.' -
Page No. ;

Book No. J_:
Series of 2024.

. 31, 2024

ISO 14001:2015; 1ISO 45001:2018; ISO 9001:2015; ISO 28000:2007 Certified; ISPS Code Compliant



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Amounts in Thousands)

December 31

Note 2023 2022
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6, 23, 24 P5,374,056 P4,555,028
Trade and other receivables - net 7, 20, 23, 24 3,079,746 2,854,460
Spare parts and supplies 18 1,066,535 1,081,456
Prepaid expenses 8 2,670,735 2,445,866
Total Current Assets 12,191,072 10,936,810
Noncurrent Assets
Investments in subsidiaries and an associate 9 165,064 165,064
Property and equipment - net 10 525,688 503,642
Intangible assets - net 11 18,622,996 18,331,875
Right-of-use assets - net 22 472,453 528,966
Deferred tax assets - net 13 974,655 941,418
Other noncurrent assets 12 68,746 81,953
Total Noncurrent Assets 20,829,602 20,652,918
P33,020,674 P31,489,728
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 14, 20, 23, 24 P2,555,658 P2,901,020
Provisions for claims 15 43,344 46,049
Port concession rights payable -
current portion 22, 23, 24 305,925 305,925
Income and other taxes payable 100,881 192,519
Lease liabilities - current portion 20, 22, 23 63,984 68,699
Total Current Liabilities 3,069,792 3,514,212
Noncurrent Liabilities
Port concession rights payable - net of
current portion 22, 23, 24 6,897,679 7,250,007
Pension liability 21 228,902 197,742
Lease liabilities - net of current portion 20, 22, 23 463,439 510,104
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,590,020 7,957,853
10,659,812 11,472,065
Equity
Capital stock 2,000,000 2,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 264,300 264,300
Retained earnings 20,102,382 17,759,183
Fair value reserve (5,820) (5,820)
Total Equity SEE AL GE INTERNAL B VENUE 22,360,862 20,017,663
LARGE TAXPAYLRS SERVICE |p33,020,674  P31,489.728

W swer 1000 [ 1
See Notes to the Separate Financial Stat§mer / L i
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2023 2022
REVENUES FROM OPERATIONS 2, 25 P14,173,359 P12,302,332
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUES 17 (2,453,478) (2,373,703)
11,719,881 9,928,629
COSTS AND EXPENSES EXCLUDING
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUES 18, 20, 21 (5,814,704) (5,5603,074)
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Finance income 189,121 45,478
Finance cost (458,166) (478,062)
Others - net 122,531 (416,794)
19 (146,514) (849,378)
CONSTRUCTION REVENUES 11 1,510,505 1,638,016
CONSTRUCTION COSTS 11 (1,510,505) (1,638,016)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 5,758,663 3,576,177
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 1,370,555 860,353
NET INCOME P4,388,108 P2,715,824

See Notes to the Separate Financial Statements.

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

‘ Note 2023 2022
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR P4,388,108 P2,715,824
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
Item that will never be reclassified to profit
orloss
Actuarial (losses) gains on pension liability 21 (59,878) 5,395
Tax on item taken directly to equity 13 14,969 (1,349)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
FOR THE YEAR - Net of tax (44,909) 4,046
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P4,343,199 P2,719,870

See Notes to the Separate Financial Statements.

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE |
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
= = (Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
8 2%
& ()
=m mc
=< F=l®)
R m e
= E U=
> = 122 m Retained Earnings
; <~ m g Additional Appropriated for Fair Value
3 (}’%- e Note  Capital Stock Paid-in Capital Port Development Unappropriated Reserve Total
72 16 at January 1, 2023 P2,000,000 P264,300 P16,400,000 P1,359,183 (P5,820) P20,017,663
=0 ands - P1.00 a share 16 - - - (2,000,000} - (2,000,000)
5l appropriation of retained earnings 16 - - (2,400,000) 2,400,000 - -
5.y D ns during the year 16 - - 5,000,000 (5,000,000) - -
= Bl inco T for the year - - - 4,388,108 - 4,388,108
Other comprehensive loss:
Actuarial losses - net of tax 21 - - - (44,909) - (44,909)
Balance at December 31, 2023 P2,000,000 P264,300 P19,000,000 P1,102,382 (P5,820) P22,360,862
Balance at January 1, 2022 P2,000,000 P264,300 P15,100,000 P1,555,313 (P5,820) P18,913,793
Cash dividends - P0.808 a share 16 - - - (1,616,000) - (1,616,000)
Reversal of appropriation of retained eamnings 16 - - (2,000,000) 2,000,000 = :
Appropriations during the year 16 - - 3,300,000 (3,300,000) - -
Net income for the year - - - 2,715,824 - 2,715,824
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gains - net of tax 21 - - - 4,046 - 4,046
Balance at December 31, 2022 P2,000,000 P264,300 P16,400,000 P1,359,183 (P5,820) P20,017,663
See Notes to the Separate Financial Statements.




ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P5,758,663 P3,576,177
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 10, 11, 18, 22 1,674,432 1,659,846
Finance cost 19, 21, 22 458,166 478,062
Current service cost 21 35,418 40,643
Provision for spare parts and supplies
obsolescence 18 10,000 -
Finance income 19 (189,121) (45,478)
Net unrealized foreign exchange (gains)
losses (102,127) 411,157
Dividend income from a subsidiary and an
associate 9, 19, 20 (98,078) (104,884)
Gain on disposals of:
Property and equipment 19 (4,059) (420)
Intangible assets 19 - (5,688)
Provision (reversal) for claims - net 15 (685) 522
Operating income before working capital
changes 7,642,609 6,009,937
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables (226,362) (569,106)
Spare parts and supplies 4,921 (146,725)
Prepaid expenses (224,869) (385,705)
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables (481,413) 670,471
Provisions for claims (2,020) (2,287)
Income and other taxes payable (119,876) 15,677
Cash generated from operations 6,492,990 5,692,162
Finance income received 190,197 45,478
Income tax paid (1,360,585) (991,066)
Contribution to retirement funds 21 (75,743) (67,046)
Finance cost paid (25,900) (25,395)
5,220,959 4,554,133

Net cash provided by operating activities

Forward
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Years Ended December 31

Note 2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Dividends received 9, 19, 20 P98,078 P104,884
Proceeds from disposals of:

Property and equipment 5,151 1,452

Intangible assets - 6,260
Acquisitions of:

Intangible assets 11 (1,529,441) (1,687,629)

Property and equipment 10 (141,767) (75,357)
Decrease (increase) in:

Deposits 13,207 (7,803)

Other noncurrent assets - 26,082
Net cash used in investing activities (1,554,772) (1,632,111)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Payments of:

Cash dividends 16 (2,000,000) (1,616,000)

Port concession rights payable 22 (658,605) (671,794)

Lease liabilities 22 (174,574) (165,009)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,833,179) (2,452,803)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 833,008 469,219
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE

CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (13,980) 156,040
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6 4,555,028 3,929,769
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 6 P5,374,056 P4,555,028

See Notes to the Separate Financial Statements.
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________ASIAN TERMINALS, INC,
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FIN‘ANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

1. Reporting Entity

‘Asian Terminals, Inc. (ATl or the “Company”) was incorporated in the Philippines and
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
July 9, 1986. The.Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the Securities
Regulation Code and its shares are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
(_ESE_). DP World Australia (POAL) Pty, Lid. directly owns 17.32% of the total
eutstanding capital stock of ATI.

The Company operates and manages the South Harbor Port of Manila ard
Container Terminal "A-1,” Phase |l of the Port of Batangas in Batangas City. The
registered office address of the Company is at A. Bonifacio Drive, Port Area, Manila.

2. Operating Contracts
Following are the Gompany's-operating contracts:
a. Seuth Harbor, Port of Manila

ATl's exclusive right to manage, operate and develop. South Harbor was
renewed for a period of 25 years from May 19, 2013 to May 18, 2038 pursuarit to
the Third Supplement to the Contract for Cargo Handling and Related Services
with the Philippine Ports Authiority (PPA) dated Octeber 19, 2007 (see Note 22).

b. Port of Batangas

On January 18, 2010, the PPA issued to AT the Notice to Award the Contract for
the Management, Operation, Maintenance, Development-and Promotion of the
Contginer Terminal "A-1," Phase Il of the Port of Batangas for a period of 25
years. The Contract was signed on March 28, 2010, The Notice to Proceed
dated June 16, 2010 allowed ATI to start and commence operations. at the
Terminal on July 1, 2010 (see Note 22).

3. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance _ ) _
The separate financial staterents have been prepared in compliance with Phifippine

Finahcial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based on International Financial
Reporting Standards jssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
PFRSs which are issued by the Philippine Financial and Sustainability Reporting
Standards Council (FSRSC), cansist of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards
(PASs), and Philippine Interpretations.

The accompanying _s_ep_ara_te_ financial statements were authorized for issue by the
Board of Diréctors (BOD) on February 22, 2024,



The Company also. preparés and issues consolidated financial statements for the
same pericd as the separaté financial statements prepared and presented in
compliance with PFRSs. Said consolidated financial staterments may be abtained
from the SEC,

Basis of Measurement

The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a
historical cost basis except for the following items, which are miéasured on an
alternative basis on eath reporting date;

Items . Measurement Bases
Equity investments at fair value Fair value

through-other compréhensive

income (FVOGI) _
Pension liability The present value of the defined benefit

obligation less the fair value of plan assets.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The separate. financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand pesos (P000); except whien otherwise indicated.

‘4. Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these separate financial statements, except if mentioned otherwise.

Adoption of Amendments to Standards

The Company has adopted the following amendments: to standards starting
January 1, 2023 and accordingly, changed its accounting -policies. Except as
otherwise indicated, the adoption did not have any significant impact on the

Company's separate financial statements.

«  Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments fo PAS 8, Accounting Policies,.
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors), To clarify the distinciion between
changés in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates, the
amendments introduce a new definition for aceounting estimates, clarifying that
they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between
accounting -policies @nd accounting estimates by specifying that an accounting
estimate is developed to achieve the objective set out by an accounting. policy.
Developing an accounting estimate includes both selecting a measurement
techinique and chogsing the inputs to be used when applying the chosen
measurement technique. The effects of changes in such inputs or measurement
techniques are changes in accounting estimates. The definition of accounting
policies remains unchanged. The amendments. also provide examples on the
application of the new definition.

The amendntents -will -appiy prospectively fo changes in accounting éstimates
and changes in accounting policies accurring on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting periad in which the amendments are applied.



Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Making Materiality
Judgements). The amendments are intended to help companies provide useful
accounting policy disclosures, The key amendments to PAS 1 include:

e requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies; '

o clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other
events or conditions' are themselves immaterial and as such need not be
disclosed; and

 clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions,
other events or conditions are themselves material o a company's financial
statements. -

The amendments to PFRS Practice Statement 2 includes guidance and
additional examples. on the application of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures, assisting companies to provide useful, entity-specific accounting
policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial

statéments.

The CGompany-reviewed the accounting policies. The amendments did not resuit
in any changes ta the acecounting policies. However, updates were made to the
accounting policy information disclosed in Note 4 Materfial Accounting Policies
section in certain instances in |ine with the amendments.

Deferred Tax refatéd to Assets and Liabilities arising from & Single Transaction

{Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes). The amendments clarify that the initial
racognition exernption does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal

' taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases -and

decommissioning obligations.

For Jeases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated ‘deferred tax asseis
and liabilities will be recognized from the beginning of the eartiest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment to
retained-earnings of other @ppropriate: component of ‘equity at that date: For all
other transactions, the amendments apply to transactions that occur after the
beginning of the earfiest period presented.

Amendments to Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted |
A number of amendtrients to standards are effective for annual perieds beginning

after January 1, 2023. However, the Company has not early adopted the following
amended standards in preparing these separate financial statements. Unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the
Company's separate financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2024

"

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent - 2020 amendments. and
Noncurrent Liabilities with Covenants - 2022 amendments (Amendments to
PAS 1). To promote consistency in application and clarify the requirements on
determining whether a liability is current or noncurrent, the amendments:

o removed the requirement for a right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period o be unconditional and instead
requires that the right must have substance and exist at the end of the
reporiing perjod;



e clarified that only covenants with which a company must comply on or-before
the reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or
non-current and covenants with which the entity must comply after the
reporting date do not affect a liability's classification at that date;

e provided additional disclosure requirements for non-current liabilities subject
to conditions within fwelve manths after the reporting period to enable the.
assessment. of the risk that the liability could become: repayable within
twelve months; and

« clarified that sefflement of a liability inciudes transferring an entity’s own
equity instruments to the counterparty, but conversion options that are
classified as equity do not affect classification of the liability as current or
noncurrent. '

The amendments will apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2024, with earlier application permitted. Entities that have early
applied the 2020 amendments may retain application until the 2022 amendments are
applied. Entities that will early-apply the 2020 amendments after issue-of the 2022
amendments must apply both amendments at the same time.

Finangial Instrumerits _
Non-derivative Financial Instruments. Non-derivative financial instruments consist of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, deposits, equity securities,
trade and other payables (except for statutory payablés), port concession rights
payable, and lease liabilities. '

Recognition and Initial Méasurement. Trade receivables and -debt securities issued
are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially reécognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractital provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it i & frade receivable without a significant financing
component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition -or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price:

Financial Assets _
The Group's financial assets af amortized cost include cash @nd cash equivalents,

trade and other receivables, and deposits.

A financial asset is -me__asu're'd. at amortized cost using the effective .jnte_rest-“met'h'o'd' if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= It is held within a business model whose -objective is to hold assets. to collect
contractual cash flows; and

« Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on thée principal amount outstanding.

The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. .Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and fosses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss. on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.



Cash includes cash-on hand and in banks which are stated at face value. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investmenits that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from dates of
acquisition and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the
Company may irrevocably elect fo present subsequent changes in the investrnent’s
fair value in OC). This election is made on an investrient-by-investment basis. The
accumulated fair valué reserves are never reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless it clearly represents a recovery of the
cost of investment;

Included in this category is'the Company’s equity instruments (included under other
noncurrent assets).

Business Model Assessment. Thé Company makes. an assessment of the objective
of the business model in which a financial asset is held at & porifolio level because
this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information gonisidered includes:

a. the stated policies and objectives for the. porifolio and the operation of those
policies in pradtice. Thesé include whether management's strategy focuses on
earning contractual interest income, maintaining.a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows. or realizing cash flows through the sale of
the assets; _ _

b. how the perfarmance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
mariagement; _

c. the risks that afféct the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets. held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

d. how managers of the business are compensated - e.g., whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows
collected; and _ )

e. the frequency; volume and timing-of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Solely Payments of Principal and Inferest Assessment, Principal is-defined as the fair
value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the: credit risk associated. with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk-and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Company corsiders the contractual terms of the: instrument. This
includes assessing whether-the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing -or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this.assessment, the Company considers:

= contingent events that would change the amaount or timing of cash flows;

= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate
features; _

= prepayment and-extension features; and _

« terms that limit the Cempany's claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e:g. non-recourse features).



Financia Liabilities

Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses. Financial liabilities.
are classified as measured at.amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified -as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as sush on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and lossés, including any interest expense, are
recogrized in profit or loss. Other financial liabitities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest methaod, Interest expense -and foreigh
exchange gains. and losses are récognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

{except for due to government agencies) port concession rights payable and lease
liabilities. :

Impairment of Financial Assets _
‘The ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) impairment. mode] applies te financial assets
measured at amottized cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not

to invéstments in equity instruments.

ECL is the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the-expected life of the
financial instrument, representing the present value of expected cash shortfalls. The
Company applies either a 12-month ECL or a lifetivie ECL. Lifetime £CL applies to
the financial assets that have experienced a significant increase in ‘credit risk or are
already credit-impaired. The Company’s approach to ECL. measurement is described
in Note 23.

The Comipany considers the probability of default upon initial recognition -of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in ¢redit risk on :an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occurring onthe asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as: at the date. of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable @nd supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated: :

Internal credit rating;

= External credit rating {as.far as available),

= Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial -of
economic. conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtors ability to meet its obligations; _ _

a  Actual or expected significarit changes in the operating results of the debtor;
Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same
debtor; and

= Significant changes in the.expected performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes inthe payment-status of debtor and changes:in the -operating
results of the debtor.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant risk in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past.due in making a contractual payment.

A defauli on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 75 days of when they-fall due. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when an event that has-a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows have
oceurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data;

»  significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
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= a breach of contract such as default or being more than 75 days past dus;

« the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the
Company-would not.consider otherwise; -

» it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or either financial
recrganization; or

= the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficuities:

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
The Company categorizes a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to
make payments or'when itis no longer probable that the receivable will be collected.
Where logns or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to-engage
in enforcement activity to attemipt to recover the recejvable due. Where récoveries
are made, these are recognized in'profit or loss,

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are -offset and the net amount is reported in

the statements of financial position if, and only if; there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an infention fo settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the separate statements of financial
position.

Derecogpition of Fingricial Instruments. o _ _
Financial A_sset_s._.A"ﬁ_n_a'r”l_;:'Ia__l asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
a.part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

»  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

= the Company retalns the right fo receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed :an obligation to pay them in full without material delay fo a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

*« the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards. of the asset; or
(b) has neither transferred for retained substantially all the risks.and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Wheén the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a ‘pass-thréugh’ arrangement; and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset-nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s -continuing
invalvement in the asset: Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum.amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged, cancelled ar has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing fiability are- substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original ligbility and the recognition of a new liabiiity, and the difference in the
respective carrying -amounts js recognized in profit-or loss.



Determination. of Fair Values.

A number of the Companys accounting policies. and disclosures require the
determination of fair value, for both financial and nonfinancial assets and iiabilities.
Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes,
when necessary, based onthe market values; being the estimated amount for which
assets could be‘exchanged on the date of the valuation betwéen a willing buyer ‘and
a willing seller in an #m's length transaction after proper marketing wherein the.
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and witholit compulsion. When
appllcable further information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

The dlfferent levels of fair value of financial lnstruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method have been defined as follows:

= |evel1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. or
liabilities; o

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and

» Level 3; inputs forthe asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unchservable inputs).

If ‘the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or hability might be
categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as-the Jowest input that fs significant to the entire measurement.

Fair values of the. ﬁnanclal instruments are discussed in Note 24 to the separaie
financial statemerits.

Spare Parts and Supphes
Spare parts and supplies are stated at the lower of cost and current replacement

cost. Cost is determined usmg the weighted average method and includes all
expenditures incurred in acquiring and bringing them to their existing location and

condition.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses are expehses paid in advance and recorded as assets before they

are used or consumed, as the service or benefit will be received in the future.
F'repald expenses expire-and are recognlzed as expense. either with the passage of

time or through use or consumption.

Prepaid expenses are included in current assets, except when the related goods or
services are expected 10’ be received or rendered more than fwelve (12) months after

the réporting daté which are classified as non-current assets.



Investments in Subsidiaries and an Associate

“The Company’s investments in’ subsidiaries and an associate are accounted for
ynder the cost method, A subsidiary is an-entity in ' which the. Company has control.
The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its. involvement with the entity and has the ‘ability to affect those returns
through-its- power over the entity. The investments in subsidiaries afe recognized in
the separate financial statements from the dateon which control commences unil
the date on which. contral ceases. An associate is an entity in which the Company
has significant influence and whigh is rieither-a subsidiary nor a joint venture of the
Company. The investments. in subsidiaries and an associate are carried in the
separate statements of financial position at cost less allowance for impairment
losses; ifany.

The Company has the following investments as at Décember 31, 2023 and 2022;

Percentage of

Qwnership
2023 2022
Subsidiaries: _ _
AT Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) _\ 9917%  99:17%
Tariza Container Terminal, Inc. (TCT1) 100.00% 100.00%
Associate:

""S_outh.Gota’ba_to:I_nt’&grated Ports Services, Inc. (SCIPSI) 35.71%  35.71%

ATIB, TCT! and SCIPSI areincorporated in the Philippines.

Property. and Equipment _
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and any accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of such property and equipment at-the time that cost is incurred, if the
fecognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its -construction cost or
purchiase price, ihcluding import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs in
bringing the asset 1o its working condition and location for its intended use. Cost also
includes interest incurred. during the. construction period -on funds borrowed to
finance the construction of the projects. Expenditures incurred after the asset has
been put into operation, such as repairs, maintenance and cverhaul costs, are
normally récognized as expense in the period the costs are incurred. Major repairs
are capitalized as part of property and equipment only when itis probable that future
ecohomic benefits assdciated with the jtems will flow to the Company and the cost of
the items can be measured reliably.

Portfacilities and equipment include spare parts that the Company expects to use for
more than one year. These are not depreciated until ready for its intended use.
However, these afe reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the. spare parts may not be
recoverable,



Construction in progress represents structures under construction and. is staied at
cost. This includés the costs of construction and other direct costs. Borrowing costs
that are directly attributable fo the construction of property and equipment are
capitalized during the consfruction period. Construction in progress is not
depreciated until’such time that the relevant assets are substantially completed and
ready for its  intended use. Depreciation and amortization .are computed using the
straight-line method ovér the followirig estimated useful lives of the assets:

_ _ _ ‘Number of Years
Port facilities and equipment 2 - 25 or life of the operating
contract, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 2 - 40 or term of the lease,
o _ whichever is shorier
Furniture, fixtures and eguipment 2 -5years
Transportation and other equipment 2 - 5 years

The remaining useful lives, residual values, depreciation and amortization method
are reviewed and adjusted periodically, if appropriate, to ensure that such periods
and method of depreciation and. amortization are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits frorh the items of property and equipment.

The carrying amounts of property-and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or.changes in tircumstances indicate that the carrying amounts. may not be
recoverable,

Fully depreciated assets-are retajned in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loss.

An item of property and equipmentis derecognized when either it has been disposed
of or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economiic benefits are
expected from its use.or disposal. Any gain or loss afiging on the retirement and
disposal of an item of property and equipment (cal¢ulated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds:and the carrying amount of the assef) is inctuded in profit
or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.

Intangible: Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

Subseguent to initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and-any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are ‘amortized using the straight-line method over
the period covered by the contract or useful life, whichever is shorter. The
amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed annually. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortization expense is recognized in profit or loss in the ekpense category
consistent with the function of the intangible asset. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are-recognized in profit or loss and measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assel.
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Port Concession Rights

The Company tecognizes port concession rights as intangible assets arising from a
service concession arrangement in which the grantor controls or regulates the
services provided and the prices charged, and alsa controls any significant residual
interests in the infrastructure-at the end of the térm of the arrangement, such as
property and equipment, if the infrastructure is existing infrastructure of the grantor or
the infrastructure is constructed or purchased by the Company-as part of the service
concession arrarigements. '

Port concession rights consist of:
a. Upfront fees paymenis on the concession contracts;

b. The costof port infrastructure constructed and port equipment purchased, which
are not recognized as property and equipment of the Company but as intangible
asset received as consideration for such cost;and

c. Future fixed goverhment share considerations in exchange for license-or right.
Fixed government share is recognized at present value. using the discount rate at
the inception date with a corresponding liability recognized. Interest on the-
unwinding -of discount of the liability -and. foreign exchange differences arising
from translations are recognized in profit or loss.

Port concession rights are determined as intangible-assets with finite useful lives and
are amortized using the- straight-line method over the concession period of useful
ife, whichever is shorter. The amortization period and the amortization methdd are
reviewed annually. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future- economic benefits embodied in the asset are treated as
changes in accountirig estimates. The amortization expense:is recognized in profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognized in
profit or loss and measured-as the différence between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amountof the asset.

Port concession fights are -amortized using the straight-line method over the term of
setvice concession arrangements or useful life ranging from 2 to 25 years whichever
is shorter.

impairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of investménts in subsidiaries and-an associate, property and
equipment; intangible assets and right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment
when events-or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverablé. If any such indication exists, and if the carrying amount exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating' units. are written down
to their recoverable aniounts.- The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of
fair value less costs fo sell of value in use, The fair value less costs to sell is the
amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less costs
to sell.

In assessing value in Use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does
not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit t6 which the asset belongs. Jmpairment
losses of ‘continuing ‘operations are recognized in profit or Joss in those :expehse
categories consistent with the function of the im paired asset.
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An assessment is made at each reporting date- as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses. may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has-been a change in
the estimates used to determine the assef's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. [f that i$ the case, the: Garrying amount of the asset
is increased to its. recoverable-amount. That increased amount ¢annot exceed the
carrying amount thal would have been determined, nef of depreclatlon and
amortization, had no lmpalrment loss been recognized for the -asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such reversai, the depreciation arid
amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to alloc_a_te the asset's revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining
usefu] life.

Provisians

Provisions are recognizéd when the Company has:.(a) a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than nof)
that an outflow of resources embodymg economic benefits w:ll be required to settle
the -obligation; and (¢) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the eifect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the tifrie value of money and those risks
specific to the Ilablhty Where dlscountmg Is used, the increase inthe prowsmn due
to the passage of time is. recognlzed as interest expense. Whete some or all of the
expenditure required to settlé a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shall be fecognized when, and only when, it'is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The
reimbursemerit shall be treated as & separate assét. The amount recognized for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Share Capital
Capital Stock
Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly aftributable to the

issue of common shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any-tax
effects.

Additional Paid-in Capital
The amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as “Additional
paid-in capital.” Any-transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are

deducted from additional paid-in' capital, net of any related income tax benefit.

Retained Earnings .and Dividend Distribution _
Retained eamings include currentand prior years’ resuits, net of dividends-declared, if

any, and other capital adjustrments.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability, and
deducted from equity in the Comparty’s separate statements of financial position in
the period in which the dividends are approved and declared by the Company's

BOD.

Retamed earnings may also include prior year adjustments and the effect of changes
in accounting policies as may be required by the standards" transitional provisions.
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Revenue, Cost and Expense Recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company recognizes revenue when if transfers contrel over a service to a
customer. Revenueé-is measured bdsed on the congideration specified in a contract
and PPA Tariff regulations, which are all fixed amounts, for each type of services
rendered net of variable consideration, if any. The PPA established all relevant: port
regulations, basic poft services and service level requirements, liability on cargo,
security, and ‘safety. The Company’s revenue is well defined in PPA Operations
Memorandum Gircilar No; 02-2018 and revised schedule of Cargo Handling Tariff
implemented on June 8, 2018. ' '

The following is a description of principal activities from which the Company
generates its revenue: Revenue is disaggregated by the following service lines:

»  Stevedoring

The Compariy - génerates stevedoring revenue from-all works performed on board
vessel. The activity inclides movement of cargoes from ship-to-shore, shore-to-
ship [ifting. for inbound and outbound and transshipment including. the related
stevedoring trarisportation and liftings from shore to yard and yard to shore. The
activity generally finishes in short period of time (i.e, 24 to 48 hours from the time
ship arrive at the port). The Company fecognizes revenue at a point in time upon
compléetion of service and the average credit terms is 15 to 30 days.

v Arrasire -
The Company gerierates armasire . revenue from portside cargo handling
opérations, The activity includes receiving, handling, custody, security and
delivery of carge passing ‘over piers, guays, warehouses and open storages
within the jurisdictional area-of responsibility of the Company. The Company
recognizes revenue upon completion of service (e at a point-in time). The
customer pays arrastre charges befare the release or cargoes.

= [ ogistics _
Logistics operation includes -trucking: and handlings services. The Company
recoghizes revenue upon completion of service (i.e at a point in time) and the
averageé credit term is 15 to 30 days.

»  Special and Other Services
Special and other services include storage, reefer monitoring, container freight
servicing, and equipment or manpower rental. Majority of these service lines
pertainis to storage revenues. Storage revenues are charges from the use of
warehouses and/or open storages within the jurisdictional area of resporisibility.
of the Company beyond the frée storage period. Customers are billed upon
withdrawal of cargoes from the terminal (for impori) or upon loading of cargbes to
vessel (for export). The ‘Coripany. recognizes revenues over a pericd of time
(number of days the container stayed in the jurisdictional area) and the average
creditterm is 15:to 30 days.

Other Income - _
Other income is recognizéd at the point in time when the service has been rendered.

Finance Income _ . o L
Finahce income is.récognized on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective

yield on the investment,
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Construction Revenues and Costs

The Comparly recognizes revenue related to construction and upgrade of services
under service concession arrangement in accordance with PFRS 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. When the construction or upgrade services are provided
or delivered-under concession arrangement accounted within the scope of Philippine
Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession Amangements the consideration is
measured at the estimated selimg price of the construction services provided. No
margin has heen reécognized since the estimated selling price of the consideration
services prov:ded approx[mates the construction cost. The nature of the
consideration determings the subsequent accounting. The consideration is classified
as a contract asset under- Intangible assets dunng the construction or upgrade period
in accordance with PFRS 15.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are récognized upon receipt of goods, utilization of servicés or
at the date they are incurred.

Borrowinq Costs

Borrowing costs consist.of interest and other costs that an entity incurs.in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Botrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly
attributable t6 the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. The. capitalization
of borrowing costs: {a) commienices when the activities fo preparé the assets are in
progress and expend;tures and horrowing costs-are being incurred: (b) s suspehded
during extended periods in which acfive deveiopment improvement and construction
of the assefs are mterrupted and (c) ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary o preparethe a_ssets__ are complete. These costs are amortized using the
straight-ling method over the estimated useful lives of the related property, plant and
equipment to which it is capitalized.

Borrowing costs that are not directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying: asset are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
these are incurred using the effective interest method.

Leasges
At the inception of the contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract i, or contains, a-lease if the contract conveys the nght
to control the use of -an ldentn" ed asset for a penod of time in exchange for
consideration, To-assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in PFRS 16, Leases.

Company as Lessee.
At commengement or on meodification of a confract that contains a‘lease component,

the:Company’ allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease comgponent on
the basis of its relative stand-alone price.

However, for leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease
components and -account for the lease and. assoclated non—lease components as a

‘'single lease:component.

The Company récognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial. amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments‘
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial -direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying -asset or fo restore the
uhderlying asset or the site on which itis located, less any lease incentives received.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method
from the commentement date to the end of the lease ferm, unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to:the Company by the end of the lease
term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a
purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be' depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as-those of
property and equipment. [n addition, the right-of-tise asset is pefiodically reduced by
i‘mp?irr_nent losses, if ahy, and adjustéd for certain remeasurements of the lease:
liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the [ease payments
that are not paid.at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the-léase or; if that rate cannot be readily determined, and the Company's:
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing-

rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates
from various.external financial sources and makes certain-adjustments-to reflect the.
terms of the lease dnd type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following:

= fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

« variablé lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate:as at the commencement date;

» amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

= the exercise price uUnder a purchase option that the Company is reasahably
certain to exercise, lease payments. in an optional renewal period if the Comipany
is reasonably certain to exercise an. extension option, and penalties for early
terminiation of a lgase unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate
eafly.

The lease liability is ' measured at amortized cost using effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, if there is a change in- the Company's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Gompany’s.
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or if there is & revised in sibstance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding ‘adjustment. is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss.
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases of low-value: assets and short-term leases. The Company recognizes the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Company has classified:
= cash payments for the principal portion of lease payments as financing activities;

= cash payments for the interest portioh as operating activities consistent with the
presentation of interest payments chosen by the. Company; and
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= shortterm lease and payments for leases of low value assets as operating
activities, '

Emplovee Benefits

a. Short-term Employee Benefils
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recogmzed for the ‘amount expected to be paid if the Company-has a
present, legal or constructive abligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

b. Pension
The Company has a funded, defined benefit pension plan, administered by a
common’ pension trustee, ‘covering their permanent employees. The cost of
prowdm_g benefits under the defined benefit plan Is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

The defined benefit pension asset or liability comprises the present value of the
defined benefit obllgaﬂon less the fair value of plan assets out of which ‘the
obligation is to be setfled directly, The value of any plan asset recognized is
restricted to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit pension liability, which comiprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding intérest) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (lf any, excluding interest), are recognized lmmedlate[y
in other comprehenswe income. The Company determines the net interest
expense (income} on the net defined pension benefit liability (asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit:
obngat:on at the beginning of the annual period to-the then net defined benefit
pension liability (asset), taking into -account any changes in the net defined
pension hablhty (asset) durlng the pertiod as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. ‘Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit

plan are recognlzed in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed-orwhena plan is curtailed, the: resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or.loss on curtailment is:
recogriized lmmediately i profit or loss. The Company recegnizes gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plah whenthe setlement dceurs.

Foreigh Currency Transactions
The .separaté: fihancial statements.-are; presented in Philippine peso, which is the

Cormpany’s. functional curmrency. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to
the functional.currency at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, Monetary
assets and liabilities deriominated in foreign currencies at the reporting’ date are
retranslated ‘to the -functional ‘currency at the exchange. rate at that date. All
differences are taken to proft or loss. Foreign cufrency gains and losses are

reported on a net basis.

Taxes
Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss. except to the extent that

it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comiprehensive income.

Current Tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxab[e_
income: or loss for the year, using tax rates (tax laws) enacted or substantwely
enacted by thé end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.
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Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the carying amounts of assets and liabiliies fof financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. ' '

Deferred tax assefs are recognized for all- deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. '

Deferred tax liabilities are not provided on non-taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in domestic subsidiaries and an associdte.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the-extent that it is no-longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be:
avajlable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized o the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered. '

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is setfled, based on tax
rates (tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the -end of the
reporting period.

In determining the amourit of current and deferred tax, the Company takes into
account the .impact .of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and
interest may be due. The Company believes that its accruals for fax liabilities are
adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including
interpretation of tax laws and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates
and agsumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events. New
information may become available that causes the Company t6 change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will
impact tax expense in the. period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a [egally enforceable right.

exists to set off current tax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Value Added Tax (VAT}. Revenug, expenses and assets are fecognized net of the
amount of VAT, except:

= where thé VAT incurred 6n a purchase of assets or services is not recovérable:
frotn the tax autherity, in which case the sale tax is recognized as part of the cost
of acquisition of the asset of as part of the expense item as applicable; and

= receivables and payables that are stated with amount of VAT included.

The net amount-of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included
as part of prepaid .expenses or payables in the separate statements of financial

position.
Operating Segmernts

The Company’s operating businesses are orgarized and managed separately
according to the lings of business: port and non-port, with each segment

representing a sfrategic business. unit that serves different markets. The BOD
reviews segmient reports on a regular basis.
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'Thg;._Com_pany has _a_is_in_g_l_e: reportable operating segment, a5 its business has been
mainly on port operations and the non-port operation is insignificant to the
Company’s total business. '

The Compariy operates only in the Philippines which is treated as a single
geographical segment.

Seg_m_en_t capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
property:and equipment and intangible assets. '

Contingencies . _

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the separate financial statements. They
are-disciosed in the notes to the separate financial statements unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote. Contingent assets
are not recogriized in the separate financial statements but disclosed when an inflow
of economiic benefits is probable.

Events After the Repotting Date o

Post year-end events that provide additional -information about. the Company's
separate financial position at the reporting date (adjusting events) arereflected in the
separate financial statements. Post year-end events that ‘are not adjusting events are
disolosed in the notes to the separate financial staternents when material.

5. Significant Accﬁuﬁtin‘g-'dud'g'm"e"nté, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s separate financial statemenits in-accordance with
PFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accéunting: policies and amounts of assets, liabilities; income
and expenses reported in the separate financial statements at the reporting date.
However, uncerfainty about these judgments, esfimates and assumptions could
result in an outceme that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of the affected asset or liability in the future.

Judgrments and estimates are. continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and -other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions are recognized in the
period in which the judgmenits and estimates are revised and i any future periods
affected.

Judgments- _
In the process of applying the. Company's accounting policies, management has

made the following. judgments, apart from those involving es_t'_imajtic_'ms,-which have
the most significant effect on the: amounts recognized in the separate financial
statements: ’

Functional Currency. Based on the ‘economic substance of the underlying
circumstances relevant to the Gompany, the functional currency of the Company has
been determined to be the Philippine peso. it is the ¢urrency that mainly influences
the price and cost of providing services.

Service Concession Arrangements. The Company has ;latermined that the: operating
‘contracts are within the scope of IFRIC 12, accounted for under the. intangible asset
mode!.

The intangible assets pertaining to concession rights as at December 31, 2023 and
2022 are presented in Note 11 tothe separate financial statements.
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Port Concession Rights and Porf Concession Rights Payable. Estimates and
assumptions are required on the determination of the cost of port concession rights
on service concession arrangeinents to determine the extent to which the Company
receives a right or license to charge users of puiblic service. Port concession rights
includes fiture fixed governmetit share: considerations in exchange for license or
right. Fixed govermnment share is recognized at present value using the discount rate
at the inception date with a corresponding liability (port concession rights payable)
recognized. In making those estimates, the management is required to determine a
suitable discount rate to calculate the present value of poit concessions rights and
port concession rights payable. The: Company believes that, while the assumptions
used are rezsonable and appropriate, these estimates and assumptions can
materially affect the separate financial statements.

Estimates.and Agstumptions

The key estimates and assumptions used in the separate financial statements are
based upon management's: evaluation of relevant facts ard circumstances as of the
date of the separate financial statements. Actual results could differ from such
estimates,

Provisions for Claims. The Company records provisions for ¢claims for property. and
equipment, cargo ‘damage, and for pending civil and labor cases when it is
determined that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of the claim can’
be reasonably estimated. The determination of the amount of reserves required, if
any, is based on managements analysis of each individual issue, often with
assistance of otttside legal counsel.

The .-g:arr'y?i_ng.. am'c_j__u'ntsj. of provision for claims a_r‘h_ount’ed to P43.3 million and
P46.0 million as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Note 185).

Lease Extension Option. Some property leases contain extension options
exercisable by the Gompany before the end of the non-cancellable contract period.
The Company assesses at lease commencement date whether it is. reasonably
certain to exercise the exterision options. The Company reassesses whether it is.
reasonably certain fo exercise the ‘options if there is a significant event or significant
changes in circumstances within its control.

Lease liabilities on property leases on which extension options were exercised
amourited to P48.7 million and P31.8 million as at December 31,2023 and 2022.

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

| Note 2023 2022
Cash on hand and in banks P469,717 P579,504
Shor-term investments _ 4,904,339 3,975,434

23,24  P5374,086  P4,555028

Cash in banks @arn Interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Majority of shortterm investments are on 90-day terin subject t0 roll-over
requirements of the-Company and earn interest at the. prevailing short-term 'dep'osn
rates amounting to P188.1 million and P45.5 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively
(see Note 19),
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7. Trade and .Other-'-Receivab'leé- - net

_ . _ Note 2023 2022
Due from related parties 20 P2,498,878 P2,121,738
Trade receivables o 532,915 653,204
Advances 1o officers and employees 22,282 27,383
Receivable from insurance 17,817 21,681
Receivable from escrow fund - 13,635
Interest receivable 14,131 12,207
Other receivables _ 918 8,807
Allowance for impairment losses {4,195) (4,195)

Trade and other receivables are noninterest-bearing and generally have credit term
of 30 days.

There was no movement in the allowance for impaifment losses on trade and other
receivables in 2023 and 2022 (see Note 23).

8. Prepaid Expenses

2023 2022
Taxes P2,628,855 2,416,184
Insurance 10,130 8,294
Rental 2,327 2,327
Qthers _ 29,423 19,081

P2,670,735  P2,445,866

Taxes mostly pertain to the Company's input VAT credits, net of output VAT,

Rentél---péﬁaihs*tq 'prepaym_en_ts on: short:term. leases entered dgfi'n_g_ the period. The
Company has elected not to recognize. right-of-use assets: and lease liabilities for
these leases.

9. Investments in Subsidiaries and an Associate

Note 2023 2022
At.cost: B _
Subsidiary - ATIB 9a P150,717 P150,717
' Subsidiary - TCTI 9b 3,125 3,125
Associate - SCIPSI | 9 11,222 11,222
P165,064 P165,064
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a. The following table shows the summarized financial inforiation of ATIB:

_ _ 2023 2022
Current asgets P294,168. P261,681
Noneurrent assets 3,189,178 2,983,657
Total assets P3,483,347  P3,245,238
Current liabilities. P857,437 P&6S5,191
Noncurrent liabilities: 131,324 257,573
Total liabiiities F988,761 P922,764
Reveriues P1,278,441 P1,328,283
Expenses {1,034,222) (895,523)
Net income P244,219 P432,760

Based on unauditet! financial statements.

ATIB's exclusive right-fo manage and render arrastre, stevedoring; storage and
related cargo ha’hdling-'_'_sé.\rv?ces at the Port of Batangas for Phase | was renswed
on. Qctober 20, 2005 for a period of 10 years until 2015, renewable for another
10 years upon mutual agreement of PPA and ATIB. The contract with the PPA
includes cargo handling and operation and management of the passenger
terminals.

On October 2, 2015, ATIB signed a Contract for the Management, Operation,
Maintenance and. Development of Phase |, Port of Batangas with a ferm- of '
Octobier 1, 2015 until September 30, 2025. [h December 2019, ATl and ATIB
signed a Confract with PPA for the extension of the term from 2025 to 2035
{see Note.22).

. The following table shows the summarized financial information of TCTI:

| | 2023 2022
Currént assets P13;159 P126
Noncurrent assets 2,008,988 2,067,373
Tota! assets P2,022,147 P2,067,499
Current liabilities P2,072,840  P2,048,406
Noncurrent liabilities 193,237 130,806
Total fiabilities P2,266,077  P2,179,312
Expenses _ (P121,848) (P47,918)
Net loss (P121,848) (P47,918)

Based on unaudited finaricial statoments,

The Company intends to develop, operate and manage a barge terminal in
Tanza, Cavite to cater to Philippine Economic Zone Authority cargoes. In
preparation for this project, TCT| was incorporated on January 18, 2018. TCTI
has not started- its commercial operations since its. establishment. Currently,
there are léasé improvements and ongoing construction of port facilities. Also,
equipment has been acquired and recognized under TCTL Due.to the COVID-19
pandemic, the start of commercial operations has been delayed and is expected
to begin in 2024.
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c. The following table shows the summarized financial infermation of SCIPSI;

2023 2022

Current assets P165,483 P125,617
Noncurrent assets 49,226 48607
Total assets P214,709 P174,224
Current liabilities | | P44,448 P35,860
N_p:ncg_z_rrg_n't liabilities 1,636 1,432
Total liabilities P46,084 P37,202
Reventies P297,047 P283,941
Expenses (188,360). (193,283)

Netincome . |  P108,687 P90,658

-Baéed on unaudited finaricial staternents,

The Company tias a 35.71%. interest in SCIPSI, which is engaged in arrastre,
stevedoring and other related cargo handling services, except porterage, in
Makar Wharf, General Santos City, Philippines.

ATIB, TCT] and SCIPS| are not listed in-any public exchange.

Total dividend income of P98.1 million and P104.9 million was feceived from ATIB
and SCIPSI in. 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Notes 19 and 20).

10. Property and Equipmerit - net

The movements in this account are as follows:

2023
Port Fumiiure, Transporiation

‘Facllitles and Leasehld Fixtures.and and Other  Construction .
Equlpment._lmprovements Equipment Equipment In-progress Total

Cost ) o L L
Balanée at beginning:of yaar Pa8,371 520,284 P858;294 P281,570 Piz,245  PA,21,164
Additions ' 2,178 35,097 45,769 74,186 157,848
Disposals - {6,045) {18,320} - {22,385}

Recizssiications: . - 19,003 24,913 45,621 (B9,537) .
Balance atend of year S 83T 642,083 812,289 357,080 46;894 1,956,847
Accirmulatad Deprecition . i
Balance at begirining 6f year 66,794 - 401,845 657,210 191,873 - 1,347 532
Addifions 4,564 13,642 78,874 237,630 - 134,710
Disposals v v {8,045) 145228 - 21,273
Bslance at enid of year 71,356 415487 730,039 214,075 - 1,430,959
Gamying Amaunt p27,013 Fi26,576 " p18z,220 F142,985 P45,834  P5256a8
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2022

Fort  Fumifure, Transporiation:
Facilities and Leasehold Fixtures and ‘and Qther  Construction
_ Equlpmen! I_mpmvgn'l_enis Equipment’ Equipment: in-progress Total

Cost . ' '
‘Balence ai beginning of year Pog,3s? P5ig2es P744.879 P280,549 P10Z,828: P1,725.889
Additiorns - ar2 52,918 29,242 14,108 96,840
Disposals . - {3,452) (6,871} - (10,323)
Rai:ia_s_siﬂcz_lthns _ 4 il £3.949: {950} {54.691) 8758
Balanceat and of year 88371 ) 520,284 858,284 2_31 A70 62,245 1,821,184
Accumulated Depreciation N . ) . e
Balance =t beginning of year B3 391,237 583,488 180,240 . 1,156,276
Depreciation 5,453 10,608 76,710 a7, 766 . 130,537
Disposals - . {2,988) (6,303) - (9,261
Reciassifications = - - " -

. Balancé:stend of year. - BgTe4 401,845 657,210 191,673 - 1,317,522

" Camying Anigunt | PaTETT P118439. £201,084 py0,287 P62:245.  PS03,642-

No borrowing costs were capitalized in 2023 and 2022.

The Company has non-cash additions as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 which
amounted to P16.1 million and P21.5 million, respectively.

Depreciation is charged under “Depreciation and amortization” account included in
“Costs and expenses: excluding government share in revenues” in the separate
statements of income (see Note 18).

Cost of fully deprec:ateci property.and equipment which are still being used by the
Company amounted to P712.0 million and P493.0 million as at December 31, 2023

and 2022, respectively;

11. Intangible Assets - net

The movements in this account are as follows:

2023 - |
Port Concession Rights
Fixed
UpfrontFees Governmerit _ Port
{Note 22) Share Infrastruciure Total

Cost | " " o
Balance at beginning.of year P482,000.  P§,342,270 P23,167,512 P34,991,782
Additions - - 1,661,136 1,661,136
Disposals . _ - __ - {158,653} {1 5,653}
Balance at_'a'nd-'of"year 482,000 8,342,270 24,802,995 33,627,265
Accumulated Amortization ' _ o
Balance &t beginning of- yedr. 108,494 4,039,521 9,511,892 43,659,907
Amortization 11,280 292,853 1,088, 882 1,360,015
Disposals _ - L. (15 653) _ (15,6563)
Balance at end of year 119,774 4,332,374 10,552,121 15,004,269
Carrying Amount ' | P362,226  P4,008,806  P14,250,874  P18,622,996
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2022
Port Concession Rights

_ _ Fixed
Upfront Fees  Gavernment _ Paoit

{Note 22). Shara [nfrast_ructure Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P482,000  PB342270  P21,892,504 P30;716,774
Additions ) - - 1,742,606, 1,742,606
Reclassification - - (8,758} (8,758)
Disipasa!;f'_ _ . - - (458.840) '-(4_58.840)
Balange at:end of yéar 482,000 8,342,270 23,167,512, 31,991,782
Accumulated Amortization o _ '
Balance at beginning of year 97,214 3,746,668 8,950,374 12,794,256
Amoi‘tiza_tion 11,28C 202,853 1,018,786 1,323,919
D[sp_osa_ls_ ) - - (458,268} (458,268)
Balancé at end of year 108,494 4,039,521 9,511,892° 13,658,907
Cairying Amount P373,506  P4,302749  P13,655620 P18,331,875

The unamortized capitalized borrowing costs as at December 31, 2023 and 2022
-amounted to P50.0 million and P54.7 million, respectively.. No borrowing casts were
capitalized in 2023 and 2022.

Amortization s ‘charged-under “Depreciation and amortization” account included in
“Costs and expenses excluding government share in revenues” in the separate
statements of income (See Note 18).

The Company has non-cash additions as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 which
amgunted to P121.7 million and P55:0 million, respectively.

Contract asset under Port Infrastructure. represents engoing construction of port
facilities. arid “eventual putting ‘into service in accordance with the Investment:Flan.
The movemesnts.ih contract asset are &s follows:

_ | | 2023 2022

' Balange at beginning of year P2,640,976 P1,233,551
Additions during the year 1,510,505 1,638,016
Reclassification during the year (1,306,881) {230,591)

Balance atendofyear P2,844,600  P2,640,976

12. Other Noncurrent Assets

Nofe 2023 2022

Deposits 23, 24 P86,094 P79,301

Equity securities 23, 24 2,652 2,652
- a P68,746 P81,953

Deposits mainly represent payments related to refundable security deposits on
property leases and utilities. This account includes noninterest-bearing refundable
security deposits on a lease agreement that was cayried at fair value as of initial
recognition determined based on the present value of future cash flows discounted
using effective interest rate of 5.8% in 2023 and 6.0% in 2022. The cartying amounts
of these. refundable security deposits at amortized cost amounted to P15.0 million
and P14.8 million as at:December 31,2023 and 2022, respectively.

Equity securities consist of investments in quoted and unquoted shares.
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13. Income Tax

On March 26, 2021, the President of the Philippines has. approved the Corporate

Recovery and Tax Incentwes for Enterprises’ or the CREATE Act with nine (9)

provisions: vetoed by the President. Effective July 1, 2020 the Company, being’

ggoa/llﬁed as large corporation, has its corporate incomie tax lowered from 30% to.
(1]

The components of taxes are as-follows;

_ | | 2023 2022
Current tax P1,388;823  P1,045481
Deferred tax | (18,268) (185,128)

P1,370,565 P860,353

A reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate on income
before income tax follows:

| . | 2023 2022
Statitory income tax rate. 25.00% 25.00%
Changes in income. tax rate resuiting frafm:

Change in income: tax rate -
Dividend income fram a subsmhary and an,
associate (0.43) 0.73)
Income subjected o final tax (0.77) 0.21).
 Effective income tax rate 23.80% 24.06%
The mevements in déferred tax balances are as follows:
~ Net Recoghlzed December.31
Balance'at lnPrafit Recognized Deferred ‘Defarred
2023 Note. _ January 1 or Loss i B! Tax Assets  TaxLiahllittes Nat
Port concession.sights
payable relatet to fixed y . _
govemment share P422.274 Pt2632 P - P434,906 P - P434,908
Unrealized fofeidn . . .
‘exchange loss - net 384,736 13,478 - 398,213 - 398,213
Pension liability 21 59,014, {1,658) 14,969 72,328 - 72,323
Accrued eXpenses ) 46,425 {8;867) - 37.658 - 37,560
Excass:of cost aver cumrent
rep!aoernenl cosi.of .
spare parts: and supplies 19,807 2;500 - 22,3067 - 22,307
Provisions: for claims 11,511 {B76) - 10,835 - 14,835
Right-of-usa assets.and _ _
lease liabillties 8,540 {454) - 8,086 - 8,085
Impairméntlosses on o -
Tecgivables 2,253 - - 2,253 - 2,253
Renlal deposit 1,036 - - 1,036 . 1,036
Unamortized capitalized
bortowing costs and. ) L
.custom; duties '_ _ _ (14 17?)- : 1,310 = - .(-12.2_35_?.)_ {1?._,867-}.'
Netiax assets (Uabllites} Poat#ls  P1a.268 P14369  POB7,522 (P12,867) POT4E8E
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Net  Recognized December31

o . 'Balanceat dn Prefit - Recognized Deferred Defered
o022 Nofe  January 1 -or Loss 1A 0Cl _ TexAssets  TaxlLisblities Net
Purt concession. fights
payable felated to fixed y
goyemment shére P405,391 £16,883 P.- P422,274 P - P422,274
‘Vhrealzed foreign L o
exchange loss - net 253,402 131,333 . 384,735 - 384,735
Pension liability 21 80,233 130 ©(1,349) ‘59,014 - 59,014
Accrued expenses. 18,954 27,441 - 46,425 - 46,425
Exgess ¢f cost over current: )
_repfacement cost of
spare parts.and-supplies 21,432 (1,825) - 18,807 - 18,807
Provisions for claims 11,952 (4ay - 11,511 - 11,811
Right-oF-use dssets and N ' '
lease fiabilities (4,555} 10,095 - 8,540 - 8,540
Impairment iosses on ' ' o
receéivables 2,253 - - 2,253 - 2,253
Rental deposit 4,056 - - 4,036 . 1,03
Unamoriized capitalized
-botrowing;costs and .
. _cusiom duties {15,489} 1,312 - - (14477 (141770
Net tax assets {liabilities) P7o7.639  Pi85128 {P1,348) P955,585 {P14,177) P941,418

Net defeired tax assets have been recognized because management believes that
the Company will earn sufficient future taxable profits . against which: it can utilize the
benefits therefrom.

14. Trade and Other Payables |

Note 2023 2022

Accrued expenses:
Marketing, commercial and promotion P529,744 PB43,467
Financecosts 125,151 131,257
Personnel. costs 62,643 78,034
Repairs and maintenarice - 60,582 55,887
Insurance 53,087 49,100
Professional fees. 49,332 48,122
Trucking expense 24,600 27,176
Security-expenises N 21,236 16,940
Corporate social responsibility 11,634 20,634
Rental 22 11,196 11,305
Utilities 9,349 9,111
Safety and envirenment 1,756 1,767
Miscellaneous 118,924 102,472
Due to government agencies 22 836,380 914,491
Equipment-acquisitions 236,162 177,350
Trade ' ) _ 156,207 364,316
Shippers' and brokers" deposits 97,555 115,815
Dus to related parties. ‘ 20 17,266 19,215
‘Other payables 132,854 114,551

23, 24 P2,555,658  P2,901,020

Following are the terms-and conditions of the liabilities:

= Trfalde: payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60-day
terms. '

= Accrued finance costs are normally seftled quarterly and semi-annuaily
throughout the finangial year. _ L

» QOther payables are noninterest-beaiing and gre normaily settled. within twelve
months from inception date. This account inélides dividends and other non-trade
payables.
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Rental pertains to shori-term leases entered during the period.

18. 'P'_'rovi'sio.ns for Glaims

The movements and balances of this accourit are as follows:

| | _ Note 2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year P46,049 P47,814
Provisions {reversals) during the year - '

net L 18 {685) 522
Paymenits during the year (2,020) (2.287)
Balance at end of year P43,344. P46,049

Provisians relate fo property and equipment, and cargo damage.and other claims. It
is expected that most of these provisions will be setfléd within the next financial year
‘or on demand.

16. Equity

Pursuant to the registration statement rendered effective by the SEC and permit to
sell issued by the SEC both-dated April 7, 1995, 1.0 billion -common. shares of the
Company were registered and may be offered for sale at an offer price of-P5.10 per
common.share: On March 26, 1998, ‘another registration statement was rendered
«effective. by the SEC and permit to sell issued by the SEC for 1.0 billion common
shares of the Company and may be offered for sale at an offer price of P1.00 per
common share, As at December 31, 2023, the Company has a total of 2.0 billion
issued and outstanding common shares and 821 steckholders. '

Capital Stock - P1 Par Value _ _
The Company has 2.0 billion issued and fully paid capital stock; from its 4.0 billion
_author_ized,.commqn,:sharES, as-at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Retained Earnings

‘Cash Dividends N

On April 27, 2023, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting 1o
P2.0 billion or P1 per share payable on June 20, 2023 to common-shareholders of

record as at May 28, 2022.

On April 28, 2022, the BOD appraved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
P1,616.0 million or P0.808 per share payable on June 17, 2022 to common
shareholders of record as-at May 25, 2022,

Appropriation and Reversal of Appropriation of Retained Eamnings _

On December 29, 2023, the Company's BOD approved the reversal of the.
appropriated retained eamings amounting to P2.4 billion out-of the already approved
appropriation of P16.4 billion, for capital -expenditires for 2023 and 2022.
Furthermore, the -Company’s BOD approved an appropriation of the retained
earnings amounting to P5.0 billion for capital expenditures for the next 5 years.. The
Company's BOD dlso approved on the same date a budget amounting fo P16.0
billion for capital expenditures which include yard -and berth development as well as
construction-of new facilifies and equipment acquisition for 2024 to 2028. The capital
expenditures will strengthen the Company’s ‘operations and capability to handle-
growth, '-
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On December 29, 2022, the. Company's BOD approved the reversal of the
appropriated retamed earnings amounting to-P2.0 billion out of the already approved
appropriation of P15.1 billion, for capltal expendltures for 2022 and 2021.

Furthermore, the Companys BOD approved an appropriation of the retained
earriings amounting to P3:3 billion for capital expenditures for the next 4 years. The:
Company’s BOD: also. approved on the same date a budget amounting to P16.0
billion for capital expenditures which include: yard. and berth development as well as
construction of new facilities and equipmernit acquisition for 2023to 2026. The capital
expenhdlture will strengthen ‘the Company’s operations and capability to handle
growt

The appropriated retained earnings as at January 1, 2022 amounting to P15.1 billion
mainly. consists of approved: appropr[atlon for capital expenditures which include yard
and berth deve!opment as well as construction of new facilities and equipment
acquisition for 2022 to 2026.

Fair Value Reserve
Fair value reserve amotnting to P5.8 miillion as at December 31, 2023 and 2022
represents unrealized loss on equity securities.

17. Government Share in Revenues

This account consists-of the PPA's share in revenues of the Company as stipulated
in the agreements discussed in Notes 2 and 22. The PPA's share in-gross revenues
includes variable government share amounting to: P25 billion and P2.4 billien in
2023 and 2022 respectively (see Note 22).

18. Costs and Expenses _Efxcludi’ng-G_overnmén"t Sharein Revenues:

) Note 2023 2022
Depreciation and amortization 10, 11, 22 P1,674,432 P1,659,8468
Labor costs: 21 1,570,043 1,468,406
Equipment running 827,488 787,615
Taxes and licenses 422,567 494,848
Management fees 20 259,221 173,445
Irisurance 245,457 204,379
Facilities-related expenses 242,155 217,385
General transport 212,893 179,226
Security, health, ehvironment and safety 109,101 107,332
Marketing, . commerc&al and promotion 22,272 8,362
Professional fees 19,862 23,645
Entertainment, amusement.and recreation 8,397 9,591
Rentals 22 2,014 12,542
Provisions for claims 15 1,600 522
Others 197,202 155,920

P5,814,704 P5,503,074

Labor costs include salaries, benefits and pension expense,

Spare parts and supplies used and inciuded under equipment running amounted to
P268.8 million.and P253.4 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Provision for:spare parts and suppiies obsolescence included urider other costs and
expenses amounted to: P40.0 million and nil in 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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Rental pertains to short-term leases incurred-during the period..

19, Other Income and Expenses
Finance income pertaining to iriterest income derived from cash in banks and
short-term investmenits amounted to P189.1 million and P45.5 million for the years
‘ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively (see.Note 6).

Finance cost is broken down asfollows:

- Note 2023 2022

Interest on port concession rights payable P4286,765 P443,771

Interest on lease liabilities 22 17,062 25,122
Interest componeént of pension

~ expense - net- S 21 11,607 8,896

_Interest on bank loans/credit facilities _ 2,732 278

P458,166 P478,062

Interest on port concessien rights payable perfains to the interest on the unwinding of
discount of.said liability (see related policy on port coneession rights in Note 4).

Others consist of the following:

_ _ Nate 2023 2022
Dividend income from subsidiaries and _ _
an associate ' 9, 20 P98,078 P104,884
L ease and other income - net. 20 95,272 73,036
Gain on-disposal of equipment and
intangible. assets ' 4,059 6,108
Foreignh exchange losses -port _ ’
concession rights payable (66,418) (728,712)
Foreign exchange (losses) gains - others (8:460) 127,890
P122,531 (P416,794)

Foreign exchange lgsses - port concession rights payable resuited from revaluation
of foreign curiency denominated port concession rights payable.

Lease and other income - net recognized in 2023 is mostly comprised of income
from the reversal of long-outstaniding deposits of dormant custormners of the
Company.
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20. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to-be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party .or exercise significant influence over the other party. in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to-be related if
they aré subject to comrrion corntrol. Related. parties may be individuals or corporate
entities. '

The Company, in the normal course of business, has the following fransactions with
its related parties:

Dutstand!ng’ Halance

Amount . Due from’ "~ Dua te;
L _ ~ -oftho Retatad Relatzd Lease
Category(Transaction .Ref __ ¥ear Transatton Patias Partles _ Lisbility - Tefms -Conditions
Subsldiarles
ATiB e ) .
& Managemsn income a 202 P28,161 P - P - P - Payzbla cn de d Unsécured;
nG impairment
2022 47,50 - - . Paydble ondemand  Unsetured; -
. . no impaimant
* Dividend mcome & 2023 £9,420 - - . Payable on demand  Unsecured.
. rie impairment
iz g 69,420 . - - Paysblaondemand  Unsegured;
) o o ) no impaimuent
= Rerilat income g 2023 - - - - Payable on démand  Unzccured;
) no.impairment
‘2022, 1,106 - . - Payablsendemend  tnsecutéd:
. no impaiment
v Advances & 2023 (a4,584) 326,617 - - Payabto on ilemand  Unsecurad;
y o o S _ ng impalrment
2022 116,812 242,053 - - Paysblaondemand  Unsecured;
no impalmaent
TCT _ g . N
= Advances g 2023 207,631 2,069,526 - - Payable on demand  Unsecured;
. o - no Impalent
2022 842 5014 1.B61,985 - . Paysble oh demand  Unsécured;
) ) no impaiment.
Assoclate: . )
» Management ncome ] 2023 7950 641 - - Payable on demand  Unsecured;
o ) o rio Impaifment:
2022 - 7.557 489 - - Fayablzordemand  Unsecured;
) . ’ " o ) no impairiant
= Dividend income h 2023 28,658 - - - Payable ondemand  Unsccured;
' no Jmpajmment
20z 35,464 - - " Payablz ondemand  Unsegured;.
a no jmpaimment .
Fost-amployment:
_Benefit Flan ) : . ) _ .
Retirement fund. ¢ 2023 53,044 20,550 K i Payable ondemand  Unsecured;
¥ ] - .. nolmpatomont
2022 35,506, 11,861 - -~ Payapleocrdemand  Unsacured;
' ' o impairment
Others . R
Mznagement fzes d 2023 258,221 - 17,268 - . Payablewithin Unsarured
) h ton (10) days of tha
) faflowing thonth
o2 173,445 - 19215 - Payable within- . Urtsecured
lan {10} days of the
) L follawing manth
Advances F 2023 148,297 81,443 11330 . Fayable ondemand  Unsecured;
o ' . : na impalarent
w22 ;533 5338 1:666° - Psyeble ondemand  Unsecired,
) ’ o ) no impaiment
Lease [ 45,413 - - 375,839 Payable within Unsecured
i ’ five'{5) days of tha
. following manth
2022 14,779 - - 38,495 Payable within Unsecured
five:(5) days of the '
Tallgwing month
TOTAL 2023 P2,490,878 P2B,896  P375;639
TOTAL 2022 P2,151,738 P20,881 - P3/496

a. The Cormipany hgs a ma'na__gement-agreemen_t'wi'th ATIB for a period of five years
until August 31, 2022. The terins of the agreement provide for 2 monthly
management fée calculated using a pre-agreed rate-applied to ATIB's income
before income tax. Management fees earned are included under lease and other
income (see Note 19).
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The 'Cbmpa_ny rgn}’s out cargo handling -equipment to ATIB on an annual basis.
Total rent income is included under lease and other ingome (see Note 19).

The Company Teceived dividend income from ATIB in 2023 and 2022
(see Notes 9 and 19).

Thi;rccmpan'y-.q'oliects certain receivables and pays cerfain expenses on behalf
of ATIB. '

. Amount owed by SCIPSI pertains to management fees equivalent of 6% of gross
revenue of SCIPSI. Management fees earned are included under lease -and
other income (see Note 19). The Company. also received dividend income from
SCIPSI (see Notes 9-and 19).

. The Company has a.noncontributory, defined benefit retirement plan ‘covering all

its regular employees, in the form of a trust being maintained by a trustee bank.
The benefits are based on the-employee’s years of service and final plan salary.
Certain payments to retired employees were paid directly by the Company to.be
subsequently reimbursed by the retirement fund.

. P & O Management Services Phils., Inc. (POMS) is a related party which is

40% owned by POAL. POMS engages in advisory services which it provides to
the Parent Company by virtue of a 5-year contract: The Conipany’s contract with
POMS was further renewed on August 27, 2020 for another five years until
August 31, 2025. The terms of the contract provide for the payment of -a monthly
fee equivalent to 5% of ATI's consclidated income before income tax of the
immediately preceding month (see Note 18).

. The Company pays expenses on behalf of TCTI for the latters
pre-operating working capital requi‘_rem'en'ts',. particularly its rental.

Advances include amounts owed fo or by DP World Asia Holdings Limited-
Regional Operating Headguariers, DP Warld Philippines Logisties, Ltd., and DP
World Holdings Philippines, Inc., which are felated parties under common
control, pertaining to reimbursements-for expenses paid by:the Company. The:
balance also includes. amounts owed to companies: controlled by the Company’s
director for expenses incurred by the Gompany: for manpower, healthcare: and
insurance services. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, related amounts are
recarded-as Other Payables under Trade and other payables (sae Note 14).

. The Company has gritered a-5-year lease contract with 2 company contralled by
the Company's director cgorimencing on May 1, 2019 for a parcel of land located
at Barangay Lawa, Calamba, Laguna, with a monthly lease. rental of P40 per
square meter, subject to an escalation of 8% beginning May 1, 2021 and every
2 years theréaftér. The contract terms are based on market rates for this type of
arrangement and amounts are payable.on a monthly basis for the d uration of the
contract. The leased premisés shall be used for its off-dock container yard and
cargo -support requirements, including but not limited to warehousing and

logistics (see Note 22).
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The shortterm compensation and benefits. of key management personnel are as
follows:

. 2023 2022

Short-term employee benefits P134,508 P229,274

Post-employment benefits 11,187 11,114
P145,695 P240,388

The outstanding related parly balances are expected to be settled in cash.

21. Pension

The Company's latest actuarial valuation report is as at December 31, 2023,
Valuations are obtained -on a periodic basis. The foliowing tables summarize the
components of perision expense recognized in the separate statemerits of income
and the funded status and amounits recognized in the separate statements of
financial position.

Pension Expense

_ . _ Note. 2023 2022
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 19 P37;977 P28,824
Current service cost 35,418 40,643
Interest income on plan assets 19 (_2_6,_3?.0}_ (_1'.'9,-_9_28)_
Net pension expense P47,025 49,539

Current service cost Is charged under “Labor costs” account included in “Costs: and
experises excluding government share in-revenues” in the separate statements of
incorre (see Note 18). Interest cost on defined benefit obligation:and interest income
on plan asset are included in “Finance cost” account in the separate statements of

income (see Note 19).

Pension Liability as at December 31

. _ 2023 2022
Present value 6f pension obligations {P668,550) (P575,897)
Fair value of plan assets 437,648 378,155
Pension liability (P228,902) (P197,742)
Changes in the Present Value of Pengion Objigations
) 2023 2022
Present value of pension obligations at o 3
beginning of year (P576,897) (P605,375)
Actuarial (lossés) gains (68,697) 33,182
Interest cost (37,977) (28,824)
Current service cost (35,418) (40,643)
Benefits paid _ _ 5.'-1_ 39 65_',7_63
Present value of pension obligations at _ o
.end of year ' {P666,550) (P575,897)
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Changes in the Fair Valué of Plan Assels

I 2023 2022
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year P378,155 P384,731
Actual return on plan assets: '
Actual contributions 75,743 67,046
Interest income. : 26,370 19,928
'Remeasuremerit gains (Josses) on plan assets 8,819 (27,787}
.B.éneﬁ_ts- paid _ (51,439) {65,763)
Fair value of plan-assets atend of year P437,648 P378,155

Benefits. paid-include. certain paymients to. retired -employees. paid directly by the
Companyto be subsequently reimbursed by the retirement fund. Any amount paid by
the Company not reimbursed by the retirement fund within the year is recorded
under “Due from related parties” ‘account included in "Trade and other
receivables - net’ in the separate statements of financial position. As at
December 31, 2023.and 2022, the balance due from the refirement fund amounted
to P20.6 million and P41.9 million, respectively (see Note 20).

The components: of retirement benefits recognized in other comprehensive income
are as follows:

. 2023 2022

Actuarial (losses) gains due to: _
Changes infinancial agsumptions (P76,928) F106,392
Experience adjustment _ 8,231 (73,210)
_RemeaSUrement-.ggins-_(I'o'sses).on_'plan.as_'sets- 8,819 _(27.787).
(P59,878) P5,395

The cumulative amaunt of actuarial gains (losses) recagnized in the separate
statements of changes in eguity included in the "Retained earings” account. is
{P56.4) million actuarial losses as at December 31, 2023 and P3.5 million actuarial
‘gains as at December 31, 2022.

Plan Assets _

The plan entitles a retired regular .or full-time: employee to receive a lump sum
amount equivalent to.one (1) month salary for every year of credited service. Period
of service shall be reckoned from date hiréd to date of retirement, death, permanent
disability, or severance.

This defined benefit pensior plan exposes the Company to. actuarial risks, stich as
interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

Contributions will be made at the start of each year based on the funding
requirements and recommendations indicated in the |atest actuarial valuation report.
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The Company's-plan assets consist of the following:

. _ 2023 2022

Inyestment in government securities P342,929 P276,893
Equity instruments 59,531 62,214
Debt instruments 24,938 30,024
Investment in UITF 7,000 3,450
Other receivables. 4,907 5,723
Cash and cash equivalents 73 62
Liabilities (1,730) (211)
P437,648 P378,155

All equity instruments and government securities have quoted price in acfive
‘markets.

All government secuiities are issued by the Philippine government and are rated
Baa3 by Moody's or BBB by Standard & Poor’s.

The principal assumptions used in determining pension benefit obligations for the
Coimpany’s plan-are shown: below:

e . 2023 2022
Discount rate at end of year 6.14% - 7.26%
Salary increaserate 5.0%-6.0% ___ 3.5%:6.0%

Assumptioris for mortality rate are based on the 2017 Philippine [ntercompany
Mortality Table.

The weighted average dyration of defined benefit obligation is as foliows:

_ _ 2023 2022

Average expected fuflre servics years 14 14
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

2023 _

Expected. Benefit

P_ay_men_ts

Within 1 Year P89,865

Within 1 - 5 Years. 260,163

More than 5 Years 3,317,728

| 2022

Expected Benefit

Payments

Within 1 Year P89,194

Within 1 - 5 Years. 220,046

More than.5 Years 3,018,605
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Sensitivity Analysis _

As at @ecé’mber_ 31,2023 and 2022, the reasonably possible thanges to the relevant
actuarial assumptions: Holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit'obligation by the amounts below:.

2023

_ 1% Iricréase 1% Decrease
Discount rate {P51,060) P60;077
Salary increase rate _ ‘62,603 {54,142)

2022 .
_ _ 1% lricrease 1% Decrease
Discountrate (P39,931) P46,605
Salary increase rate _ 49,207 (43,028)

The Company expecis to pay P65.1 million in contributions to defined benefit
pension:plans in 2024. '

Asset Liability Matching (ALM)
The Company does not perform any ALM study. The overall investinent policy and.
strategy of the retirement plan is based on the client suitability assessment, -as
provided by its trust bank, in compliance with the ‘Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
requirements: '

2j2.-'(-}bm'm'itments'and'.-Cont'ihgencies

Agreernents within _the Scope of Philipping Interpretation. IFRIC 12, Jernvice
Congession. Arrangements. '

a. The Company is-authorized by the PPA to render cargo handling services at the
South Harbor until May 2013. On Qctober 18, 2007, the cargo handling services
contract was ‘extenided until May 2038 under the terms mutually agreed upon
with the PPA (see Note 2). '

i. In accordance ‘with the Investment Plan which was revised in December
2014 pursuant to the Third Supplement to the Cargo Handling: Contract, the
‘Company has committed to invest USD385.7 million from-2010 102028, for
the rehabilitation, development and expansion of the ‘South Harbor facilities.
The commitment is dependent on container volume, The: Investment Pian is
subject to joint review. every two (2) years, or as often as necessary as
mutually agreed, fo. ensure that the same conforms to actual growth levels,
taking into -dccount introduction of new technologies and allowing the
Gompany the opportunity of a fair return on-investment.

In 2620, the reclamation of the Engineering Island Basin, which is part of the
South Harbor, was subject to jurisdictional dispute between the PPA and the
Phifippine: Reclamation Authority. As of date of this report; the opinion of the

Department of Justice (DOJ) on the matter is still pending. It is the opinion of
the Company that any .opinion rendered by the DOJ will not- have -any

material impact on the Company's ability to use the subject reclaimed land.
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ji. Government Share

- For storage operations, the Company -shall pay an annual fixed
governmérit share of P55.0 million payable quarterly and a government’
share of 30% of its annual gross storage reverive in excess of
P273.0 million.

- For .i'ntern_'a_’_tiorial_' containerized-cargo. operations, the Company shall pay
quarterly ‘fixed ‘government share of USD2:3 million plus- a variable
governmenit share-amouriting to-20% of its total gress revenues.

- For general cargo operations, the: Company shall remit government
share amiounting to 20%. of its fotal gross revenues collected from
arrastre services and 14% of its total -gross- revenues collected .from
stevedoring services for general cargoes.

- For domestic terminal operations; the Company shall remit government
_ =sha're--am'ounﬁn'g to 110% of iis total gross- revenues derived from its
domestic cargo handiing and passenger terminal operations.

b. The Company is authorized by the PPA to render cargo handling services at the
Container Terminal “A-1,” Phase Il at the Port of Batangas for 25 years stariing
July 1, 2010. For arrastré operations, the Company shall pay an annuat. fixed
government sharg of USD2:3 million for the first 2 years, USD4.7 million forthe-
34 year, USD5.1 million for the 4%-7* year, and USDS.3 million for the 89-251
yeat. The Company shall also remit annual variable government share based on
committed yearly percentage share muitiplied by whichever is higher of the
projected gross income in the'bid proposal or actual gross income:.

¢ A lump-sum fee of P400.0 million was paid to the PPA in December 2019 as
advance consideration in thé event of renewal of the contracts for Port of
Batangas Phase | and Container Terminal, “A-1,” Phase ]I beyond year 2035.
P200-million was paid by ATIB for-Phase | and the remaining P260 million was.
paid by the:Company for Phase |l.

Upon recognition of the fair value of the fixed fees representing the government
share under the concession agreements as discussed above, the Company also
recognized the corresponding port concession rights payable (see Note 2). The
movements in the port concession rights payable are as Tollows:-

_ Note 2023 2022
Balance as at January 1 P7,5655,932 P7,220,800

Accretion of port concession rights
payable 422384 439,728

Payments during the year (658,605) (671,794)
_Effe_cts-_o’f_excharjge-rate"Chang'gs 19 (1_:16,'1_07) 567,198
‘BalanceasatDecember3t =~~~ 24 P7,203,604  P7,555832

Agreements _putside the Scope. of Philippine _Interpretation .IFRIC 12, Service

" Concession Arrangements _

a. The Company has a &-year lease agreement with PPA effective
April 3, 2017 covering a land adjacent. to the Container Freight Station area of

the Contairier Terminal “A-1" with a monthly lease rental of P1.7 million, subject
to.a yearly esgalation of 5%.
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b. The Company has a25-year lease agreemerit until April 2021 covering the land
in. Calamba, Laguna to be used exclusively as an Intand Container Depot-for
which' the Company pays an annual rental of P0.1 million, subject fo an
‘escalation of 7% ohce every two. years.

The contract was revised in 2004, changing the monthly rate to P0.5 miliion in
January 1, 2002-to December 31, 2008 and P0.7 million ih January 1, 2004 fo
December 31, 2005, subject to an escalation of 8% every 2 years starting
January 1, 2006. '

In 2021, the lea's_e.ag_jre'emeni-'-_Wa_s renewed for another period of 25 years:

cammencing on April 24, 2021, and continuing the monthly rental schedule and.
escalation. The monthly rate-amotnted to P1.4 million in 2023 and 2022.

¢. The Company has a 5-year léase confract commencing -on February 1, 2017

over two parcels of land located in-Sta. Mesa, City of Manila with a monthly lease
rental of P0.6" fmillion, subject to an escalation of 7% once every two years. This
land Is being eéxclusively used as an off-dock container depot.

In 2022, the lease coniract was renewed for another period of five (5) years
commencing on February 1, 2022 until January 1, 2027 with the-same terms and

conditions as the original lease confract.

. The Company has -entefed a 25-year lease confract commencing on
February 45, 2018 for a parcel of land located af barangay Calibuya, Tanza,
Cavite, with a monthly Jease rental of P35 per square ‘meter, subject to an
escalation of 5% beginning February 15, 2020-and every 2 years thereafter. The
lease premises shall be used exclusively as a port terminal; inland clearance
depot, warehouse, and for other activities related or-an cillary thereto,

Majority of the: SC__oﬁjpa_ny'-s-'Ieased._:prqpeﬂie_s pertain-to land. T_h_e;-;:..[e'a'_Ses-typ_i?;a'lly
run for a period of 1-25 years, with ‘an opfion to renew the lease after that date.
Information about leases for which itie Company is a lessee is presented below.
i. Right-ofUse Assets

Right-of-use assets related to leased properties whose lease terms are more
than 12 months.

Note

2023

2022

Batance at January 1 _
Additions to right-of-use assets
Depregiation during the year

18

P528,966

(179,707).

P180,608
553,748
(205,390)

Balarice at December 31

P472,453

528,966

ii. Lease Liabilities

Note

2023

2022

Balance at January 1
Additions to [ease-liabilities

Interest expense during the year

Payments made

19

P578,803

123,194
17,062
(191,636)

P4190,064
553,748
25,122
(190,131)

Balance at December 31

- P527,423

 P578,803
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As. at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company has current and
noncurrent lease liabilities: included in the separate statements of financial

position as follows: '
| | | | 2023 2022
Current P63,984 68,699
Noncurrent 463,439 510,104
P527,423 P578,803

The maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
2023 2022
‘Within one year P49,364 P77,145
More than one year to five years 149,638 186,770
More than five-years _ 496,555 314,888
P695,557 P578,803

ili. Amounts to be Recognized in the Separate Statements of Income

_ Note 2023 2022
Depreciation expense 18 P179,707  P205,390
interest.pn lease liabilities 19 17,062 25,122
Expensés relating to short-term _

and/or low value leases 18 2,014 12,542
P198,783 P243,054

iv. Amounts R&cagnized in the Separate Statements of Cash Flows
2023 2022
Payments of lease liabiliies P174,574 P165,009
Interest paid. _ 17,062 25,122
Cash outflow relating to short-term o
and/or low value ledses _ 2123 12,542
_ Total cash outilow. for leases P193,759 P202,673

e. The Company has contingent liabilities for lawsuits and various other matters
occurfing in the ordinary course of business. On the basis of information
furnished by its legal counsel, management believes: that none of these
contingencies will materially affect the Company's financial position and financial
performance.

23, Financial Risk and Capital Management Objectives and Policies

The Company has various financial assets and liabilities such as cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables; deposits; equity securities, trade and other
payables, port concession rights ‘payable and lease liabilities which arise directly
from its operations. The main purpose of these firancial instruments is to raise
financing for the Company's capital expenditures and operations:
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The main risks arising from the Gompany’'s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, qredit risk-and foreign currency risk. The: BOD reviews and agrees
on policies for mariaging each of these risks. '

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s interest rate. risk- management policy centers on reducing the
Company's overall interest expense and exposure to changes in interest rates.
Changes in market interest rates relate primarily to the Company's cash in banks
and cash equivalents. '

As at' December 31, 2023 and 2022, the interest rate profile of the Company's
interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2023 2022

Fixed Rate Instruments _ . }
Cash and cash equivalents™ P5,372,342 P4,552,513
*Excluding cash on hand- amaunting to P1.7 million and P2.5 milion as et Décember 31, 2023 and 2022,

faspectively.

Fair Value Sensitivily Analysis for Fixed Rale instruments

The Company dosgs not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting
date would.not affect profit or loss.

Liguidity Risk | |
The Company monitofs its risk of shertage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.
This ool considers the maturity of both the Company’s financial investments and.
financial assets and projected cash flows: from operations; among others. The
Compariy’s objective’ is to. maintain a balance between continuity of funding .and
flexibility through the use of bank leans.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Contractual Cash Flows

_As at December 31, Cartylng ~ On Less:than C3teiz

2023- ' Amount Demand  .3:Months Months 1to5 Years > 5 Years Total.
“Trade and other . ] . o ]

payabies®" P1,798;278 .P227.504  P344,T77  P1,146,987 e - P . P7T19278
Port concesslon . . o ; o

rights payable 7,203,604 . 167,273 501,818 2,676,364 6,258,786 9,604,241
Lease liabilities 527,423 - 19,454 25,910 . 149,638 496,555 695567
Tatal.  P94sD308 227504 PS3Y,504  P1,678,725 P2,828,002 P8755.341 P12,013,076

*Excluding due to govemmient agencles:amounting o Pa36.4 miliion,

Contraétial Cash:Flows

psatDetember3t, ~ Camymg _ On  Less than a1z —
2022 . Ampunt  Demand. 3 Menths Monthd ftoSYears >6 Years Total
Tradé and.offier o .
payables* P1,086,520 P224,475. P573.874  Pi;i68,180 P - P - P1,886,529
‘Port conéession ] ) . . . .
rights payahle 7,558,932 - 167,273 501,816 2,676,364 6238788 9,804,241
‘Lease Jliabilitigs . 578,803 - 27.545 49,600 486,770 314,688 578,803
Total. Pi0121,264 P234475  PT88692  P1719,588 P2,§63134 PB573,674 P12,169,573

'Exg.;.&rdr}-a_g._dus fo governmen! agenéies amounthg to P914,5mikion.
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Credit Risk o

Credit risk on trade and other receivables represents the risk of loss the Company
would incur if credit custormers and counterparties fail to perform their contractual
obligations.

The Company trades orily with recognized and creditworthy third' parties. It is the:
Company'’s policy that ali customers who wish.to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures, In-addition, receivable balances. are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. A regular/annual teview and evaluation of accounts Is being implemented
to assess the credit standing of customers.

The Company does not require. coliateral in respect. of trade and other receivables.
The Company does hot have trade -and other recejvables for which no loss
allowarice is recognized because of collateral, The carrying amounts. of frade and
other receivables represent the maximum:credit exposure. '

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company,
which .comprise cash'in bank and cash equivalents, deposits, and FVOCI - equity,
the Company’s exposure to-credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposuré equal to the carrying amount- of these instruments. The
Company trades only with reputable banks and recognized third parties.

Exposure to credit risk is-manitored on an on'going basls. Credit checks. are. being,
performed on all clients requesting credit over certain amounts. Credit is not
extended beyond authorized limits, established where appropriate through
consultation with a professional .credit vetting arganization, Credit granted is subject
to regular review, to ensure it remains _-:cq_nsis_tent with the clients’ current. credit
worthiress. and appropriaté to the-anticipated volume of business.
Financial information on-the Company's: maximum exposure o credit risk as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, without considering the effects of other risk mitigation
techiriiques, is presented below,

_ Nofe 2023 .'202_2
'Cash and 'Ca;sh_-'-e'quivafent's.‘" 6 P5,372,342 P4,552,513

Trade and other receivables ~ net 7 3,079,746 2,854,460
Deposits- 12 66,094 79,301

Equity securifies _ 12 2,652 2,652

_ _ P8,520,834 P7,488,926

“Excluding cash on hand smotnting to F'1.7 millioh and P2.5 million as af December 31, 2023 end 2022
.espectively..
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The-table below shows. the credit:quality. of the -Co.mpa_ny"s.-ﬁn ancial assets based on
their historical expefience with the corrésponding debtor. ”

As at December 31, 2023

_ | Grade A GradeB  GradeC Total
Cashin banks and o
cash equivalenis® P5,372,342 P - P - P5,372,342
Trade and other _ '
receivables - net 2,849,896 229,850 - 3,079,746
Deposits 66,094 - - 66,094
Equity securities 2,652 - - 2,652
P8,290,084  P229850 P -  P8520834

“Excluding cash on hand amounfing fo P1.7. million 8s at December 31, 2023.

As at December 31, 2022

Grade A GradeB _ Grade © Total_
Cash in-banks and o
cash equivalents* P4,552,513 Po- P - P4,552,513
Trade and other o _
receivables - net 2,460,678 393,782 - 2,854,460
Deposits 79,301 - - 79,301
Equity securities . 2,652 - _ - 2,652
P7,095,144  P393,782 P -  P7488926

“Exgludinig cash on hahd amounting:to P2:5 million as at December 31, 2022.

Grade A receivables pertain to those receivables from customers that always pay on
time or even before the. maturity date. Grade B includes receivables that are
collected’ on their due dates provided that they were reminded or followed (p by the
Company. Those receivables which are collected consistently beyond their .due
dates and require persistent effort from the Company are included under Grade C.

Cash in banks is considered good quality (Grade A) as this pertains to deposits in
‘reputable banks. '

Trade and Other Receivables _ _ _ _

The exposuire to credit risk for trade and other receivables by industry is as follows:

| | Note 2023 2022
Shipping lines P236,513 P952,609
Others _ 2,843,233 1,801,851

7 P3,079,746 P2,854,460

Expected Credit Loss Assessment _
The Campany allocates each exposure to a eredit risk grade based on data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited to-external
ratings, .audited financial statements, management accounts and ‘cash flow:
projections and available press information about custormers) and applying expected
credit judgment. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative
factors that are indicative of the risk of default.

Exposures within each credit risk grade-are segtriented by industry classification and
an ECL rate is calculated for each segment based -on delinguency and actual credit
loss experience.
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The-following table provides-information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
and other receivables as at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

~ Gross Impairment _
Carrying - Loss Credit-
S Amount Allowance impaired

Current (not past due) P3,028,298 P - No
1 - 30 days pastdue. 33,883 . No
31 - 60'days past due 11,728 - No
61 - 90 days past due 4,462 - : No
More thani 90 days past due 5,570 4,195 Yes
Balance at Deceniber 31, 2023  P3,083,941 P4,195 |
Currernit (not past due) . P2,656,625 P - No
1 - 30 days past due 104,093 - No
31 -’60 days past due 5,158 - No
61 - 90 days past due 34,938 - No
More than 90 days pastdue 60,841 4195 Yes
Balance at December 31, 2022 P2,858,655 P4,195

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over three years. considering
circumstances at the reporting date. Any adjustment to the:loss rates for forecasts of
fiiture ecoriomic. conditions are not expected to be material. The Company applies
the-simplified approach in providing for expected credit losses prescribed by PFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expécted loss provision and applies a provision
matrix. The application of the-expected loss rates to the receivables of the Company
does not have a material impact on the'separate financial statements.

The maturity of the Company's trade and other receivables is less than one year so
the lifetime expected credit losses and the 12-monih expected credit losses are
similar.

There are no significant concentrations-of credit risk within the Company. Of the total
trade and other receivables which are neither past ‘due nor impaired, 100%. are of
high-grade quality instruments because-there was no history of default on the agreed
terms of the contract.

Movement in the Allowance for Impairment in Respect of Trade and Other

.Receivables o _ o
There was. no moyement in the allowance for impairment on trade and other
receivables from 2020 as no reversals and write-offs ‘were made since 2021. The
allowance for impairment as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 is P4.2 million with.
individually and collectively impaired receivables amounting to P1.8 million and P2.4
million, respectively.

| individually ~ Collectively
_ 'Impaire_d Impaired

Balance: at January 1, 2020 P4.195 P1,838 P2,357

Reversals.during the year - -

Wirite-offs - - - _ -

Balance at December 31 2020 ~ P4tes  P1.838 pP2,357
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The significant change in the gross carfying amount of trade receivables that
contributed also to the change in the impairment loss-allowance during 2020 refers to.
the reversals in allowance for impairment. The reversals resulted from review of
credit risks profiling of customers and upon identification of receivables with specific
doubffill accounts.

Cash in Banks and Cash Equivalents

The Company held cash in banks and cash equivalents of P5.4 billion and.
P4.6 billion as.at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The. cash and cash
equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are
rated Grade A.

Impairment oh -casti in banks ahd cash equivalents has been measured on a
12-month-expected Joss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The
Company considers that its cash in bank and. cash equivalents have low credit risk
based on the external credit ratings of theé counterparties and any ECL is expected to
be immaterial. ' -

Foreign Currency Risk _

The Company has foreign currency financial. assets and liabilities arising from
US dollar denominated revenues;, government share, and other foreign
currency-denominated purchases by operating units.

The Company's foreign currency-denominated accounts. as of December 31 are as
follows: ' h '

2023 2022

Assets o L L
Cash and cas_h_.equa!ents _ JSD19,007 UsD18,757
Liabilities _ _
Trade and other payables ' 2,378 63,033
Port concession rights payable _ . 120,527 125,605
. o _ 122,905 188,638
Net foreign cu rrency-denominated liabilities {USD103,898) (USD169,881)
Peso equivalent o - (P5,755,949)  (P9,479,360)

The exchange rates applicable for USD as ai December 31, 2023 and 2022 are
P55.4 and P55.8, respectively.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo.a reasonably possible change in
the (JS-dolfar exchiange rate, with all other variables held constanit, of the Company's.
income before income tax and equity. |
Effect- on
Income

Increase {Decrease) in Before Effect.on
U. 5. _dcl!ar'Exchaﬂ_ge Rate . Income Tax. Equity

2023 - —
+5% (P287,797)  (P215,848)

5% . 287,797 - 215,848

2022 _ o o
+5% (473,968) (365,476)
-5% 473,968 355,476
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-Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a strong credit: rating and ‘healthy capitai ratios in order to support ‘its

business and maxirize shareholder value.

The Company considers capital to inciude. capital stoek, additional paid-in capital,

retained earnings, fair value reserve and hedging reserve. The Company manages
its capital structure and- makes adjustments to if, in light of changes in economic
conditions: To maintain or adJUSt its. capital’ structure, the Company. may adjust the
dividend payment to sharéholders, returh. capital to. shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the ‘objectives, policies or processes from prior
year.

The Company is not subject {o externally imposed capital requirements, except for
the investment it has committed in accordance with the investment plan discussed in

Note 22.

The table below shows the capital'struciure of the: Gompan'y as at December 31:

| Note 2023 2022
Capital stock P2,000,000 P2,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 264,300 264,300
Retained earnings 20,102,382 17,759,183
Fair value: reserve _ _ . {5,820} (5,820}
Total . .16 P22360,862 P20,017,663

24. Financial Instruments

The: table below praserits a companson by category of carrying amounts and
estimated fair values of all the Company’s financial instruments as at

December: 31, 2023 and 2022.

2023, 2022
Carrying Fair -Carying. Fair
_ Note_ Amount- Value Amount ‘Value

Financial Asseﬁs o o _
‘Cash and cash equivalents § P5374,056 P5374,056 P4,555,028 P4,555028
Trade and.-other receivables - net 7 3,079,746 3,079,746 ‘2,654,460 2,854,460
Deposits’ e 12 66,094 72,251 79301 85,393
. _ ' 8 519 g95 8,526,063 7,488, 789 7,484,881
Equity sgcurities . 12, 12,852 2652 . 2652 2,652

P8,522,548 PE52B715  PT.491441  PT497,533

-Financial Llabilmes

Otherfinancial fiabllttes: _ o _ _
Trade ahd other payables 14  P1,719,278 P1,719:278 P1,086;529 P1,886, 529

Port concession. fights fayable 22 7'203;60'4 71,907, 530 7,555,932 7, 775,518
. PB,g22,882 P9,626,798  P9,542:461 PQ 762,047

*Exc!udmg dis. to govemment agenc;es amounﬂng to Pa36 4 million and F914 5. m;mon in 2023 and 2022,
raspectively.

w44 -



Fair Value of Finangial [nstruments

The fair values of cash'and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payab!es are approximately equal to-their carrying amounts due to their
relatively short-term naturé..

Non-derivative Financial Instruments
Quoted market prices have been used to determine the fair values of listed equity
securities, The fair values of unquoted equlty securities are not. reliably determihable.

For honinterest-bearing’ depds;ts the fair value'is estimated as the present value of
all future cash flows discounted using the- prevalimg markst rate on interest for a
similar instrument, The discourit rates used are 5.8% in 2023:and 6.0% In 2022 (see

Note 1 2)

The fair value of port concession r:ghts payable was. estimated at the présent vaiue
of all future cash flows discounted using the dpplicable rates for similar types of
loans ranging from 5. 97% to 6.01% in 2023 and 6.19% to 7.23% in 2022.

The fair value of lease liabilifies was estimated at the present value of all future cash
flows discounted uslng the: prevailing marketrate on interest for a similar instrument.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The- fo[lowmg table shows the levels in the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s

financial. instriments:

As at December 31,2023  Note Level 1 Level 2, Level 3
Equity securities 12 P933 P - P1,719
Port concession rig hts payable - Z,-BO_T,-SZD_ _ -
P933  P7,907,520 P1,719
_As-af December 31,2023 _ Nole Level 1 Level 2. Level 3
Equity securities 12 Pg33 P - P1,719
_ Port concession rights: payable - 7,775,518 -
P933  P7,775,518 P1,719

There have been no transfers fiom one level to-another in 2023 and 2022

285, Revenue

The Company derives revenue from the transfer of servicas over time and at-a point
in time iri the following major service lines:

2023 2022

Revenues fi‘dni-@b_er'_at_iqns S o
P6;289,304 P3,548,685

Stevedoring 289,3 548,685
Arrastre 5,249,975 4,812,203
Logistics 160,055 188,913
Special and other. services 2,474,028 1.7‘_52_;5._3-1- _
Total P14,173,359  P12,302,332
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26. qu'p!em'er_i_{e;fy' Info rtjr‘i"a_'t'ien-Ré'ﬁ:]i,i'il‘ed by the Bureau. of Internal Revenue (BIR)

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, -and such other standards
and/or conventions as may. be adopted companies are required by the BIR to
provide in the notes to the separate fi naitcial statements, certain supplementary
inforfnation for the taxabie year. The amounts relating to such information may hot
necessenly be the same with. those amounts d:sclosed in the separate fifancial
statements: which were prepared in.accordance with PFRSs. The following are the
tax: information/disclosures ‘required by Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 for the

taxable year ended December 31, 2023:

A, Valie Added Tax {VAT)

1. Output VAT P644,582
Bas1s of theé- Output VAT*
Vatable sales P§,371,513
Zero rated sales 8,921,838
Exempt sales 362
P14,293,713
2. Input VAT |
Beginning of the year P2,068,939
Current year's domestic purchases:
a. Goods otherthan capital goods 86,693
b. Capital.goods subject o amortization -
¢ Services lodged-under cost of. goods sold 767,738
d. Serviceslodged under other accounts _ 5,550
Current year's tmportatlen of goods other than capital o
goods 10,887
:Claims for tax credltfrefund and other ad]ustments -
Total 2,939,807
_Less Input VAT appllcahon (644,582__-)_
“Balance at the end of the year P2,295,225
3. Customs Duties and Tariff Fees: |
Landed cost of imports: P10,887
Customs duties-paid or accrued 3,119
_ _ P14,006
* The base amaunts.are gross of PPAfees,
B. Documentary Stamp Tax
Others (insurance: policies) P36,242
C. Withholding Taxes
Tax on compensation and benefits P128,923
Creditable withholding taxes 187,548
Final withholding taxes 89,289
'P405,770
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‘D. AllOther Taxe&.(i.--.ocal-’ahfd-NatiO'naI)

Oth er taxes pa:d durmg the. year- recogmzed under.
“Taxes and licenseés” account.under Costs and

Expenses

Real estate taxes P305,009
Mayer's permit 74,692
Cthers _ _ 6,624

P386,325

E. Deficienicy Tax Assessments

On November 22, 2022 the Company received a letter of authority (LOA)
mvolulng the examtnatlon -of book of acceunts and other accounting records for
all intérmal revenue taxes (excludmg VAT) for the taxable year ended
December 31, 2021. The assessment was closed and settled by the Company.
on February ‘[3 2023,

Oon. September 24,2023, the CGompany Teceived @ LOA involving the examiination
of book of dccounts’ and other. accounting records for Value-Added Tax for. the
taxable year ‘ended December 31, 2022, Thé assessment was closed and settled
by the-Company on Décember 14 2023.

On September:29; 2023, the-Company received a LOA irvolving.the-examination
of book of accounts and other accounting recards for all internal revenue taxes
(excluding VAT), for the taxable year ended December 31, 2022. As of
Deceinber 31, 2023; the: audit for the LOA is:still on-going.

F. Tax Cases

The Company has a Civil case undef investigation of the Court of Tax Appeals
involving deficiency local business tax: payable to the City of Manila for taxable
years 2013 and 2014 amounting to P33.4 million.

Information on the-excise taxes is not. appllcable since there are.no transactions that
the Company would be subject to this type of tax.
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	Item 1. Business
	South Harbor
	Port of Batangas
	Port authorities’ share in revenues in 2023 of P2,669.5 million increased by 8.1% from  P2,468.8 million in 2022 as a result of higher revenues subject to port authorities’ share.
	Cost and expenses in 2023 amounted to P6,628.7 million, 7.3% higher than P6,176.4 million in 2022. Depreciation and amortization in 2023 increased by 4.2% to P1,989.1 million from P1,908.8 million in 2022. Labor costs in 2023 of P1,759.7 million were ...
	Meanwhile, taxes and licenses in 2023 decreased by 8.3% to P503.5 million from P549.2 million in 2022 due to lower permits and licenses. Rentals of P10.9 million in 2023 went down by 67.8% compared to P33.7 million in 2022 as last year included rental...
	Net income for the year ended December 31, 2023 increased by 46.6% to P4,437.8 million from P3,028.2 million last year. Earnings per share increased to P2.22 in 2023 from P1.51 in 2022.
	Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors
	(i) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Liquidity)
	 There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s, other than those discussed in this report.
	(ii) Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation
	 There had been no event known to management that could trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.
	(iii) All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period
	 There had been no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the period that would addres...
	(iv) Description of any material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of such commitments, expected sources of funds for such expenditures
	 This includes the completion of the Batangas Passenger Terminal Phase 2, expansion of existing port facilities, acquisition of additional modern equipment, implementation of smart IT systems as well as the construction of Cavite Barge Terminal which...
	v)  Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Sales)
	 There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s revenues from continuing operations, other than those discussed in this report.
	vi)  Any Significant Elements of Income or Loss (from continuing operations)
	 There had been no significant elements of income that did not arise from the Company’s continuing operations.
	(vii)  Causes for Any Material Changes from Period to Period of FS which shall include vertical and horizontal analyses of any material item (5%) – refer to discussion on Results of Operations, Financial Condition and Cash Flows.
	(viii)  Seasonal Aspects that has Material Effect on the FS
	 There had been no seasonal factor that had a material effect on the financial condition and results of operations.
	Total assets as of December 31, 2023 increased by 4.2% to P36,073.0 million from  P34,631.3 million as of December 31, 2022. Total current assets as of December 31, 2023 up by 11.1% to P10,098.6 million from P9,091.0 million as of December 31, 2022. C...
	Total non-current assets of P25,974.4 million as of December 31, 2023, were higher by 1.7% compared to P25,540.3 million as of December 31, 2022. Property and equipment-net decreased by 2.1% to P2,511.7 million as of December 31, 2023 from P2,566.2 mi...
	Total liabilities went down by 7.6% to P11,521.5 million as of December 31, 2023 from P12,470.1 million as of December 31, 2022. Trade and other payables as of  December 31, 2023 of P2,934.4 million were lower by 10.9% than P3,292.6 million as of Dece...
	Consolidated Cash Flows
	Net cash provided by operating activities increased by 3.1% to P6,067.2 million in 2023 from P5,886.8 million in 2022 due to higher operating income and increase in trade and other receivables.
	Net cash used in investing activities in 2023 of P2,062.8 million were 25.2% lower than  P2,757.8 million in 2022 due to lower acquisitions of intangible assets and property and equipment.
	Cash used in financing activities in 2023 of P3,165.8 million was higher by 20.0% than the P2,639.0 million in 2022 due to higher payments of cash dividends and higher payments of concession liabilities.
	Adoption of Amendments to Standards
	Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
	KPIs discussed below were based on consolidated amounts as portions pertaining to the Company’s subsidiary, ATI Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) were not material. As of end 2023:
	 ATIB’s total assets were only 9.7% of the consolidated total assets.
	 Income before other income and expense from ATIB was only 5.2% of consolidated income before other income and expense.0F
	Summary of Selected Financial Data (in millions)
	Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
	Port authorities’ share in revenues in 2022 of P2,468.8 million increased by 26.8% from P1,947.7 million in 2021 as a result of higher revenues subject to port authorities’ share.
	Cost and expenses in 2022 amounted to P6,176.4 million, 13.8% higher than P5,426.2 million in 2021. Depreciation and amortization in 2022 increased by 3.2% to P1,908.8 million from P1,849.7 million in 2021. Labor costs in 2022 of P1,633.1 million were...
	Net income for the year ended December 31, 2022 increased by 35.3% to P3,028.2 million from P2,237.7 million last year. Earnings per share increased to P1.51 in 2022 from P1.12 in 2021.
	Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors
	(i) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Liquidity)
	 There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s, other than those discussed in this report.
	(ii) Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation
	 There had been no event known to management that could trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.
	(iii) All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period
	 There had been no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the period that would addres...
	(iv) Description of any material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of such commitments, expected sources of funds for such expenditures
	 This includes the completion of the Batangas Passenger Terminal Phase 1, expansion of existing port facilities, acquisition of additional modern equipment, implementation of smart IT systems as well as the construction of Cavite Barge Terminal which...
	v)  Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Sales)
	 There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s revenues from continuing operations, other than those discussed in this report.
	vi)  Any Significant Elements of Income or Loss (from continuing operations)
	 There had been no significant elements of income that did not arise from the Company’s continuing operations.
	(vii)  Causes for Any Material Changes from Period to Period of FS which shall include vertical and horizontal analyses of any material item (5%) – refer to discussion on Results of Operations, Financial Condition and Cash Flows.
	(viii)  Seasonal Aspects that has Material Effect on the FS
	 There had been no seasonal factor that had a material effect on the financial condition and results of operations.
	COVID-19 has impacted the business operations of the company and its offsite facilities. South Harbor volume was impacted by the surge in Covid-19 cases in China for the first half of 2022. In general, China port operations slowed down, and in some po...
	Consolidated Financial Condition
	Total assets as of December 31, 2022 increased by 9.2% to P34,631.3 million from  P31,710.9 million as of December 31, 2021. Total current assets as of December 31, 2022 up by 15.8% to P9,091.0 million from P7,847.9 million as of December 31, 2021. Ca...
	Total non-current assets of P25,540.3 million as of December 31, 2022, were higher by 7.0% compared to P23,863.0 million as of December 31, 2021. Property and equipment-net increased by 35.7% to P2,566.2 million as of December 31, 2022 from P1,890.7 m...
	Total liabilities went up by 13.7% to P12,470.1 million as of December 31, 2022 from  P10,972.3 million as of December 31, 2021. Trade and other payables as of  December 31, 2022 of P2,379.9 million were higher by 38.3% than P2,379.9 million as of Dec...
	Consolidated Cash Flows
	Net cash provided by operating activities increased by 36.0% to P5,886.8 million in 2022 from P4,328.7 million in 2021 due to higher operating income and increase in trade and other payables.
	Net cash used in investing activities in 2022 of P2,757.8 million were 9.3% higher than  P2,523.1 million in 2021 due to higher acquisitions of intangible assets and property and equipment.
	Cash used in financing activities in 2022 of P2,639.0 million was higher by 9.8% than the P2,403.5 million in 2021 due to higher payments of cash dividends and payments of lease liabilities.
	Adoption of Amendments to Standards
	Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
	KPIs discussed below were based on consolidated amounts as portions pertaining to the Company’s subsidiary, ATI Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) were not material. As of end 2022:
	 ATIB’s total assets were only 9.4% of the consolidated total assets.
	 Income before other income and expense from ATIB was only 11.1% of consolidated income before other income and expense.2F
	Summary of Selected Financial Data (in millions)
	Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
	Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2021 of P11,162.7 million went up by 1.8% from P10,961.0 million in 2020. Revenues from international containerized cargo operations in South Harbor (SH) and Batangas Container Terminal (BCT) increased from las...
	Port authorities’ share in revenues in 2021 of P1,947.7 million increased by 7.9% from  P1,805.6 million in 2020 as a result of higher revenues subject to port authorities’ share.
	Cost and expenses in 2021 amounted to P5,426.2 million, 7.2% higher than P5,062.2 million in 2020. Depreciation and amortization in 2021 increased by 6.7% to P1,849.7 million from P1,733.7 million in 2020. Equipment running in 2021 went up by 21.4% to...
	Meanwhile, management fees in 2021 decreased by 27.5% to P133.6 million from  P184.4 million in 2020 following lower earnings before tax. Security, health, environment and safety in 2021 of P152.5 million were lower by 8.7% compared to P167.0 million ...
	Finance income amounted to P5.8 million in 2021, 79.8% down from P28.6 million in 2020 due to lower interest rates for money market placements and lower cash balance. Finance costs in 2021 of P504.1 million were lower by 7.4% compared to P544.1 millio...
	Income before income tax in 2021 of P3,035.6 million was lower by 27.3% compared to P4,177.0 in 2020. Provision for income tax decreased by 34.7% to P797.9 million in 2021 from P1,221.0 million in the same period last year due to lower results and dec...
	Net income for the year ended December 31, 2021 decreased by 24.3% to P2,237.7 million from P2,956.0 million last year.  Earnings per share was down to P1.12 in 2021 from P1.48 in 2020.
	Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors
	(i) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Liquidity)
	 There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s, other than those discussed in this report.
	(ii) Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation
	 There had been no event known to management that could trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.
	(iii) All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period
	 There had been no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the period that would addres...
	(iv) Description of any material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of such commitments, expected sources of funds for such expenditures
	(v)  Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Sales)
	 There had been no known trends, events or uncertainties that had or are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the Company’s revenues from continuing operations, other than those discussed in this report.
	(vi)  Any Significant Elements of Income or Loss (from continuing operations)
	 There had been no significant elements of income that did not arise from the Company’s continuing operations.
	(vii)  Causes for Any Material Changes from Period to Period of FS which shall include vertical and horizontal analyses of any material item (5%) – refer to discussion on Results of Operations, Financial Condition and Cash Flows.
	(viii)  Seasonal Aspects that has Material Effect on the FS
	 There had been no seasonal factor that had a material effect on the financial condition and results of operations.
	COVID-19 has impacted the business operations of the company and its offsite facilities. Business operations continue following existing government regulations and guidelines. The measures undertaken by the company and its offsites include the impleme...
	Consolidated Financial Condition
	Total assets as of December 31, 2021 increased by 2.9% to P31,710.9 million from  P30,824.4 million as of December 31, 2020. Total current assets as of December 31, 2021 up by 2.1% to P7,847.9 million from P7,684.0 million as of December 31, 2020. Cas...
	Total non-current assets of P23,863.0 million as of December 31, 2021, were higher by 3.1% compared to P23,140.4 million as of December 31, 2020. Property and equipment-net increased by 57.7% to P1,890.7 million as of December 31, 2021 from P1,198.8 m...
	Total liabilities went up by 0.6% to P10,972.3 million as of December 31, 2021 from  P10,911.6 million as of December 31, 2020. Trade and other payables as of  December 31, 2021 of P2,379.9 million were higher by 12.5% than P2,114.9 million as of Dece...
	Consolidated Cash Flows
	Net cash provided by operating activities increased by 38.9% to P4,328.7 million in 2021 from P3,116.1 million in 2020 despite lower operating income due to increase in trade and other payables and lower income taxes paid.
	Net cash used in investing activities in 2021 of P2,522.6 million was 36.6% higher than  P1,847.3 million in 2020 due to higher acquisitions of intangible assets and property and equipment.
	Cash used in financing activities in 2021 of P2,403.5 million was higher by 3.5% than the P2,322.7 million in 2020 due to higher payments of port concession and payments of lease liabilities.
	Adoption of Amendments to Standards
	The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards starting January 1, 2021 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption did not have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financia...
	 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to PFRS 16, Leases). The amendments introduce an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of COVID-19. A lessee that applies th...
	 the revised consideration is substantially the same or less than the original consideration;
	 the reduction in lease payments relates to payments due on or before  June 30, 2021; and
	 no other substantive changes have been made to the terms of the lease.
	Lessees applying the practical expedient are required to disclose that fact, whether they have applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions and, if not, the nature of the contracts to which they have applied the practical expedient...
	Amendments to Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted
	A number of amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after  January 1, 2021. However, the Group has not early adopted the following new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwi...
	Effective April 1, 2021
	 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to PFRS 16, Leases). The amendment extends the practical expedient introduced in the 2020 amendment which simplified how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct conseq...
	The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. Earlier application is permitted. A lessee applies the amendments retrospectively, recognizing the cumulative effect of the amendments as an adjustment to the...
	Effective January 1, 2022
	 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment). The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment the proceeds from selling ...
	The amendments also clarify that testing whether an item of property, plant and equipment is functioning properly means assessing its technical and physical performance rather than assessing its financial performance.
	For the sale of items that are not part of a company’s ordinary activities, the amendments require the company to disclose separately the sales proceeds and related production cost recognized in profit or loss and specify the line items in which such ...
	The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments apply retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or a...
	 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendment to PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets). The amendments clarify that the cost of fulfilling a contract when assessing whether a contract is onerous includes al...
	The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2022 to contracts existing at the date when the amendments are first applied. At the date of initial application, the cumulative effect of applying the amendme...
	 Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020. This cycle of improvements contains amendments to three standards:
	 Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter (Amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards). The amendment simplifies the application of PFRS 1 for a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of PFRS later than its p...
	 Fees in the ’10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabilities (Amendment to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments). The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of performing the ’10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities, the...
	 Lease Incentives (Amendment to Illustrative Examples accompanying  PFRS 16, Leases). The amendment deletes from the Illustrative Example 13 the reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements to remove the potential for confusion because the exampl...
	The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2022. Earlier application is permitted.
	 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendment to PFRS 3 Business Combinations). The amendments:
	 updated PFRS 3 so that it now refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework.
	 added a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of  PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identi...
	 added an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognize contingent assets acquired in a business combination.
	The amendments are effective for business combinations occurring in reporting periods starting on or after January 1, 2022. Earlier application is permitted.
	Effective January 1, 2023
	 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements). To promote consistency in application and clarify the requirements on determining whether a liability is current or non-current, the...
	 removed the requirement for a right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period to be unconditional and instead requires that the right must have substance and exist at the end of the reporting period.
	 clarified that a right to defer settlement exists only if the company complies with conditions specified in the loan agreement at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender does not test compliance until a later date; and
	 clarified that settlement of a liability includes transferring a company’s own equity instruments to the counterparty, but conversion options that are classified as equity do not affect classification of the liability as current or non-current.
	The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted.
	 Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors). To clarify the distinction between changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates, the amendments introduce...
	The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after  January 1, 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or af...
	 Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and PFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements). The amendments are intended to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The...
	 requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.
	 clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and
	 clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements.
	The amendments to PFRS Practice Statement 2 include guidance and additional examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
	The amendments are effective from January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted.
	 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to PAS 12 Income Taxes). The amendments clarify that that the initial recognition exemption does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal taxable a...
	Deferral of the local implementation of Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
	 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures). The amendments address an inconsistency betwee...
	The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a busine...
	Originally, the amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. However, on January 13, 2016, the FRSC decided to postpone the effective date of these amendments until the IASB ha...
	Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
	KPIs discussed below were based on consolidated amounts as portions pertaining to the Company’s subsidiary, ATI Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) were not material. As of end 2021:
	 ATIB’s total assets were only 9.8% of the consolidated total assets.
	 Income before other income and expense from ATIB was only 5.8% of consolidated income before other income and expense.4F
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